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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
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603-271-6738 1-800-804-0909
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July 27, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

5

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to enter into sole source amendments to existing agreements with multiple vendors to
increase the scope of work to improve current services and to expand capacity for new services for
substance use disorder treatment and recovery services statewide, by increasing the price limitations
by $280,000 in the aggregate from $26,663,129 to an amount not to exceed $26,943,129.00, effective
upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2015. There is no
change to the completion date of December 31, 2015 for the remaining scope of work in the

Agreement. 100% Federal Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Increasel/
Current Budget Decrease Revised Budget
Vendor Amount Amount Amount

Child & Family Services, Manchester,
NH $303,810.50 $20,000.00 $323,810.50
Concord Hospital, Concord, NH $260,421.00 $20,000.00 $280,421.00
Families First of the Greater
Seacoast, Portsmouth, NH $101,227.00 $20,000.00 $121,227.00
Families in Transition, Manchester,
NH $1,163,855.00 $20,000.00 $1,183,855.00
Grafton County, North Haverhill, NH $242,938.50 $0.00 $242 938.50
Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism, Nashua, NH $4,823,837.00 $20,000.00 $4,843,837.00
Headrest, Inc., Lebanon, NH $880,075.00 $20,000.00 $900,075.00
Horizons Counseling Center, Inc.,
Gilford, NH $700,786.00 $20,000.00 $720,786.00
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center, Manchester, NH $3,922,096.50 $20,000.00 $3,942,096.50
The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc., Manchester, NH $94,899.00 $20,000.00 $114,899.00
Phoenix Houses of New England,
Inc., Providence, RI $5,251,303.50 $20,000.00 $5,271,303.50
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Increase/
Current Budget Decrease Revised Budget
Vendor Amount Amount Amount

National Council on Alcoholism and
Drug Dependence of Greater
Manchester, Manchester, NH $1,557,404.00 $20,000.00 $1,577,404.00

Southeastern New Hampshire
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services,

Dover, NH $4,654,426.00 $20,000.00 $4,674,426.00
Tri-County Community Action

Program, Berlin, NH $2,443,504.50 $20,000.00 $2,463,504.50
The Youth Council, Nashua, NH $262,545.50 $20,000.00 $282,545.50
Totals $26,663,129.00 $280,000.00 $26,943,129.00

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 in the following accounts, upon
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

Please see attachment for fiscal details.

EXPLANATION
These Amendments are sole source because the Department wants to add a new scope of
work to the current contracts for work to be completed by September 30, 2015. This does not allow for
enough time for the procurement process.

These Amendments are part of the Department’s overall strategy to respond to the opioid
epidemic that continues to negatively impact New Hampshire's individuals, families, and communities.
In 2014 there were 325 opioid overdose deaths in New Hampshire with the death toll for 2015 trending
toward a significant increase in the number of overdose deaths.

Approval of these Amendments will allow the Contractors to utilize federal funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration to improve current services and expand
capacity for new services for the substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services. The
Contractors will be able to improve and expand upon services by training staff in evidence-based
practices for new or current treatment services, purchasing new program materials to implement new
evidence-based practices, and hiring consultants to assist with obtaining facility licenses to provide new
services and with designing new programs. The Contractors will be able to improve and expand upon
business functions by upgrading computer systems and software to allow for 3rd party billing and
clinical record keeping in an electronic health record, that result in more efficient operations and
increased staff time to provide more treatment services.

In combination with other Department strategies such as increased prevention services and
education and media campaigns, the work of these Contractors will result in serving more clients with
more effective substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services that will help mitigate
negative impacts of the opioid epidemic such as overdoses.

One vendor’s contract with Grafton County is not being amended because Federal restrictions
prevent these funds being used to serve incarcerated clients, which is the only population that Grafton
County serves.
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The vendors were originally selected for these agreements through a competitive bid process.
The original contracts for SFY 2013 were approved by Governor and Counsel on June 20, 2012, (Items
96, 97, 99 — 110, 112). Amendments for SFY 2014 were approved on June 5, 2013 (ltem # 102A),
except Grafton County approved on July 10, 2013 (Item # 50) and The Youth Council on June 19, 2013
(Item #134), Amendments for SFY 2015 were approved on June 28, 2014 (Iltem #99), and December
23, 2014 (Item #16) for two vendors (Tri County Community Action Program and Phoenix House of
New England), and June 4, 2015 by the Attorney General for one vendor (Families in Transition), and
Amendments for July 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 were approved on June 24, 2015 (ltem #29).

A scanned copy of these Amendments, including the Governor and Executive Council letters
and accompanying documentation from the original agreement and subsequent amendments will be
available on-line, once posted to the meeting agenda for the Governor and Executive Council, at
http://sos.nh.gov/GC2.aspx.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize these Amendments, the
Contractors would not have sufficient resources to promote, implement and provide the array of
services necessary to provide individuals with substance use disorders the necessary tools to achieve,
enhance and sustain recovery. This would result in fewer clients being able to access effective,
efficient, substance use disorder treatment services resulting in continued substance use. In addition,
failure to obligate the Federal funds in the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant to
community based programs to provide alcohol and other drug treatment services could result in the
loss of Federal Block Grant funds made available for these services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Substance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, CFDA #093.959, Federal Award Identification Number
TI010035-14.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Tl (Punn

Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH
Associate Commissioner

Approved byb &_&&AV

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Fiscal Details

SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% General Funds)

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (Vendor #177166 B002)

Class/ Title State Current Increase/ Revised
Account Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $19,474 $0 $19,474
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $19,474 $0 $19,474
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $19,474 $0 $19,474
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $9,737 $0 $9,737
Sub-total $68,159 $0 $68,159
Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor #177653 B014)
Class/ . State Current Increase/ Revi_s.ed
Account Title Fiscal Year Né‘::;g:f Decrease Ng:::;;':f
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $16,693 $0 $16,693
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $16,693 $0 $16,693
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $16,693 $0 $16,693
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $8,346.50 $0 $8,346.50
Sub-total $58,425.50 $0 $58,425.50
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (Vendor #177204 B005)
State Current Revised
Class/ficeo Title Fiscal | Modified | [STe2%¢/ | mogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $251,406 $0 $251,406
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $251,406 $0 $251,406
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $251,406 $0 $251,406
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $125,703 $0 $125,703
Sub-total | $879,921 $0 $879,921
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Vendor #166574 B001)
State Current Revised
polass! . Title Fiscal | Modified | '°r°2%¢/ |  podified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $217,425 $0 $217,425
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $217,425 $0 $217,425
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $217,425 $0 $217,425
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $108,712 $0 $108,712
Sub-total | $760,987 $0 $760,987

Fiscal Details
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County of Grafton (Vendor #177397 B003)
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State Current Revised
Ai:f‘::; . Title Fiscal | Modified | e/ | modifieq
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $34,706 $0 $34,706
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $34,706 $0 $34,706
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $34,706 $0 $34,706
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $17,353 $0 $17,353
Sub-total | $121,471 $0 $121,471
Headrest, Inc (Vendor #175226 B001)
State Current Revised
Ai:f‘::{" . Title Fiscal Modified g‘:c'f:::é Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $56,413 $0 $56,413
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $56,413 $0 $56,413
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $56,413 $0 $56,413
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $28,206.50 $0 $28,206.50
Sub-total | $197,445.50 $0 $197,445.50
Horizons Counseling Center, Inc (Vendor #156808 B001)
Class/ State Current Inc;;aas Revised
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrea Modified
Year Budget se Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $42,532 $0 $42,532
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $42,532 $0 $42,532
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $42 532 $0 $42,532
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $21,266 $0 $21,266
Sub-total | $148,862 $0 $148,862
The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc (Vendor #177184 B001)
State Current Revised
polass! . Title Fiscal | Modified | Poreasel | pogifieq
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $6,083 $0 $6,083
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $6,083 $0 $6,083
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $6,083 $0 $6,083
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $3,041.50 $0 $3,041.50
Sub-total | $21,290.50 $0 $21,290.50
Fiscal Details




Fiscal Details

Phoenix Houses of New England, Inc. (Vendor #177589 B001)

Class/ . S_tate Curfent Increase/ Revi_s_ed
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 2013 $326,988 $0 $326,988
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 2014 $326,988 $0 $326,988
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc | 2015 $348,538 $0 $348,538
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $174,269 $0 $174,269
Sub-
total $1,176,783 $0 $1,176,783

National Council on Alcoholism and

Drug Abuse Services (Vendor #177265 R001)
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Class/ . S.tate Cur!ent Increase/ Revi_s_ed
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $97,024 $0 $97,024
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $97,024 $0 $97,024
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $97,024 $0 $97,024
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $48,512 $0 $48,512
Sub-total | $339,584 $0 $339,584
Southeastern New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services (Vendor #155292 B001)
State Current Revised
sl Title Fiscal | Modified | N°r®2%® | Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $239,491 $0 $239,491
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $239,491 $0 $239,491
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $239,491 $0 $239,491
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $119,745.50 $0 $119,745.50
Sub-total | $838,218.50 $0 $838,218.50
Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc (Vendor #177195 B009)
Class/ . S_tate Curfent Increase/ Revi_s_e d
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $137,281 $0 $137,281
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $137,281 $0 $137,281
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $181,036 $0 $181,036
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $90,518 $0 $90,518
Sub-total | $546,116 $0 $546,116
Fiscal Details




The Youth Council (Vendor #154886 B001

Fiscal Details

State Current Revised

sl Title Fiscal Modified | "°r*2%el | modifieq
Year Budget Budget

102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $16,876 $0 $16,876
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $16,876 $0 $16,876
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $16,876 $0 $16,876
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $8,438 $0 $8,438
Sub-total $59,066 $0 $59,066

OV | $52.216,329 $0 | $5.216,329

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES (34.4% General 65.6% Federal)

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (Vendor #177166 B002)

State Current Revised
A?:Laos::' . Title Fiscal | Modified I')“:c’f:::é Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $67,329 $0 $67,329
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $67,329 $0 $67,329
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $67,329 $0 $67,329
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $33,664.50 | $20,000 $53,664.50
Sub-total | $235,651.50 | $20,000 | $255,651.50
Concord Hospital, Inc (Vendor #177653 B014)
State Current Revised
plass! Title Fiscal | Modified | P'ore2%e/ | pogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $57,713 $0 $57,713
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $57,713 $0 $57,713
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $57,713 $0 $57,713
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $28,856.50 $20,000 $48,856.50
Sub-total | $201,995.50 | $20,000 | $221,995.50
Families First of the Greater Seacoast (Vendor #166629 B001)
State Current Revised
Class/ Title Fiscal | Modified | "6rease/ | p jified
Account Ea— Ye: Budget Decrease Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $28,922 $0 $28,922
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $28,922 $0 $28,922
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $28,922 $0 $28,922
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $14,461 $20,000 $34,961
Sub-total | $101,227 $20,000 $121,227

Fiscal Details
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Fiscal Details

Families in Transition (Vendor #157730 B001)
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State Current Revised
Ai:f‘::r’i . Title Fiscal | Modified | ['re2%€l | mogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $332,530 $0 $332,530
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $332,530 $0 $332,530
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $332,530 $0 $332,530
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $166,265 $20,000 $186,265
Sub-total | $1,163,855 | $20,000 $1,183,855
County of Grafton (Vendor #177397 B003
State Current Revised
Ai:f:r’i . Title Fiscal | Modified g‘:;f:::é Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $34,705 $0 $34,705
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $34,705 $0 $34,705
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $34,705 $0 $34,705
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $17,352.50 $0 $17,352.50
Sub-total | $121,467.50 $0 $121,467.50
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (Vendor #177204 B005)
State Current Revised
Ai::a::r’i . Title Fiscal Modified | "°re2%e/ | pogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $869,193 $0 $869,193
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $869,193 $0 $869,193
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $869,193 $0 $869,193
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $434,596.50 $20,000 $454,596.50
Sub-total | $3,042,175.50 | $20,000 | $3,062,175.50
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Vendor #166574 B001)
State Current Revised
A?::f'::r’i . Title Fiscal | Modified | P'T®2%€) | pogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $1,139,520 $0 $1,139,520
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $1,139,520 $0 $1,139,520
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $1,139,520 $0 $1,139,520
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $644,290 $20,000 $664,290
Sub-total | $4,062,850 $20,000 $4,082,850
Headrest, Inc (Vendor #175226 B001)
State Current Revised
A?:La::r’i . Title Fiscal | Modified g‘:;f:::é Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $195,037 $0 $195,037
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $195,037 $0 $195,037
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $195,037 $0 $195,037
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $97,518.50 | $20,000 | $117,518.50
Sub-total | $682,629.50 | $20,000 | $702,629.50
Fiscal Details




Fiscal Details

Horizons Counseling Center, Inc (Vendor #156808 B001)

State Current Revised

polassl Title Fiscal | Modified | ["°re3%€/ | modified
Year Budget Budget

102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $147,044 $0 $147,044
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $147,044 $0 $147,044
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $147,044 $0 $147,044
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $110,792 $20,000 $130,792
Sub-total | $551,924 $20,000 $571,924

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc (Vendor #177184 B001)

Class/ . §tate Curfent Increase/ Revi_s.ed
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $21,031 $0 $21,031
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $21,031 $0 $21,031
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $21,031 $0 $21,031
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $10.515.50 | $20,000 $30,515.50
Sub-total | $73,608.50 | $20,000 $93,608.50
Phoenix Houses of New England, Inc (Vendor #177589 B001)
Classl Titl scal | Modfied | mcreasel | GoiEcy
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $1,130,502 $0 $1,130,502
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $1,130,502 $0 $1,130,502
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $1,206,771 $0 $1,206,771
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $606,745.50 $20,000 $626,745.50
Sub-total | $4,074,520.50 | $20,000 | $4,074,520.50

National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Services (Vendor #177265 R001)
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Budget Budget

102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $335,444 $0 $335,444
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $335,444 $0 $335,444
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $335,444 $0 $335,444
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $211,488 $20,000 $231,488
Sub-total $1,217,820 $20,000 $1,237,820

Fiscal Details




Fiscal Details

Southeastern New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services (Vendor #155292 B001)

State Current Revised
poiassl Title Fiscal Modified | ['CTe2S¢/ | pogified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $1,090,345 $0 $1,090,345
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $1,090,345 $0 $1,090,345
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $1,090,345 $0 $1,090,345
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $545,172.50 $20,000 $565,172.50
Sub-total | $3,816,207.50 | $20,000 | $3,836,207.50
Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc (Vendor #177195 B009)
Class/ State Current Increase/ Revised
Account Title Fiscal Modified Decrease Modified
Year Budget Budget
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $474,623 $0 $474,623
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $474,623 $0 $474,623
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $629,896 $0 $629,893
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $318,246.50 $20,000 $338,246.50
Sub-total | $1,897,385.50 | $20,000 | $1,917,385.50
The Youth Council (Vendor #154886 B001)
. Current Revised
e | SWeEECH | wodfed | (SISl | ooied
Budget Budget
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2013 $58,137 $0 $58,137
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2014 $58,137 $0 $58,137
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2015 $58,137 $0 $58,137
102-500734 | Contracts for Prog Svc 2016 $29,068.50 $20,000 $49,068.50
Sub-total $203,479.50 $20,000 $223,479.50
cgc(':?' $21,446,800 | $280,000 | $21,726,800
$26,663,129 $280,000 $26,943,129
Fiscal Details
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
Contract

This fourth Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support
Services contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 4”) dated July 16, 20185, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
20, 2012, (item #110) (hereinafter referred to as “Contract”), and amended by an agreement (Amendment
#1 to the Contract) approved on June 5, 2013 (Item #102A), (Amendment #2 to the Contract) approved
on June 18, 2014 (Item #99), and (Amendment #3 to the Contract) approved on June 24, 2015 (item #29)
by Governor and Executive Council, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37),
the Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties thereto
and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor agree to add scope of work and to increase the price
limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this Amendment #4,
the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $4,843,837.00.

3. Add Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

4. Delete in its entirety Exhibit B Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment
and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism “/
Amendment #4 Contractor Initials:
Page 1 of 3 Date: j




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date’ ’ Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH
Associate Commissioner

GreaterNashua Council on Alcoholism

)5 by M —

Date ! NAME Vo i< Kelle e
TITLE s dant & CEO

Acknowledgement: o
State of %\) a  County of “Stl}ﬂ\s( glb on 7) ] 7/] < before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idedtified abové, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Koo 103N

Namd and ?tle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KARYN J. SMITH, Notwry Pubic
My Commiseion Expires February 28, 2020
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism “{/
Amendment #4 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

LR N
Title: W’\Uﬂ\[

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism ¥/
Amendment #4 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Improving Current Services and Expanding Capacity for New Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A-1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1.  The Contractor shall complete the Scope of Work described in Exhibit A-1 from the

effective date of Amendment #4 through September 30, 2015.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall provide for Department approval, within 5 business days from the
effective date of the Amendment #4, a plan that describes the scope of work that will be
provided to improve current services and/or to expand capacity for substance use
disorder treatment and recovery support services, as defined in Section 2.2. below.

2.1.1. The Contractor may amend the Department approved plan, defined in Section
2.1 above, by submitting an amended plan to the Department for approval,
before the end date in Section 1.1. above.

2.2. The Contractor shall complete at least one of the Improving Current Services and
Expanding Capacity projects from the four Categories listed below (Sections 2.2.1
through 2.2.4):

2.2.1. Improving Existing Facilities such as, but not limited to:
2.2.1.1. Installing camera systems to increase safety for clients and staff.

2.2.2. Purchasing Equipment, Software, and Program Supplies such as, but not limited
to:

2.2.21. Replacing equipment that is not in good working order to improve
staff efficiency and client safety;

2.2.2.2. Purchasing equipment to support new staff being hired to expand
service capacity;

2.2.2.3. Purchasing equipment to improve the treatment experience for
clients;

2.2.2.4. Purchasing computers to allow clients to look for work and otherwise
prepare to transition back into and contribute to the community;

2.2.2.5. Purchasing Electronic Medical Record, Billing, and other software
systems to increase efficiency and meet Federal requirements;

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials Q\V
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Improving Current Services and Expanding Capacity for New Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A-1

223.

2.2.4.

2.2.5.

2.2.2.6. Purchasing toiletries and other necessities for clients who are not yet
able to purchase these on their own.

Purchasing Program Materials (curricula, journals, books, etc.) such as:

2.2.31. Replacing program materials that are outdated, worn out and/or
depleted;

2.2.3.2. Purchasing new program materials to implement and/or expand
evidence based practices for new and current programs.

Paying for Staff/Consultant Costs such as, but not limited to:

2.2.41. Temporarily increasing the hours of existing staff to complete short-
term projects, such as developing policies, procedures, protocols,
forms and case management formats for new programs to expand
capacity;

2.2.4.2. Training new and existing staff to implement and/or expand evidence
based practices for new and current programs;

2.2.43. Hiring consultants to assist with obtaining necessary licensures and
designing new programming to expand capacity;

2.2.4.4. Staff or consultant time to survey the service gaps in the community
and develop strategies and programming for filling those gaps;

2.2.45. Covering the initial costs of hiring new staff to increase efficiency by
filling current gaps in program staffing or to expand capacity.

The Contractor may propose an alternate Improving Current Services and
Expanding Capacity project(s) that is not list above in Sections 2.2.1 through
2.2.4. and that is compliance with the Catalog of Domestic Assistance ##93.959.

2.3. The Contractor will submit a progress report to the Department by September 10, 2015
against the defined plan approved by the Department.

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit B Amendment #4

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

l. Funding

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services and Exhibit
A-1, Scope of Services.

A. Funding for Exhibit A, Amendment #3
For the period of July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, funding for Exhibit A Amendment #3
is funded by various sources as a percentage of the total amount of $753,002.00 as follows:

» 46% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA
#93.959);

+ 22% General Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention,
Intervention and Treatment Funds; and

+ 32% General funds.

The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services in
compliance with funding requirements above.

The Contractor shail comply with Sections [l through Viii for payment and invoicing instructions
for services provided in Exhibit A Amendment #3.

B. Funding for Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services

From the effective date of Amendment #4 through September 30, 2015, the State shall pay the
Contractor an amount not to exceed $20,000, for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

Funding is 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93.959),

The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services in compliance
with funding requirements.

The Contractor shall comply with Section |X for payment and invoicing instructions for services
provided in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

. Payment Methodology

The Contractor will be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services identified in Exhibit A
Amendment #3, section B. The following terms and conditions detailed in this Exhibit B
Amendment #3 will apply to all services unless expressly stated otherwise.

The Contractor will use and apply all contract funds from the State for costs and expenses as
detailed in the Service Reimbursement Table below. Allowable costs and expenses shall be
determined by the State in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and reguiations.
Effective July 1, 2014, the contractor will receive a payment for each service at the rates and
within the limits described below. For clients receiving DHHS supported services, the contractor
may not charge the client, any 3" party payor, and DHHS a combined rate that is more than the
rate established by BDAS for that level of service or any other fees. These parties shall be
charged in the following order:

Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials —
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #4

-—

The maximum allowed charge will be billed to the client’s insurer, if applicable.

2. The client will be charged their portion of the maximum allowed charge based on the
BDAS published sliding fee scale.
3. The balance of the maximum allowed charge, after deducting the client's portion and
insurance payment, if applicable, shall be charged to DHHS.

Service Reimbursement Table

An “X” below denotes the services, and their corresponding Rates and Service Limits; the Contractor
will be reimbursed for in accordance with the Payment Methodology above.

Contractor’s . DHHS
Services Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Established _ .
Recovery Services Rate Service Limit
X Evaluation — ASAM Level 1 providers only $225 1 every 90 days
X Outpatient — Individual $18.75/unit*** $190 of
combined
X individual &
Outpatient — Group $5.00/unit*** _group/week
X $320 (4
Intensive Outpatient* $80.00/day days)/week
X Low-Intensity Residential — Adult, including $700 (7 days)
pregnant and parenting women $100.00/day /week
X $896 (7 days)
Low-Intensity — Adolescent $128.00/day /week
X $910 (7 days)
_High-Intensity Residential — Adult $130.00/day /week
Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant
X & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): Room $462 (7 days)
& Board Only $66.00/day fweek
Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant
X & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5); $1138.20
Clinical Services $162.60/day (7 days) /week
X $1190 (7 days)
Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent $170.00/day /week
X Recovery Support Services: Individual $15.00/unit*** $160 of
combined
X individual &
Recovery Support Services: Group $5.00/unit*™** group/week
X Recovery Support Services: Continuous $60 of combined
Recovery Monitoring — Attempted** $15.00/contact attempted and
completed/month
X for the first 6
Recovery Support Services: Continuous months post
Recovery Monitoring — Completed $15.00/contact discharge
Cost Up to the Budget
Enhanced Services Reimbursement | Amount
Medication Assisted Treatment Phase 1
X Planning and Phase 2 Implementation: Staff | $30 per hour per
Time staff person Up to $6,770
X Medication Assisted Treatment Services: According to Up to $67,760

Exhibit B Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit B Amendment #4

Service Reimbursement Table

An “X” below denotes the services, and their corresponding Rates and Service Limits; the Contractor

will be reimbursed for in accordance with the Payment Methodology above.

DHHS

Contractor's | g\ pstance Use Disorder Treatment and Established

Services

Physician Visits and Medication Exhibit B-2
Medication
Assisted
Treatment
Services Fee
Table

* The Contractor will bill the per diem rate for Intensive Outpatient Treatment services only on
those days when the client attends individual and/or group counseling associated with the
program. It is expected that each day of attendance includes a minimum of 3 hours of group
and/or individual counseling services.

**Attempted Contact is at least 3 attempts to contact a client over the course of at least one
week,

*** A unit is equal to 15 minutes of service

It is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a
consistent level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array
will also be monitored by the Department via WITS. Failure to meet this requirement may
result in amendment to or termination of the contract. At a minimum, contractors must
provide the array of services they contracted to provide for in SFY15.

lll. Performance Incentives:
A. Access to Services:
Treatment contractors shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or
subsequent call, from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within at
least 2 business days following the day the call was received and shall conduct initial
eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally at the time of first contact (direct
communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring agency, but not
later than 5 business days following the date of first contact. For each client who
screens eligible for services and starts receiving services, whether for the identified
level of care or interim services, within 10 business days following the eligibility
screening, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive payment of $75.00.
Access incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for services in the
previous calendar month.

B. Completion:
For each client who is discharged from the program because they have completed
treatment or transferred to another treatment provider as recorded in the Discharge
Type field of the WITS Discharge Module, the treatment contractor will receive an
incentive payment of $75.00. Completion incentives will be calculated and paid on a
monthly basis for services in the previous calendar month.

Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials J i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit B Amendment #4

C. Client Outcomes:
If a client who was discharged from the program meets at least 3 of the Outcome
criteria below in the 3™ and/or 6™ month post-discharge, as evidenced by the WITS
Follow-Up module, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive payment in the
amount of $50. The 3™ month post discharge is considered to be 60 — 120 days post
discharge. The 6™ month post discharge is considered to be 150 — 210 days post
discharge. Outcomes incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for
clients meeting criteria in the previous calendar month. It is expected that at least
50% of discharged clients will be contacted for 3 and/or 6 month follow-up over the
contract year.
i. Abstinence: The client reports reduced or no substance use in the past 30
days.
ii. Employment/Education. The client reports increased or retained
employment or the client reports returning to or staying in school.
iii. Crime and Criminal Justice: The client reports no arrests in the past 30 days.
iv. Stability in Housing: The client reports being in stable housing.
v. Social Connectedness: The client reports engagement in Recovery Support
Services, Care Coordination, and/or Community Based Support Groups in
the past 30 days.

D. Performance Incentive Payout Limits:
Performance incentives are limited to no more than 6% of the total contract amount
annually. The total amount paid out during the contract year will never exceed the
total contract amount. DHHS is not obligated to make payment for any incentives
that occur outside of the current contract year; however, incentives may be carried
over to future contract years at the discretion of DHHS.

E. Failure to Meet Deliverables:

The Contractor shall comply with all contract requirements as detailed in Exhibit A
section B, Required Services. Upon determination that Contractor may not be
meeting the required deliverables, within two (2) weeks BDAS will provide a written
correction action plan. Within two (2) weeks of notification of the corrective action
plan, Contractor will provide a written remedial plan. BDAS will monitor the
corrective actions for 60 days. Failure to meet requirements of the corrective action
plan within 60 days may result in withholding of any or all payments or termination of
the contract.

F. Invoicing & Billing:
The Contractor shall complete all biling for all services (except for Medication
Assisted Treatment Staff Time for Phase | and Phase Il), defined in this Agreement
through the WITS system according to protocols established by BDAS.

The Contractor will use the Department supplied billing sheet to complete billing for
Medication Assisted Treatment Staff Time for Phase | and Phase II.

The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract
funds to purchase or lease any equipment with a cost in excess of two thousand five
hundred dollars ($2500) and with a useful life beyond one year.

IV. Allocation of Funding:

Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials \(
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It is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a
consistent level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array
will also be monitored by the Department via WITS. The contractor is prohibited from spending
down more than the sum of the total contract amount that includes the cost of the client services
and related incentives.

V. Availability of Alternative Funding:

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services may terminate or amend the
contract should alternate third party payors, including Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program and/or insurance available on the New Hampshire Insurance Exchange
cover any of the services included in this contract.

VI. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
(SAPT) Block Grant funds:

The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.
Restrictions on SAPT Block Grant on State and Contractor expenditures include:

The State may not:

¢ Provide inpatient hospital services except under those conditions outlined in the regulations.

Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

Purchase or improve land.

Purchase, construct, or permanently improve buildings or other facilities.

Purchase major medical equipment.

Satisfy any requirement for the expenditure of non-Federal funds as a condition for the

receipt of Federal funds. (in-kind)

Provide financial assistance to any entity other than a public or non-profit private entity.

* Provide individuals with hypodermic needles or syringes.

e Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in FFYS1 for treatment
services provided in penal or correctional institutions of the State.

The Contractor shall not:

o Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting testing for
the etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is
accompanied by appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

o Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting any form
of needle exchange, free needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of
needles for intravenous drug abusers.

VIl. Charitable Choice:

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious organizations are able to
equally compete for Federal substance abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without
impairing the religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the religious
freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a, 45
CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory
provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are applicable to the
SAPT Block Grant program. No funds provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government to organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended for
inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. If an
organization conducts such activities, it must offer them separately, in time or location, from the
programs or services for which it receives funds directly from SAMHSA or the relevant S'\ta/te or

Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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local government under any applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

VIIl. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to adjusting amounts within the budgets and within the price limitation,
can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of Governor and Executive Council.

Payment and Invoicing Instructions for Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services

A

Payment for said services shall be made as follows:
i. The Contractor will submit one invoice by October 10, 2015, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred for the period defined in
Section “I. Funding, B. Funding for Exhibit A-1,” above.

i. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.
The invoice must be submitted to:
Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

The invoice shall include an itemized listing of expenses, amounts and dates when the
expenses incurred.

The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation to support evidence of actual
expenditures identified on the invoice and in accordance with the Department approved
project, such as but not limited to: a copy of the approval from the Department to expend the
funding; a detailed description of the scope of work that was completed; copies of invoices
for purchases; and/or the names of the Contractor's staff, dates and hours worked, and
amounts being billed for the specific project.

Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the Department in accordance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

The Contractor shall not bill for reimbursement of expenses incurred before or after the
period defined in Section “I. Funding, B. Funding for Exhibit A-1,” above.

The Contractor shall obtain Department approval prior to incurring the expense to provide
the scope of work described in the Department approved plan.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this contract may be withheld, in whole, or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State of Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT)
Block Grant funds are defined in Section “VI Limitations and restrictions of federal
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT) Block Grant funds,” above.

Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials v n/
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State of New Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 16, 1983. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10" day of April, A.D. 2015

Fey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
l, /\/}A )(F{) IQ;OOYIUVIOh , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elécted Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract SIgnatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of ‘ ‘ ONOUSH
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 07/ / )g
(Date

RESOLVED: Thatthe __ P/ 28iclo it & (€D

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

theJ7 day of A{JQU ,20_15_.

(Date Contrdict Sighed)
4. “Pﬁ“ £ lCQ{ ,0)/\0 & is the duly elected &rﬂS]‘(ﬁQfﬁ’ & O/ED
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

/Q)ﬁ (Bl

Slgnature he Electgd Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of 1 l rovah

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this J Z #h day of édﬂ% 20 S’

By %)\d’ %ﬂﬂ\l\()h )
/f/{a’\ ’/M

(Name of Elegted Officer of the Agen-cy)
(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

{(NOTARY SEAL)

KARYN J. SMITH, Notary Public
Commission Expires: My Commission Expires February 25, 2020

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



i DATE (WM/DD/YYYY)
:&RD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 612412015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. {f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
CONTACT

PRODUCER K|mbe[h! G! itekunst

H FAX
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. P{! °§NtE! £xt1:603-882-2766 {AIC, No):

11 Concord Street

Nashua NH 03064 ADDRESS: kgutekunst@eatonberube.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A :Hanover Insurance
INSURED HARHO INSURER B :QBE |nsurance Corp
Harbor HSomes, Inc INSURER € :Lexington
45 High Street .
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. INSURERD ;
Nashua NH 03060 INSUREREE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 273778048 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL] POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/DDIYYYY) | (MMDD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY Y ZBV970714702 71112015 7/1/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMI%ES S (Ea occurrence) | $1,000,000
J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
X | poLicy ORO: LOC $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AHVO706003 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 o nidant )STNGLE EMIT T 51,000,000
ANY AUTO R BODILY INJURY {Per person} | $
ﬁbLng'WED SZHli:EEZ goou_v INJURY (Per accident) | $
K | NON ROPERTY DAMAGE
X | HIRED AUTOS . AUTOS (Per accidert) $
$
A X |UMBRELLALIAB (X | occur UHV970913302 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $5,000,000
DED IX | RETENTION $0 _ $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION QWC300056 11/26/2014 | 11/26/2015 TchB:s: TAITM % ] OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E] N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYER $500,000
If yes, desaribe u
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $500,000
C | Professional Liability 01757042615 711/2014 71112015 $1,000,000 $3,000,000
Abuse & Molestation $1,000,000 $3,000,000
Empl Benefits Liability $1,000,000 $3,000,000
i

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Additional Named Insureds:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - FID# 020351932

Harbor Homes |1, Inc.

Harbor Homes lli, Inc.

Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080

Milford Regional Counselmg Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360

See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

DHHS ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Contracts and Procurement Unit
g?ragrgu#ﬂ'%%gg? Pleasant St AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
]

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #:
g o
A‘COR, D ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Pageq  of 4
AGENCY NAMED INSURED
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. Harbor Homes, Inc
45 High Street
POLICY NUMBER Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc.
Nashua NH 03060
CARRIER NAIC CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE:
ADDITIONAL REMARKS
THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light, Inc. -FID# 020481648
HH Ownership, Inc.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



GNCA Mission Statement and Overviews Page 1 of 1

Web-Library

An Internal Employee Resource Center

Home

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. (Keystone Hall)

Mission Statement

To empower the chemically dependent person to
Take responsibility toward recovery through
Professional counseling in a caring environment

Overview

¢ Greater Nashua area's only non-medical substance abuse detoxification/assessment
center

¢ Uniquely geared to address needs for the homeless, uninsured and underinsured
population
® Established in 1990 to serve both male and female clients

Back to Mission Statement and Qverviews

http://weblibrary.harborhomes.org/agency%20overview%20and%20structure/gnca%20miss... 5/8/2015
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MELANSONIgIFNEZ

ACCOUNTANTS * AUDITORS

102 Perimeter Road
Nashua, NH 03063
(603)882-11

melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Additional Offices:

To the Board of Directors of Acndovrer,kr;m,:/l )
i i reenfield,
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Mo hestor NH
Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Nashua Council
on Alcoholism, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit



procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. as of
June 30, 2014, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc.’s fiscal year
June 30, 2013 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion
on those audited financial statements in our report dated December 9, 2013. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financia!
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the finaricial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated January 15, 2015 on our consideration of the Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal controi over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Greater Nashua
Council on Alcoholism’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Melason Hoath

January 15, 2015



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2013)

ASSETS
201 2013
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 71,776 $ 88,609
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 222,351 207,453
Other current assets 6,613 6,362
Total Current Assets 300,740 302,424
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 6,013,809 6,206,150
Restricted cash 25,228 25,220
Total Assets $ 6,339,777 $ 6,533,794
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 108,397 $ 21,759
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 117,372 105,592
Current portion of mortgages payable 150,022 147,060
Total Current Liabilities 375,791 274,411
Long Term Liabilities:
Due to related organizations 177,744 132,707
Mortgages payable, long-term 3,721,966 3,872,111
Mortgages payabie, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000
Total Long Term Liabilities 5,784,710 5,889,818
Total Liabitities 6,160,501 6,164,229
Unrestricted Net Assets 179,276 369,565
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 6,339,777 $ 6,53379%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

Support and Revenue: 2014 2013
Support:
State of New Hampshire $ 1,462,099 $ 1,448,696
Federal grants 84,602 352,072
Donations 13,040 25,985
Other grants 6,136 4,000
Rewenue:
Medicaid 573,892 602,423
Third party insurance 42,767 -
Other income 28,026 4,978
Contracted senices 21,110 21,400
Client billings, net of allowances and write-offs (14,204) 70,904
Medicare 3,252 -
Interest income 41 36
Total Support and Revenue 2,220,761 2,530,494
Expenses:
Program senices 2,152,850 2,376,614
General and administrative 225,721 156,453
Fundraising 32,479 38,736
Total Expenses 2,411,050 2,571,803
Change in Net Assets (190,289) (41,309)
Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 369,565 410,874
Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year $ 179,276 $ 369,565

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

Program General and 2014 2013

Senvices Administrative Fundraising Total Total
Adwertising $ 2,575 $ 108 $ 74 $ 2,757 $ 3,162
Accounting fees - 7,075 - 7,075 9,675
Client senvices 63,568 238 - 63,807 100,089
Client transportation 13,628 - - 13,628 10,935
Conferences and conventions 455 789 - 1,244 1,100
Contract senvices 7,799 17,606 - 25,405 167,639
Depreciation 191,406 4,685 - 196,091 199,349
Employee benefits 179,637 43,685 1,836 225,158 212,691
Food 92,960 - - 92,960 92,991
Garbage and trash removal 2,558 68 - 2,626 2,118
Information technology 668 362 - 1,030 527
Insurance 12,430 947 - 13,377 15,922

Joumals and publications 527 12 - 539 -
Membership dues 2,513 592 - 3,105 707
Miscellaneous 5,350 1,652 319 7,321 17,494
Mortgage interest 241,238 13,438 - 254,676 258,000
Office supplies 5,395 363 - 5758 11,714
Operating and maintenance 53,428 1,627 - 55,055 70,496
Operational supplies 24,690 170 - 24,860 30,814
Payroll taxes 100,169 10,922 2,328 113,419 116,503
Postage 1,727 275 - 2,002 3,061
Professional fees 7,100 3,933 3,150 14,183 3,164
Salaries and wages 1,029,405 114,268 24772 1,168,445 1,121,274
Snow removal 8,677 210 - 8,887 5,181
Staff development 3,728 29 - 3,757 7,713
Staff expenses 672 508 - 1,180 583
Staff travel 6,065 126 - 6,191 10,532
Telephone 3,107 72 - 3,179 5,420
Utilities 73,132 1,781 - 74,913 72,065
Vehicle expenses 18,243 179 - 18,422 20,884
Total functional expenses $ 2,152,850 $ 225721 § 32,479 $ 2,411,050 $ 2,571,803

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2013)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 2014 2013
Change in net assets $ (190,289) $ (41,309)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activties:

Depreciation 196,091 199,349
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable (14,898) 272,091
Promises to give - 25,000
Other cument assets (250) (6,362)
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable 86,639 (29,716)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11,780 (17,418)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 89,073 401,635
Cash Flow From Investing Activties:
Purchase of fixed assets (3,750) (20,629)
Change in resenve for replacements (8) (12)
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (3,758) (20,641)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Change in due to related organizations 45,035 (191,294)
Principal payments on long term debt (147,183) (142,360)
Net Cash Used By Financing Activities (102,148) (333,654)
Net increase (Decrease) (16,833) 47,340
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 88,609 41,269
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 71,776 $ 88,609

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid $ 255,421 $ 252,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Organization:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization providing recovery support services which are evidence-based,
gender-specific, and culturally competent. The programs include residential,
transitional housing, outpatient, intensive outpatient, family-based substance
abuse services, pregnant and parenting women and children and offender
re-entry services initiative.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Organiza-
tion used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Con-
tributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organization is required
to distinguish between contributions that increase permanently restricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net assets. It also
requires recognition of contributions, including contributed services, meeting
certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards establish standards for
financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and require a Statement of
Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a Statement of Functional
Expenses, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment of
cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.



Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period
in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions
are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization’s management and
adjusted as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt
expense). In determining the amount required in the allowance account for
the year ended June 30, 2014, management has taken into account a variety
of factors.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been sum-
marized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the
Statement of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.



Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volun-
teers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities because the criteria
for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after they were filed.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.
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5.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institu-

tions was $97,004 and $113,829 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The difference between the carrying amount and the bank balance represents
reconciling items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks, which
have not been processed by the bank. The bank balance is categorized as
follows:

2014 2013
Insured by FDIC $ 115,750 $ 153,103
Total Bank Balance $ 115,750 $ 153,103

Accounts Receivable, Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist mainly of amounts
due from clients for services and miscellaneous charges.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2014 201

Land $ 742500 $ 742,500
Land improvements 1,743 1,743
Building 5,646,560 5,646,560
Building improvements 22,637 18,887
Fumniture and fixtures 34,511 34,511
Equipment 11,276 11,276
Vehicles 22,297 22,297

Subtotal 6,481,524 6,477,774

Less: accumulated depreciation (467,715) (271,624)

Total $ 6,013,809 $ 6,206,150
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Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled
$196,091 and $199,349, respectively.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years
Building and improvements 30
Land improvements 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-7
Equipment 5
Vehicles 5

Reserve for Replacements:

Reserve for replacements consist of funds required by the New Hampshire
Housing Finance Authority and is used for the replacement of property with
prior approval.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:

2014 2013
Accrued payroll and related liabilites $ 105,848 $ 94111
Accrued interest 11,346 10,601
HAS liability 148 -
Other accruals 30 880
Total $ 117,372 $ 105,592

Due to Related Organizations:
Due to related organizations represents long-term liabilities due to related

entities whereby common control is shared with the same Board of Directors.
The related organizations and their balances at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

12



2014

013

Current:
Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 55249 %
Healthy at Home, Inc. 95,440
Southern New Hampshire HV/AIDS Task Force 27,055

35,584
94,930
2,193

Total $ 177,744 $ 132,707

Mortgages Payable:

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

A mortgage payable to a local bank, due in monthly

instaliments of $10,133, including principal and

interest at 5.00% for the first three years, adjusting

on each three year anniversary date based on the

prevailing three year Federal Home Loan Bank

Amortizing Advance Rate plus three and one-quarter

percent, maturing in 2042, secured by real property. $ 1821818

A mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community

Loan Fund, Inc., due in monthly installments of

$13,850, including principal and interest at 8.00%,

maturing in 2032, secured by real property, guaranteed

by a related organization. 1,850,170

A mortgage payable to NCB Capital Impact, due in 60

monthly consecutive installments of accrued and

unpaid interest at 5.25%, requiring a principal

reduction of $100,000 per annum, maturing in

2015, secured by real property, guaranteed by a related

organization. 200,000

Total 3,871,988
Less amount due within one year (150,022)

Long term debt, net of current portion $ 3,721,966

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned

long-term debt.

13



10.

1.

12.

13.

Year Amount

2015 $ 150,022
2016 153,162
2017 56,553
2018 60,151
2019 63,992
Thereafter 3,388,108

Total $ 3,871,988

Mortgages Payable, Deferred:

The Organization has received special financing to partially fund a new
building. These notes are interest free for thirty years with principal payments
calculated annually at the discretion of the lender. The balance of these
notes at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $1,885,000.

Transactions with Related Parties:

The Organization offers counseling services to the clients of related organiza-
tions. These services are provided whenever requested.

The Organization receives janitorial and maintenance services performed by
clients of Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organization. The Organization also
receives payroll services from the related organization.

The Organization is considered a commonly controlled organization with
several related entities by way of its common board of directors. However,
management feels that the principal prerequisites for preparing combined
financial statements are not met, and therefore more meaningful separate
statements have been prepared.

Net Assets Released from Restriction:

There were no restricted net assets during the year ended June 30, 2014,
and as a result, no net assets were released from restrictions.

Retirement Plan:

After one year of continuous service with the Organization, employees may
contribute a portion of their wages to a Section 403(b) retirement plan. The

14



14.

15.

16.

Organization matches a percentage of the employee contribution based on
years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $26,267 and $20,927,
respectively.

Operating Leases:

The Organization leases office equipment under non-cancellable lease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2015.
Equipment rental expense totaled $9,500 for the year ended June 30, 2014.
Estimated future minimum lease payments on these leases are as follows:

Year Amount
2015 $ 10,409
2016 224

Total $ 10633

Concentration of Risk:

A material part of the Organization’s revenue is dependent upon support from
the State of New Hampshire and Medicaid, the loss of which would have a
materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the year ended June
30, 2014, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 65% and Medicaid
accounted for 26% of total revenues.

Fair Value Measurements:

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies
whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be
measured at their fair market value. The standard does not expand the use
of fair value in any new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair
value refers to the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants as of the measurement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies
the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those
assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of

15



price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

o Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

The estimated fair value of the Organization’s financial instruments is
presented in the following table:

Carrying

Value Fair Value Level One Level Two Level Three
Mortgages
payable $ 3871988 $ 3871988 §$ - $ 3871988 $ -
Montgages
payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000 - 1,885,000 -
Due to related
organizations 177,744 177,744 - - 177,744

$ 5756988 § 177,744

Total liabilities $ 5034732 § 5934732 $

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those financial instruments.

16



17.

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level Three
Due to
Beginning balance June 30, 2013 $ 132,707
Advances 114,210
Reductions (69,173)
Ending balance June 30, 2014 $ 177,744

Subsequent Events:

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2014 through January 15, 2015,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have been
evaluated by management for disclosure.

On August 20, 2014, the Organization entered into a revolving line of credit
agreement with the bank. Under this agreement $250,000 is available to the
Organization to provide for working capital requirements through September 30,
2016. Monthly interest only payments are required at a variable rate, adjusting
daily at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.0%. Harbor Homes, Inc., a
related party (see note 11), shall provide an unlimited and unconditional
guaranty of payment.

Management has determined that there were no material events other than

those noted above, that would require disclosure in the Organization’s
financial statements through this date.

17
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Harbor Homes, Inc., HH Ownership, inc., Welcoming Light, Inc., Healthy At Home, Inc., Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.,
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc., Southern NH HIV Task Force)
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- (RDP Committee)
Phil Richard - - (Facilities Committee)
- (Covernance Committee)
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PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present
2002-Pyesent
1997-Present
1995-Present
1995-Present
1982-Present

2003-2006

1980 - 1982

1979 - 1980

1978 - 1979

1977 - 1979

1976

1971 - 1976

President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force

President & CEQ, GNCA, Inc. Nashua, NH

President & CEQ, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH

President & CEQ, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., Milford, NH

President & CEQ, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH

President & CEQ, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as chief executive ofTicer for nonprofit corporation (and affiliates) providing
residential, supported employment, and social club services for persons with long-term mental illness
and/or homeless. Responsible for initiation, development, and oversight of 33 programs comprising a
$10,000,000 operating budget; proposal development resulting in more than $3,000,000 in grants annually;
oversight of 330 management and direct care professionals.

Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations

Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA

Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 mentally ill/ mentally
retarded clients, Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20 residential coordinators.
Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs. Provided emergency
consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group homes and one
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management, quality
assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department,

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center II, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA

Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

Program Counselor/Supervisor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wellesley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA

Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



2
EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975-1977  Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971-1975  Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker — Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers —- NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW
PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977  Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975-1976  Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983-1984  Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 -1984  Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH

1990-1991  Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH

1978-1979  Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS
s Valedictorian Award received at high school graduation;
» National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
o University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
¢ NAMINH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change
s Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007
MEMBERSHIPS

Former Chair, Governor’s State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care

National Association of Social Workers

Board Member, Greater Nashua Housing & Development Foundation, Inc.

Former Member, Rotary Club, Nashua, NH



Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA [

PROFILE

e 12 years experience in Public Accounting ¢ Trining experience

* Management experience o Knowledge of multiple computer programs
¢ Diversified industry exposure ¢ Excellent client rapport

®  Counselor and mentor ® Tax preparation experience

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Jan. 2009-Present  Vice President of Finance Hatbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates

Jan. 2007 — Oct. 2008  Auwdit Manager Ernst Young LLP, Manchester, NH

Managed audits of private corporations with revenues up to $260 million
Assisted as manager of audits for public corporations with revenues up to §400 million

Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial statements, 10Q quartedy filings and 10K annual

filings
Analyzed and reviewed intemal control under Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

Prepared management comments in conjunction with material weakness or significant
deficiencies

Jun. 1997 - Jan. 2007  Audit Supervisor Melanson Heath & Company, P.C., Nashua, NH

Supervise/train various teams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedures

Audit services include balance sheet recondiliation including inventory control
Preparation and presentation of financial statements

Preparation of management comment letters for internal quality improvement
Assist clients with all aspects of accounting

Preparation of budgets and cash forccasting

Consulting services to clients including maximization of profits

Extensive corporate tax preparation experience

1993 — 1997 Accounting/Office Manager Hammar Hardware Company, Nashua, NH

Management of a five-person staff
Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliation

Responsible for inventory management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external auditors

* Prepared monthly internal financial statements
Responsible for payroll including quarterlies and year-end reporting

Je



EDUCATION

1988-1991  Rivier College, Nashua, NH — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE

Excel, Word, Powerpoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, Quickbooks,
Peachtree, T-Value, various auditing software programs

3



Annette Escalante, MSW, LADC

To locate a position where | can utilize my skills and experience to develop programs
and services for the economically disadvantaged.

Undergradvate Degree: Springfield College, BA Major: Human Services
Graduate Degree: Universilty of New Hampshire, MSW Mdgijor: Social Work
Currentty working towards LICSW

licensed Alcohol Drug Counselor (LADC) State of New Hampshire

ill :
Budget Development

* Substionce Abuse .
o HIV/AIDS »  Grant Writing/Report Management
+ Domeslic Violence/ Rape Crisis ¢ Program Planning and Evaluation
e« OQutreach to Sex Workers ¢ Regulatory Compliance
s Detoxification Programs * Palicy and Procedure Development
¢ Comectional Institutions ¢ Supervisory Experience
« Culturally Diverse Populations s Program Development
s« Federally Funded Programs + Group, Family and Individual Counseling
+ Gender Specific Programming for e Community Networking

women ¢ Volunteer Coordination

7/09-Present: Vice President

Bl Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH
In this position, my responsibilities include:

Oversight of all clinical and administration programs and personnel.

Develop and supervise provisions of all clinical records and programs oftered by the
Agency.

Works tin conjunction with CEQ to establish goals and plans for long-term financial and
clinical success of the Agency.

Manage overall budgets, funding sources and accounting to ensure integrity and
compliance with regulations.

Maintain personnel records.

Grant and proposal writing,

Maintain compliance with federal, state, and local regulations.

Screen, frain, and supervise existing and new staff 1o develop and build an effeclive
organization.

Perform stoft job performance evaluations.

8ulld and maintain effective relationships with government agencies, service providers,
community partners, volunteers, and philanthropic organizations.

Maintain a high level of professional and ethical standards.

Any angd all other duties as assigned by the CEOQ.




11/2007-7/09:  Administrator of Women Offenders and Family Services
New Hampshire Department of Corrections-Commissioner's Office, Concord, NH.
In this position, my responsibilities included:

Responsible for programming and services for women offenders in the state adult
comreclional system including probation, parole, and state correctional facilities.
Established and implemented a Co-Occuming program {PTSD and Substance Abuse)
for female offenders at the New Hampshire State Prison for Women.,

Establishing goals and objectives for state corectional systems within the framework
of the department's philosophy, In¢luding planning, organizing, implementing,
directing and monitoring state gender-responsive programs and services, as well as
developing policies, procedures, and standards for the provision of such programs
and services.

Write standards for, execute, and monitor all non-clinical contracts with service
providers who work exclusively with women offenders.

Review and provide feedback on an ongoing basis on all clinicai contracts and
services for women offenders regarding consistency with contract language and
gender-responsive principles.

Establish and coordinate partnerships, and maintain working relationships within the
department of health and human services, with other govemment agencies, with
communities, and with community-based organizations, volunteers, advocacy
groups. the academic community, and other external stakeholiders.

Developed and implemented a Trauma Training for the New Hampshire Department
of Comrrections Academy, Curmrently working on Trauma Training for the New
Hampshire Police Academy.

Provide technical assistance to the women's facility warden and fisld managers
regarding issues related to women offenders and gendef-responsive programs,
services, and practices.

Provide input regarding necessary data collection and evaluation to measure
effective programming and supervision of women offenders.

Consult with and provide input with other directors regarding appropriate levels of
staffing in both the field and institutions responsible for the management of women
oftenders.

Confer with and make recommendations to the commissioner regarding women
oftender supervision and services, oversee the planning, development, and
implementation of fraining guldelines for staff working with women offenders, and
recommend changes in duties assigned to casework and security staff who work with
women offenders. '
Act as a resource in cases of staff sexual misconduct involving women offenders and
provide input into personnel actions for addressing misconduct involving staff who
work with women offenders and misconduct involving women offenders.

Prepare budget recommendations regarding women offenders’ program services
consistent with the deparimental budge! cycle. Engage in budget formation, grant
applications, and resource allocation activities related to women offenders as
assigned.

Act as liaison to the interagency coordinating council for women otfenders and the
department of comections.

2009: Springfield College Adjunct Professor
in this per diem positlon, my responsibilities include:

L ]

Teaching graduate and undergraduate course.

Courses include Family Therapy and Cuiltural Diversity, Addiction Studies and Mental
Heallh Practicum.

Serving as a field advisor for students.



11/2008-current: Theraplst
RTT Associates-Manchester, NH
In this per diem position, my responsibilities include:

+ Provide individual counssling for men and women to deal with substance abuse and
mental health issues weekly using Motivational Interviewing, Behavioral Therapy and
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

Provide LADC evaluations.

Provide assessments,

Provide recommendations to courts and other reterrals sources and coordinate care
with mental health providers,

5/1999-present. impalred Driver Intervention Program Instructor
Serenity Place, Manchester, NH
In this per diem position, my responsibilities include:
¢ __ Provide 20 hours of aicohol and other drug education classes to mandated clients for
first oftense Driving While Intoxicated (DWi}.
» __Provide Spanish speaking classes.

¢ Provide exit interviews to determine license eligibility.

9/2005-11/2007: Cormrectional Counselor/Case Manager-Changed to Program Coordinator
New Hompshire Departiment of Comections, Gotfstown, NH.,
In collaboration with other management staff, my job responsibilities include creation
and implementation of a gender specific frauma informed programs for female
offenders. My other job responsibilities include:
« Evdluate substance abuse program for successful ouicomes and to ensure best
practice criteria are met.
¢ Supervise substance abuse programs for female offenders at NH State Prison for
women and Shea Farm Transitional Housing Unit.
Supervision of Counselor/Case Managers at the Women's Prison and Shea Farm
Responsibility for Program Development and Assessment,
Supervision of MSW Intems and volunteers,
Responsible for assuring substance abuse programs for female offenders are in
compliance with ACA guidelines,
¢ Provide intake, assessments, LADC evaluagtions, treatment recommendations,
consultation and coordinate care with mental health, classification, Parole and
Probation, and community based organizations.
o Coordinate entry into treatment programs {or female offenders in the community,
s Counsel inmates on various personal issues in regard to thelr transition and continued
adjustment into the community, as well as adjustment within the comrectional system.
* Provide clinical services to inmates with substance abuse and mental health
disorders,
Provide crisis counseling and conflict resolution.
Provide groups such as Anger Management and Victim Impact for female offenders.
Provide translation for Spanish speaking clients.

5/2004-9/2005:; Soclal Worker/Youth Counselor- City of Manchester Youth Services,
Manchester, NH
* Provided crisis counseling to juvenile offenders and their families in the Manchester
areaq.
* Directed youth toward productive behavior away from delinquency.
s Provided Group, individual counseling and family therapy. {(Motivational Interviewing
and Cognitive Behavioral Therapy).
» Substance Abuse individual counseling.
Perform CHINS petitions.
s Admission/discharge planning and community networking working with diverse



services within the community.

* Provide a four-session self-assessment of the use and misuse of alcohol/drug (court
mandated for those clients under 21 yrs of age).

» Provide translation for Spanish speaking clients.

6/2000-5/2004:  Program Monltor- New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Bedford, NH,
+ Monitored low- Income residents in the State of New Hampshire for the Section 8
Program.
+ Assessed and performed income changes for participants in the Section8 Program,
home ownership and Family Self Sufficiency programs.
+ Performed home inspections for program participants yearly 1o make sure their rental
properties were up to HUD and ¢ity codes.
Admission/discharge planning and community networking.
Provided conflict resolution with program participants and landlords.
Made reterrals to supportive services.
Provided assistance in locating affordable housing.
Provide translation services for Spanish speaking tenants, landlords and staff
members.

9/1999-6/2000: Comectional Counselor/Case Manager-, New Hampshire Department of
Corrections, Laconia, NH.
s Provided clinical services to Inmates with substance abuse disorders.
Group and individual counseling pertaining to substance abuse and mental health
disorders.
Provided case management services.
Counseled inmates on various personal Issues in regard to their fransition and
continued adjusiment into the community and within the comections system.
Provide c¢risis counseling and conflict resolution.
Offered educational lectures on o seres of different topics for inmates.
s Coordinated individual service plans, pre-release plans and assessments for
treaiment to be ulilized by the Probation/Parole Officers
» Provided translation services for Spanish speaking inmates and staff members,

11/1997-9/1999: Outreach Program Coordinagtor-New Hampshire AIDS Foundation,
Manchester, NH.

e Program planning, development and implementation of a new drop-in center for
intravenous substance abusers/sex workers geared towards accessing appropriate
substance abuse treatment and prevention of HIV in Manchester, New Hampshire.

s Budget planning ond grant writing.

» Responsible for evaluation of the program’s effectiveness through management of a
data base of statistics and monitoring of program outcomes.

+ Policy and procedure development.

» Responsible for assuring regulatory compliance with State of NH guidelines for the
funding received.

e Provided supervision of all staff and volunteers at the Pine Street Prevention Center.
Coordinated services with community providers in the substance abuse field to
ensure appropriate treatment services for clients.

Provided short term clinical services to clients with substance abuse disorders.
Provide crisis counseling and conflict resolution,

Provided street outreach to substance abusers and sex workers.

Provided outreach with the Manchester Health Department’'s Mobile Van twice a
week.

¢ Provided transiation services for Spanish speaking clients.



7/1996-11/1997:  Youth Outreach Counselor- Cily of Manchester Office of Youth Services,
Manchesier, NH.

Provided sireet outreach to youth at risk.

Provided referrals and mentoring.

Provided short tetm clinical services to clients with substance abuse disorders.
Coordinated crisis intervention for at risk clients.

Provide crisis counseling and conflict resolution.

Provided translation services for Spanish speaking clients.

6/1994-7/1996:  Substance Abuse Counselor- Providence Hospital, Holyoke, MA.

Coordinated services with community providers in the substance abuse field to
ensure appropriate treatment services for clients.

Provided clinical services, group and individual counseling to clients with substance
abuse disorders,

Responsible for coordination of case management services.

Completed intake and referrals for eligible clients.

Facilitated Twelve-Step Groups.

Facilitated Spanish Speaking Support Groups.

Coordinated Methadone intakes and insurance billing.

Provided translation services for Spanish speaking clients

11/1993-6/1995:  Bridge Team Leader- AIDS Allies, Springfield, MA.
In this part time position, | was responsible for :

Program development and planning of a drop in center for intravenous subsiance
abusers/sex workers geared towards accessing appropriate substance abuse
treatment and prevention of HIV in Springfield Massachusetts.

Responsible for policy and procedure development,

Responsible for assuring regulatory compliance with the Springfield Health
Department funding guidelines.

Evaluated and supervised all staff and volunteers ot the Drop in Center.
Coordinated services with community providers in the substance abuse field to
ensure oppropriale lreatment services for clients.

Provided clinical services to clients with substance abuse disorders including
counseling and case management/advocacy.

Provided clothing and created a safe place for sex workers and intravenous drug
abusers.

Provided transiation services for Spanish speaking clients,

2/1990-6/1994:  Counselor Advocate-YWCA, Springfield, MA.

Provided clinical services to clients affected by domestic violence.

Provided twenty-four hour holline coverage for abuse and sexual assautt victims.
Provided Legol advocacy.

Coordinated services with community providers to ensure appropriate services for
clients,

Facilitated support groups for Spanish speaking clients.

Provided HIV/AIDS education to residents of the shelter.

Responsible for assisting with the collection of biling data and demographic and
service statistics.

Provided substance abuse counseling, rape crisis counseling and support groups to
the Latina community.

Provided translation services for Sponish speaking clients.



Spanish (Verbal and Written)

X # ‘-1 v" & Monchester Cultural Diversity Task Force 2004-2008
9 n,,f]J % _Latinos Unidos of NH Advisory Board 2005-cument
| ggmosesmongms
inefery "'&E’Iﬂ? E.’ll‘ 1. LoriSeog Bureau of Programs/NH DOC 271-6753
2, Llilly Ramos-Spooner Director of Operations/GMAP 6230710

3. Edda Contor Executive Director/Leadership NH 226-2265



CONTRACTOR NAME

ey Personnel
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Peter Kellcher President & CEQ $171,099 0% $0
Annette Escalante VP of Operations $88,000 0% $0
Patricia Robitaille VP of Finance $102,856 0% $0




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
Contract

This third Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 3") dated May 4, 2015, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or
"Department”) and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a
non-profit corporation with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
20, 2012, (item #110) (hereinatter referred to as “Contract”), and amended by an agreement (Amendment
#1 to the Contract) approved on June 5, 2013 (ltem #102A) and (Amendment #2 to the Contract)
approved on June 18, 2014 (item #99) by Governor and Executive Council, the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in
consideration of certain sums specitied;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37),
the Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties thereto
and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor agree to extend the completion date by six (6) months
and increase the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and moditied by the terms and conditions in this Amendment #3,
the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7 Completion Date by extending the date to
December 31, 2015.

3. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $4,823,837.00.

4. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Eric Borrin, Director Contracts and Procurement.

5. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
{603) 271-9558.

6. Delete in its entirety, Exhibit A Amendment #2, Scope of Services and replace with Exhibit A
Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

7. Delete in its entirety, Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #3, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

8. Add Exhibit B-2 Medication Assisted Treatment Fee Schedule

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Qﬂ/
Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 4 Date: _<N{15



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Delete in its entirety, Exhibit C, Special Provisions and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1,
Special Provisions.

Add Exhibit C-1, Revisions To General Provisions.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit D, Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace
Requirements, and replace with Exhibit O Amendment #1, Certitication Regarding Drug-Free
Workplace Requirements.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit E, Certification Regarding Lobbying, and replace with
Exhibit E Amendment #1, Certification Regarding Lobbying.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit F, Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and
Other Responsibility Matters, and replace with Exhibit F Amendment #1, Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities
Act Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with Requirements
Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and
Whistleblower Protections.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit H, Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke
and replace with Exhibit H Amendment #1, Cerlification Regarding Environmental Tobacco
Smoke.

Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit I, Health (nsurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, and replace with Exhibit { Amendment #1, Health Insurance
Portability Act Business Associate Agreement.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: ‘t/
Page 2 of 4 Date: g/uh&



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be eftective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date 7 I Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH

Associate Commissioner

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

slifis

Date

NA ete [2
TITLE frestdent s (£9

Acknowledgement: )
State offk_Hampshice , County of_{f{lsberouh on_ 5HIIIS , before the
undersigned officer, personaily appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

g,
\\\\\‘\0‘( A, /O/////

N /7
Soe,
§ SBIE 6]

.
» o
* .
........

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (/
Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

sl /|
| Kot

Date l Name:
Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

Exhibit A Amendment #3

Scope of Services

A. Popuiation Served

The Contractor will provide substance use disorder treatment services to New Hampshire
residents who:
* meet diagnostic, financial, and other eligibility criteria, as defined in Section C, Clients
Eligible for Treatment Services; and
¢ Reside in any city or town, or who are homeless, in New Hampshire.

B. Required Treatment Services

The Contractor will provide treatment services as identified in the Service Table below. An *X"
denotes the services that the Contractor will provide to eligible individuals in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules, and regulations and terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Service Table

Required | Treatment Services
Services

Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 1) - Substance abuse treatment services
provided in individual and group counseling sessions in a non-residential setting.
Clients may be enrolled in outpatient treatment and recovery support services
simultaneously when clinically appropriate. Continued service and
transfer/discharge decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical
staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to any
X changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and
no less than every 30 days.

Qutpatient Treatment providers must provide assessment to all clients to determine
the appropriate ASAM (October 2013) level of care. If this level is higher than
ASAM Level 1, the outpatient provider must refer the client to the appropriate level
of care and provide interim services until the client is able to enter the appropriate
level of care.
X Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 1) — Pregnant & Parenting Women —
Qutpatient Treatment as identified above provided to pregnant & parenting women.
intensive Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 2.1) — A combination of individual
and group substance abuse treatment services conducted in an outpatient setting
for a minimum of 3 hours of direct client treatment services per day for a minimum
of three days per week. Clients receiving less than this level of service should be
enrolled in an outpatient program. Clients may be enrolled in intensive outpatient’
treatment and recovery support services simuitaneously when clinically
X appropriate. Continued service and transfer/discharge decisions are based on
ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a redetermination of
ASAM level of care in response to any changes impacting level of risk on any
ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no less than every 30 days.

No client shall be admitted to an ASAM Level 2.1 program without first having an
evaluation and referral from an ASAM Level 1 provider.

Intensive Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Levei 2.1) - Pregnant & Parenting

X Women - Intensive Outpatient Treatment as identified above provided to
pregnant & parenting women. o /
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Service Table

Required
Services

Treatment Services

Low-intensity Residential Treatment (ASAM Level 3.1) Residential substance
abuse treatment services are designed to support individuals in the early stages of
recovery that need this residential level of care and/or are homeless. The goal of
these programs is to prepare clients to become self-sufficient in the community.
Clients may be enrolled in low-intensity residential treatment and recovery support
services simultaneously when clinically appropriate. Continued service and
transfer/discharge decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical
staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to any
changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and
no less than every 30 days. Residents typically work in the community and may
pay a portion of their room and board.

No client shall be admitted to an ASAM Level 3.1 program without first having an
evaluation and referral from an ASAM Level 1 provider.

Low-Intensity Resldential Treatment (ASAM Level 3.1) — Pregnant Women -
Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as identified above provided to pregnant &
parenting women.

High-Intensity Residential — Adult (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly: Residential —
Treatment Adult) and Medium Intensity Residentlal - Adoiescent (ASAM
Level 3.5, Formerly: Resldential — Treatment Adolescent) - Short-term
residential substance abuse treatment designed to assist individuals who require a
more intensive level of service in a structured setting and/or individuals that may be
homeless. Admission is on a voluntary basis. Continued service and
transfer/discharge decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical
staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to any
changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and
no less than every 30 days.

No client shall be admitted to an ASAM Level 3.5 program without first having an
evaluation and referral from an ASAM Level 1 provider.

High-Intensity Residential — Adult (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly: Residential —-
Treatment Adult) and Medium Intensity Residentlal — Adolescent (ASAM
Level 3.5, Formerly: Resldential - Treatment Adolescent) - Pregnant Women -
High-Intensity Residential — Adult and Medium Intensity Residential —~ Adolescent
as identified above provided to pregnant women.

Speclalty Resldentlal Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women (ASAM
Level 3.5) - Residential treatment services for pregnant and parenting women and
their children. Continued service and transfer/discharge decisions are based on
ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a redetermination of
ASAM level of care in response to any changes impacting level of risk on any
ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no less than every 30 days.

No client shall be admitted to an ASAM Level 3.5 program without first having an
evaluation and referral from an ASAM Level 1 provider.
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Service Table

Required
Services

Treatment Services

Recovery Support Services:

Group or individual services that are consistent with an individual's recovery plan
that prevent relapse and enhance or remove barriers to recovery. Examples of
recovery support services include, but are not limited to: assisting clients
with enroliment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health Protection Program
(NHHPP), or private insurance, anger management, financial management,
communication skills, spiritual support, parenting skills, health management,
case management, organization and time management, recovery coaching,
recovery mentoring, stress management, and vocational services. Programs
may focus on a single recovery support service or provide a curriculum that
includes an array of recovery support services.

Types of Recovery Support Services are listed below:

» Continuous recovery monitoring services are regular follow-ups with
clients to assess the status of the client’s recovery, identify any
needs the client may have and help the client to address those
needs, and provide early intervention for client's who have relapsed
or who's recovery is otherwise at risk.

¢ Enhanced Services are specialized services that remove barriers to a
client’s participation in treatment. Examples of these services are
child care while a parent is participating in treatment or transportation
to and/or from the treatment site.

Recovery Support Services as identified above provided to pregnant & parenting
women.

Medication Assisted Treatment with Buprenorphine - Phase |

The Contractor will develop a work plan, tor DHHS approval, for integrating

medication assisted treatment with buprenorphine into the treatment services

denoted by an “X” described above. The Contract may seek technical assistance in

developing this plan through the New Hampshire Center for Excellence. The

Contractor will bill for staff time only, as described in Exhibit B, during Phase 1.

The Contractor’s work plan will include at a minimum the following:

¢ The steps to be taken to begin offering medication assisted treatment with
buprenorphine, including the responsible individuals and expected timing.

¢ The provider(s) you will work with for prescription and medical oversight of
buprenorphine, including a Memorandum of Understanding with each provider
regarding billing and payment practices and how the parties will interact to
ensure that integrated care is provided.

Medication Assisted Treatment with Buprenorphine - Phase Il

The Contractor will Implement the Phase 1 work plan upon DHHS approval, which
includes the administration of the physician service and medication to clients. The
Contractor will bill for staff time (only for continued planning of the service delivery),
physicians visits, and medication as described in Exhibit B, during Phase 2.
Medication Assisted Treatment Services provided in Phase 2 are subject to all
contract provisions described in this Agreement. /
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C. Required Provisions for Services
Priority Admission:

1) The Contractor shall give admission preference to pregnant women and women with
dependent children, even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental
rights have not been terminated, including the provision of interim services within the
required 48 hour time frame.

2) Individuals who have been administered Narcan to reverse the effects of an opioid
overdose either in the 14 days prior to screening or in the period between screening and
admission to the program.

3) Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the provision of interim services
within 14 days.

4) Individuals with a primary diagnosis of a substance use disorder, which may also include
a co-occurring mental health disorder.

5) Individuals with substance use co-occuring mental health disorders.

6) Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.

Required Outreach:

New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) programs receiving federal
treatment Block Grant funds requires that Contractors must publicize services available to
pregnant or parenting women and injection drug users in need of substance abuse treatment
and that these individuals receive preference for admission to treatment. This may be done as
follows, but is not limited to, street outreach programs, ongoing public service announcements
(radio/television), regular advertisements in local/regional print media, posters placed in
targeted areas, and frequent notification of availability of such treatment distributed to the
network of community based organizations, health care providers and social service agencies.
The Contractor will submit their outreach plans to DHHS through the Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services (BDAS) within 60 days of contract effective date.

Health Facilitles Administration Licensing Requirements:

Housing programs with substance abuse treatment services at the same location will need to
secure necessary licensing as a Residential Rehabilitation Facility by the DHHS Bureau of
Health Facilities Administration, as appropriate, see He-P 807 at the following link:
{hitp//www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rules/state _agencies/he-p800.html). Any contractor with an
American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) (October 2013) Level 3.3 or higher level
program must secure this licensing for all Level 3 programs housed within the same facility as
the Level 3.3 program. In the case of residential treatment and housing at the same site,
residential programs must be in compliance with the most recent DHHS requirements relative to
the Institute for Mental Disease (IMD) Exclusion.

Capacity Reporting:

The Contractor must contact BDAS, as agent for DHHS, when their capacity has reached 90%
within 5 business days. The Contractor must refer pregnant women to the State when the
Contractor has insufficient capacity to provide services to any such pregnant women who seek
the services of the program. Sending e-mail to the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator
may complete this notification process.

Access to Services:

Programs above ASAM Level 1 may not accept clients in the absence of a recommendation t

the program’s level of care based on an evaluation by and ASAM Level 1 provider. ASA ‘%el
il g
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1 programs may not provide services other than evaluation until an evaluation has been
completed and a level of care recommendation established. The required evaluation may be
conducted by any ASAM Level 1 provider, regardless of DHHS contract status, but will only be
DHHS reimbursed for DHHS contracted providers.

The Contractor shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or subsequent call,
from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within 2 business days following the
day the call was received. If a client contacts the contractor and has not obtained an evaluation
and ASAM Level of Care recommendation, the contractor shall refer the client to an ASAM
Level 1 provider to obtain this. If the client has obtained and evaluation and ASAM Level of Care
recommendation from an ASAM Level 1 provider, but the contractor cannot provide that level of
care to the client, the contractor shall refer the client to a program that can provide the
appropriate ASAM level of care. If the contractor is an ASAM Level 1 provider or if the client’s
ASAM Level of Care recommendation is consistent with the level of care provided by the
contractor, the contractor is required to conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possibie,
ideally at the time of first contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the client or
referring agency, but not later than 5 business days following the date of first contact.

Those who have screened eligible for evaluation services will be seen for the initial evaluation
within 5 business days and a final evaluation narrative and ASAM level of care recommendation
and referral will be completed within 10 business days.

Those who have completed an evaluation and ASAM level of care recommendation and referral
and screened eligible for services will start receiving services, whether for the identified level of
care or interim services, within 10 business days following the eligibility screening. If the client is
not able to access interim services at the contractor's agency for geographic or other reasons,
the client should be referred to a DHHS funded provider where they are able to access interim
services.

Contractors receiving grant funds from DHHS will not discriminate against clients who are using
legitimate medications to assist their recovery and will not have policies that allow them to
refuse admission to treatment or to discharge clients from treatment based on the use of
appropriately prescribed medications and various opiate replacement therapies, including, but
not limited to, methadone and buprenorphine, as well as other forms of medication-assisted
treatment for co-occurring substance abuse and mental health disorders.

Clients Eligible for Treatment Services:
In order to be eligible for DHHS supported services, a client must meet alt eligibility criteria
described below. Eligibility determination shall be conducted as follows:

1. Substance Use Disorder, Financial Eligibility & Residency Screening: The contractor
shall complete the eligibility screening module in the Web Information Technology
System (WITS) to determine if the client meets residency, financial, and substance use
disorder potential eligibility requirements:

a. Residency: The client must be a resident of New Hampshire or homeless in New
Hampshire to be eligible for DHHS supported services; and

b. Financial Eligibility: The client’s income must be below 400% of Federal Poverty
Level (FPL) to be eligible for DHHS supported services based on the sliding fee
scale described below. Once the screening has been completed, the contractor
shall print the associated attestation and have the client sign this document. A
copy of the signed attestation shall be maintained in the client file. The client’s
financial eligibility shall be reassessed no less than every 120 days.; and I/
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c. Potential for a Substance Use Disorder: The client must screen positive for a
potential substance use disorder to be eligible for DHHS funded services.

2. Evaluation: No client shall be eligible for treatment services without first having an
evaluation and referral from an ASAM Level 1 provider. The required evaluation may be
conducted by any ASAM Level 1 provider, regardless of DHHS contract status, but will
only be DHHS reimbursed for DHHS contracted providers. If this evaluation is completed
by a contracted provider, the evaluation shall include administration of either the ASI or
GAIN.

a. Substance Use Disorder: This evaluation shall be used to determine if the client
meets Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition
(DSMD5) criteria for a substance use disorder. Clients who meet DSM5 criteria for
a substance use disorder are eligible for DHHS funded services. Client who do
not meet these criteria are not eligible for DHHS funded services.

b. Level of Care: For clients who have met all other eligibility requirements, this
evaluation shall be used to determine the appropriate level of care for the client
based on ASAM (October 2013) criteria. The client is eligible for DHHS funded
services at the assessed level of care unless such a level of care is unavailable
or the client chooses to enter a lower level of care. If the assessed level of care
in unavailable, the client may choose to enter the next higher level of care

3. Medicaid/NHHPP Eligibility: The contractor shall determine whether or not the client is
eligible for Medicaid/NHHPP coverage for the identified level of care. it the client is not
eligible for Medicaid/NHHPP coverage for the identified level of care, the client may be
eligible for DHHS funded services. If the client is eligible for Medicaid/NHHPP coverage
for the identified level of care, the client is not eligible for DHHS funded services. The
provider shall assist the client with the Medicaid/NHHPP enroliment process if they are
believed to be eligible for these programs.

4. Insurance Coverage: The contractor shall determine whether or not the client has
insurance that will cover services at the identified level of care. if the client does not
have insurance that will reimburse for these services at a rate equal to or greater than
the DHHS rate, the client is eligible for DHHS funded services. If the client has insurance
that will reimburse for these services at an amount equal or greater to the DHHS
reimbursement rate, the client is not eligible for DHHS funded services. The contractor
may not charge the combination of the client, any 3rd party payor, and DHHS more than
the maximum charge allowed, which is the DHHS rate for the service in those instances
in which DHHS pays any portion of the service fee. These parties shall be charged in the
following order:

a. The maximum allowed charge will be billed to the client’s insurer, if applicable.

b. The client will be charged their portion of the maximum allowed charge based on
the BDAS published sliding fee scale.

¢. The balance of the maximum allowed charge after deducting the client’s portion
and the insurance payment, if applicable, shall be charged toc DHHS.

5. Medication Assisted Treatment with Buprenorphine eligibility: Only those clients who are
simultaneously engaged in other clinical services with the provider are eligible for these
services.

Sliding Fee Scale:
The contractor shall not charge the combination of the client, any 3™ party payor and BDAS an
amount greater than the maximum rate allowed for each service. All reasonable efforts srye
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made to collect payment of bills. A client’s inability to pay shall not preclude admission to the
program and treatment.

¢ (Client Income is 0% - 138% of FPL: 100% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
¢ Client income is 139% - 149% of FPL: 92% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
¢ Client Income is 150% - 199% of FPL: 88% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
e Client Income is 200% - 249% of FPL: 75% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
¢ Client Income is 250% - 299% of FPL: 60% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
¢ Client Income is 300% - 349% of FPL: 43% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
s Client Income is 350% - 399% of FPL: 33% of the allowed charge less any amount paid
for by insurance.
With respect to minority age individuals, a minor child shall not be denied services as a result of
the parent’s unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child’s decision to receive confidential
services pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

Waiting List Management:

When a person who is pregnant or an injection substance abuser seeks treatment and there are
no appropriate treatment services available within the required time frame as outlined below,
interim services must be made available. The Contractor agrees to maintain the wait list
management system in WITS that includes a unique patient identifier and include information on
dates of requests for admission to treatment, provision of interim services and source for those
services, referrals made for treatment or interim services, and disposition of clients on the
waiting list.

* The waiting list must contain a mechanism that identifies and counts the number of
applicants who present and are determined to be appropriate for substance abuse
treatment but are unable to be placed as there is no capacity;

¢ Maintain contact with individuals awaiting admission; and,

¢ Admit or transter waiting list clients at the earliest possible time to an appropriate
treatment program within a reasonable geographic area.

The Contractor shall remove a client awaiting treatment from the waiting list only when one of
the following conditions exists:

¢ Such persons cannot be located for admission into treatment or

* Such persons refuse treatment.

Specific interim Services for Pregnant Women, Women with Dependent Children and
Injection Drug Users: ,

The Contractor agrees to contact the BDAS Clinical Services Unit if a pregnant women and
women with dependent children or individuals with a history of injection drug use, cannot be
accepted into treatment within specific time frames, and agrees that interim services will be
provided or facilitated by the Contractor. interim services for pregnant women must include
counseling on the effects of alcoho! and drug use on the fetus, referrals for prenatal caresand
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counseling and education about HIV and tuberculosis. interim services for injection drug users
must also include counseling and education in the risks of needle sharing, about the risks of
transmission to sexual partners and infants, and referral for HIV, Hepatitis C and tuberculosis
screening/testing. All interim services shall be documented in the client’s clinical record in the
WITS system.

Interim Services for other Clients:

The Contractor shall provide, or refer the client to, interim services until level of service
identified in the level of care assessment is available and/or the client is willing and assessed as
being sufficiently motivated to take advantage of the proposed level of service or interim
services. If the client is not able to access interim services at the contractor’s agency for
geographic or other reasons, the client shall be referred to a DHHS funded provider where they
are able to access interim services.

Services to pregnant and parenting women:

The Contractor further agrees that childcare will be made available to women who are in
treatment with their dependent children, either through on-site care or through arrangements
with an off-site legal childcare provider. Other services required are as follows:

* The family is treated as a unit and, therefore, admits both women and their children into
treatment services, if appropriate.

+ The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary medical care for women who are
receiving substance abuse services, including prenatal care.

¢ The Contractor shall provide or arrange for childcare while the women are receiving
services even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental rights have not
been terminated.

e The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary pediatric care for the women’s
children, including immunizations.

¢ The Contractor shall provide or arrange for gender-specific substance abuse treatment
and other therapeutic interventions for women that may address issues of relationships,
sexual abuse, physical abuse, and parenting, and childcare while the women are
receiving these services.

¢ The Contractor shall provide or arrange for therapeutic interventions for children in
custody of women in treatment, which may, among other things, address the children’s
developmental needs, their issues of sexual and physical abuse, and neglect.

e The Contractor shall provide or arrange for sufficient case management and
transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have access to the
services provided for above.

+ If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person refuses
treatment or says (s)he is not interested in treatment, the wait list report shall be
completed with the engagement activities attempted.

o If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person no shows or
cancels treatment, interim services must be provided, as stipulated above and the wait
list report shall be completed that demonstrates the activities of follow up, engagement
and substance abuse treatment services offered.

Relationship(s) with Primary Health Care:
The Contractor shall arrange and coordinate services and exchange of information with other
health care providers and agencies which:
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» Identifies the client’s current Primary Care Provider (PCP) at screening and/or intake.

+ |f the client has no current PCP, the Contractor shall identify available provider(s) in the
client's local area such as a federally qualified community heaith center, community
health center, or other local health services.

* Obtains client/patient authorization to communicate with PCP office.

If no authorization is completed initially, the Contractor shall educate client as to the
importance of engaging the PCP in ongoing care and address the client’'s concerns as
part of treatment, with goal of obtaining authorization before discharge.

* Sends the discharge summary to PCP and offers to discuss recovery issues with the
provider.

* Arranges {or has the client arrange) a post-discharge appointment with PCP for the
client/patient for follow-up of the substance use disorder.

Tobacco Cessatlon:
The Contractor shall have policies and procedures for both client and Contractor staff, that not
only creates a tobacco-free environment as required by law, but to offer tobacco cessation tools
and programming. Tobacco use, in and of itself, shaill not be grounds for administrative
discharge from the program. Initially, all clients shall be assessed for motivation in stopping the
use of tobacco products. Providers may tap into resources such as the DPHS Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation counselors available
through the QuitLine. Other resources for providers include;:

Breathe New Hampshire

145 Hollis St., Unit C

Manchester, NH 03101

603-669-2411 (phone) or 1-800-835-8647

The New Hampshire Medicaid program covers:

» Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) Gum,

s NRT Patch,

* NRT Nasal Spray,

* NRT Lozenge,

* NRT Inhaler,

e Varenicline {Chantix),

¢ Bupropion (Zyban),

* Group Counseling and/or

* Individual Counseling. Up to 12 individual counseling sessions are covered per year
through a mental health provider (Note: These sessions would NOT be in addition to
other mental health counseling sessions under Medicaid). Pregnant women also have
the option of group counseling. For more information, visit the website at:
hitp://www.dhhs.state.nh.us/DHHS/MEDICAIDPROGRAM/default.htm

Tuberculosls:

The Contractor shall make available tuberculosis services (defined as screening, counseling,
testing, and treatment) directly, or through other providers, to each client receiving treatment. In
the case of an individual denied admission due to lack of capacity, the substance abuse
treatment Contractor will refer the individual to another provider of tuberculosis services if
appropriate. All Contractor providing residential services shall make available, either on-site or
through agreements with health care providers, tuberculosis services, including screenyig,
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testing, counseling and referral for medical treatment.

Physlcal location and facilitles:

For the purpose of providing the services described in Section 1l of the Scope of Services, the
Contractor shalf obtain and maintain a suitable space complying with all fire, health, and safety
codes to include handicapped accessibility and being wheelchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written prior approval of DHHS, acting through BDAS, before
entering into any agreement concerning relocation of the service site.

Culturally and Lingulstically Appropriate Standards of Care:

DHHS recognizes that culture and language have considerable impact on how consumers
access services. Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to
access services. To ensure equal access to quality services, DHHS expects that Contractors
shalt provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following
guidelines:

1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers
with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of Limited English Proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English
as their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English
are such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in
the services provided to them without language assistance.

4. The Contractor is responsible for reasonable accommodations in arranging for
interpreter services for hearing impaired clients.

5. The Contractor offers consumers or clients a forum through which those individuals have
the opportunity to provide feedback to the Contractor regarding cultural and linguistic
issues that may deserve response.

Compllance with State and Federal Laws:
The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special
attention is called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1. All services provided pursuant to this Contract shall be subject to the most current
proposed or formalized rules and regulations promulgated by DHHS, pursuant to RSA
541-A.

2. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state confidentiality laws
specifically: 42 CFR Part 2B, N.H. RSA 318 B:12 and N.H. RSA 172:8-A and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA): http//www.hhs.gov/ocr/privacy/

3. The Contractor shall meet the standards outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-A 300,
Certification and Operation of Alcohol and other Drug Disorder Treatment Programs.
This administrative rule is currently expired and under revision. The Contractor should
plan to meet the requirements as outlined in the expired rule until the revisions are
completed. He-A 300 can be viewed on the RFP link to this document
hitp//www.dhhs.nh.gov/business/rfp/index.htm.

4. The Contractor shall, upon the direction of the State, provide court-ordered evaluation in
their catchment area and a sliding scale fee shall apply and the inability to pay shail not
interfere with the completion and submission of the court-ordered evaluation and shall,
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upon the direction of the State, offer treatment to those individuals pursuant to RSA
172:13.

5. Contractors considering research, including research conducted by student interns,
using individuals served by this contract as subjects must adhere to the legal
requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the DHHS
via contact with BDAS prior to initiating any research involving subjects or participants
related to this contract. In addition, research conducted on subjects served by this
contract may need to be approved by the New Hampshire Department of Health &
Human Services Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects (NH DHHS CPHS)
see http//www.dhhs.nh.qov/irb/

Cllent Stabilization:

The Contractor will be expected to arrange for medical clearance for all clients receiving
treatment services supported by DHHS administered by BDAS to assure that they are not at risk
for acute withdrawal from alcohol and certain drugs. The Contractor shall be expected to
provide a range of integrated services that include withdrawal management services that follow
detoxification guidelines outlined in Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) #45, Detoxification
and Substance Abuse Treatment and ASAM guidelines.

Ciinical Services:
The Contractor shall provide the following:

a. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse counselor on site each day of the week during
primary treatment hours. The substance abuse counselor shall have a bachelor's degree
or equivalent in social work/psychology, guidance or nursing and/or a certificate in the field
of addiction studies from an approved educational institution or educationalftife
experience.

b. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse support staff on site each day of the week during
all hours not covered by a substance abuse counselor. The substance abuse support staff
must have a high school or General Equivalency Diploma (GED). Preference is given to
individuals who have completed additional courses or taken training in substance use
disorders or other health fields.

c. An intake/admission coordinator on site Monday through Friday of each week. The
intakefadmission coordinator shall have one (1) years' work experience in the field of
addiction studies.

d. A full-time Executive Director, not filling any of the positions described above.

Evaluation:

No client shall be eligible for treatment services without first having an evaluation and referral
from an ASAM Level 1 provider. The required evaluation may be conducted by any ASAM Level
1 provider, regardiess of DHHS contract status, but will only be DHHS reimbursed for DHHS
contracted providers. If this evaluation is completed by a contracted provider, the evaluation
shall include administration of either the ASt or GAIN.

Assessment of Risk for Self-Harm/Suicide: The Contractor shall have policies and practices
for assessing risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment, such as at initial contact, during
screening, intake, admission, on-going treatment services and at discharge, and a process for
referral when necessary to include referrals to mental health services.

Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: Y/
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Use of Best Practices: The Contractor is required to use the Addiction Severity Index (ASH) or
Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN) assessment tools, the SAMHSA/NIDA MATRS
treatment-planning model and the WITS electronic case management system.

The Contractor shall develop policies, programs and protocols in accordance with SAMHSA
guidelines as outlined in the Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs) and Technical Assistance
Publications (TAPs). These publications can be downloaded from

http://www . kap.samhsa.gov/products/manuals/index.htm

Relevant Pollcles and Guidelines:

The services provided for in this agreement shall be in addition to the services provided for in
any other agreement between the State of New Hampshire, any of its agencies, or any of its
officers, and the Contractor.

Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall
cooperate fully with, and answer all questions of representatives of the State conducting any
periodic or special review of the performance of the Contractor or any inspection of the facilities
of the Contractor.

Publications Funded Under Contract:

All products produced under this contract are in the public domain. All products (written, video,
audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from
DHHS before printing, production, distribution, or use. The Contract shall credit DHHS on all
materials produced under this contract.

Student Internships:

The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures related to student interns that address
minimum coursework, experience and core competencies for those interns having direct contact
with individuals served by this contract. Student interns shall complete an approved ethics
course prior to beginning the internship.

Staff Licensing Requirements:

The ratio of licensed to non-licensed service providers shall be as follows:

Agencies must have at least one Licensed, or Masters Licensed, Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(LADC/MLADC) for each two unlicensed counselors providing substance abuse treatment
services and a sufficient number of MLADCs or LADCs with the Licensed Clinical Supervision
(LCS) credential to adequately provide for clinical supervision of all clinical staff. This
requirement shall be met by the Contractor no later than six (6) months after the date of the
Contract effective date.

Updated resumes, which clearly indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor,
including current positions of staff supported by funds provided through this Contract, shall be
forwarded to the BDAS as agent for DHHS. The documentation shall include a copy of the New
Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Counselor License.

Staff Certification Requirements:
In addition to the requirements for LADCs, all Contractor milieu staff in residential settings and

transitional living programs and staff providing recovery support aftercare group services shall
Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: .
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be a LADC, MLADC, or Cenified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) under the Board of
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional Practice, or working toward that certification under RSA

330-C (http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/NHTOC/NHTOC-XXX-330-C.htm). Certification

must be completed within six (6) months of the contract’s approval date.

Staff providing recovery support services are expected to be Certified Recovery Support
Workers (CRSW) under the Board of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional Practice, or working
toward that certification. Peer recovery support services made available through Recovery
Community Organizations (RCOs), under agreement with BDAS on behalf of DHHS, shall be
provided by individuals certified by those organizations (CRSW not required for peer recovery
support services).

Supervision:

Ongoing clinical supervision will include weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for
resources or therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment of progress. When
enough candidates are under supervision, group supervision may be included to help optimize
the learning experience.

The content of supervision must include knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific
application to the practice issues faced by the supervisee, including the core functions as
described in the Twelve Core Functions of Alcohol and Drug Counseling.

The content of supervision must also include the standards of practice and ethical conduct, with
particular emphasis given to the counselor’s role and appropriate responsibilities, professional
boundaries, and power dynamics.

Staffing Changes:

BDAS as agent for DHHS shall be notified of changes in key personnel with updated resumes
that clearly indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor submitted within five (5)
working days. Key personnel are those staff for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent
providing alcohol or other drug abuse treatment services.

1. New Hires: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing
within one month of hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person
essential to carrying out this scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume

of the employee, which clearly indicates the staff member is_employed by the Contractor,
shall accompany this notification.

2. Vacancies: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing
within 14 calendar days, if at any time, any site funded under this agreement does not
have adequate staffing to perform all required services for more than one month.

Other Requirements:
The Contractor shall attend trainings and/or meetings as requested by DHHS.

Regional Network Participation:

The Contractor will designate administrative level staff to regularly participate in the Regional
Network and contribute to overall regional network strategic planning, monitoring, evaluatign,
and cross systems communication efforts, and the development of a regional su ?72(’:’;
Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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misuse/abuse Continuum of Care. The Contractor is highly encouraged to serve on one of the
work groups and/or feadership groups and contribute to data collection, regional strategic
planning and evaluation. Participation will be measured by the annual Partner Survey
(http://www.parinertool.net/) administered by NH Center for Excellence under contract with
BDAS as agent for DHHS.

Performance Measures:

Ali treatment programs under contract with BDAS on behalf of DHHS are required to report on
the National Outcome Measures (NOMs) established by the SAMHSA, as required in the
Federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, via the WITS (electronic case
management) system. The Department of Heaith and Human Services reserves the right to
consider Contractor performance across all of the domains in future funding decisions.

Data and Reporting Requirements:

1. Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall
provide any periodic or special reports required by the DHHS.

2. The Contractor shall notify BDAS, as an authorized agent of DHHS, whenever the
Contractor has reached ninety percent capacity to admit new clients. In addition the
Contractor shall have a waiting list management policy in accordance with the SAPT Block
Grant requirements. This 90% notification process will become automatic when this
operation is fully functional in WITS.

3. The Contractor shall notify DHHS through BDAS, within one working day, if sufficient
capacity is not available to provide treatment services to a pregnant woman, parenting
woman or injection drug user within the required time frames and a referral elsewhere is not
successful and interim services cannot be provided.

4. The Contractor shall comply with all research and/or information systems development
activities for the electronic case managementWeb Information Technology System
(CMWITS) conducted by, or authorized by, DHHS.

5. The Contractor shall administer any client surveys, client evaluations including the addiction
Severity Index (ASl) or the Global Appraisal of individual Needs (GAIN), client treatment
outcome instruments, the M.A.T.R.S. Treatment Pianning Tool, as required by DHHS.

6. The Contractor must have the ability to communicate and submit required reports via the
Web-based submission system and/or e-mail, for treatment s and recovery support setvices
and interim services. All required clinical and documentation activities shall be entered in
WITS uniess specifically granted an exception by BDAS on behalf of DHHS.

Critical Incident/Sentinel Event Reporting:
The Department's Sentinel Event policy is contained in the following link:
http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbces/sentinel.htm

Division of Community Based Care Services (DCBCS) Sentinel Event Notification:

The preceding events require the immediate verbal notification to the BDAS Assistant
Administrator or Clinical Services Unit Administrator upon the discovery of a sentinel event
involving an individual(s) receiving services through a DHHS substance use disorder treatment
Contractor.

Since the initial and immediate verbal notification of a sentinel event is likely to include protected
health information (PHI) as identified below, the Contractor of services to individuals receiving
services funded by the DHHS shall disclose PHI in a private and secure manner. Corzﬁxﬂors

Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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and vendors should not leave voice-mail messages, but instead make direct telephone contact
with the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical Services Unit Administrator or designee. If
direct telephone contact is not possible, a voice mail message may be left without protected
health information, such as medications and relevant medical and psychiatric diagnoses. As
soon as possible after the initial verbal notification, the Contractor will mail or fax a completed
Sentinel Event Reporting Form as directed in this protocol.

Notification shall include the following:

1. Name and phone number of the individual reporting.

2. Name, date of birth (DOB), medications and all relevant medical and psychiatric
diagnoses of individual(s) involved;

3. Location, date, and time of event;

4. Description of the event including what, when, where, how, and other relevant
information and identification of any other individuals involved;

5. Legal status of the individual involved with regard to guardianship and power of attorney;

6. Community, guardian, family and/or families’ knowledge of the event; and

7. Contractor contact person and contact information.

It shall be the responsibility of the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical Services Unit
Administrator or designee to notify the DCBCS Quality Improvement Director by e-mail as soon
as the BDAS Clinical Administrator or designee becomes aware a Sentinel Event has occurred.
The DCBCS Quality Iimprovement Director shall make immediate notification to the
Commissioner. internal e-mails within the Department may contain PHI and ali Department
employees will utilize safeguards to ensure the privacy of the PHI as stated in the DHHS
General Manual Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) policy #504.

Each DCBCS contractor recognizes its responsibility to report evidence of neglect, abuse or
exploitation to the appropriate regulatory agencies as required by RSA 161-F: 42-57 and RSA
169-C:29. In any case of known or suspected neglect, abuse or exploitation, the Contractor
aware of the situation shall follow all applicable rules relative to individual rights protection
procedures.

Written follow up information is to be forwarded by the reporting Contractor to the appropriate
BDAS Administrator listed below within 72 hours by completing the Sentinel Event Reporting
Form. To protect clients’ confidential information, reporting Contractors should submit the
Sentinel Event Reporting Form either by fax to the BDAS Assistant Administrator or the BDAS
Clinical Services Unit Administrator by a mail service that provides delivery confirmation.

Bureau of Drug and Alcoho! Services

Assistant Administrator

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Or by fax to the BDAS Administrator’s Office at 271-6105;

Follow-up information is the responsibility of the Contractor and should be submitted in a way as
to protect clients’ confidential information such as by mail with delivery confirmation and should
include:
1. The Sentinel Event Reporting Form found at the following link:
www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/sentineiform.pdf
2. Additionai details as they are learned or if the status of the situation changes; and ‘/
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3. Copies of newspaper articles.

Additionally, DHHS requires critical incident reporting. The Contractor shall report all critical
incidents/sentinel events to the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator immediately via
telephone. Every effort shall be made to reach the BDAS administrator directly. If a voice
message is necessary, sufficient provider contact information shall be provided so that DHHS is
able to reach the reporter, or other responsible staff, immediately.

A critical incident includes, but is not limited to, any child or adult protective services report to
the Division of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF), or the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (BEAS), respectively, regarding any incident involving 1) a staff/femployee to youth or
client, 2) youth to youth, or 3) client to client. This includes incidents that occur while a client is
on leave, or on a pass, from the Contractor and may be off site at the time the incident occurred.

A sentinel event is an unexpected occurrence involving the death or serious physical or
psychological injury, or risk thereof, signaling the need for immediate investigation and
response.

Death or any serious injury or medical emergency regarding staff or clients that requires
emergency medical attention (EMT or other emergency personnel at the Contractor’s site, or a
hospital emergency room visit), or any crime reportable to law enforcement, or any other serious
incident must also be reported to DHHS as described below.

Reportable sentinel events include, but are not limited to, any occurrence that meets any of the
following criteria:

1. An unanticipated death or permanent loss of function, not related to the natural course of
an individual’s illness or underlying condition.

2. Homicide or suicide of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or
services, that had been discharged from a Department funded program or facility within
30 days of the event, or has been evaluated by a service Contractor within the preceding
30 days;

3. Sexual assault or rape of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or
services by another client or employee of any Department funded program or facility
where there is an act that was witnessed or there is sufficient clinical evidence obtained
by the Contractor to support allegation of nonconsensual sexual contact.

4. Unauthorized departure of an individual receiving DHHS funded services, from a facility
providing care, resulting in death or permanent loss of function.

5. Medication error that results in death, paralysis, coma, or other permanent loss of
function.

6. Delay or failure to provide DHHS funded Contractor services that result in death or
permanent loss of function.

7. Abuse as a result of the willful infliction of injury, unreasonable confinement, intimidation,
or punishment with resulting physical harm, or mental anguish. This includes staff
neglect or indifference to infliction of injury or intimidation of one individual by another.

8. Neglect as a result of the failure to provide the goods and services necessary to avoid
physical harm, mental anguish or mental illness.

9. Assault of or by a client of the Contractor that results in the injury of the person or
another person of such severity that medical attention is required.

10. Arson resulting in property loss.
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11. High profile events, which may include media coverage and/or police involvement.

On-Site Reviews:

1. The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by DHHS to periodically review
the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and submission,
clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to provide
the contracted services.

2. Reviews shall include, but not be limited to, client record reviews to measure compliance
with this exhibit.

3. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted
services are not found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit.

4. DHHS staff shall contact the Contractor in advance of the site visit, so that the
Contractor shall have sufficient time to prepare any guidance/reporting systems or logs
that will be reviewed at the site visit.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

. Funding

The State shali pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, for
the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of
Services.

For the period of July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, funding for this Agreement is funded
by various sources as a percentage of the total amount of $ $753,002.00 as follows:

* 65% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA
#93.959);

* 15% General Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention,
Intervention and Treatment Funds; and

o 20% General funds.

The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services in
compliance with funding requirements above.

I Payment Methodology

The Contractor will be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services identified in Exhibit A
Amendment #3, section B. The following terms and conditions detailed in this Exhibit B
Amendment #3 will apply to all services unless expressly stated otherwise.

The Contractor will use and apply all contract funds from the State for costs and expenses as
detailed in the Service Reimbursement Table below. Allowable costs and expenses shall be
determined by the State in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations.
Effective July 1, 2014, the contractor will receive a payment for each service at the rates and
within the limits described below. For clients receiving DHHS supported services, the contractor
may not charge the client, any 3™ party payor, and DHHS a combined rate that is more than the
rate established by BDAS for that level of service or any other fees. These parties shall be
charged in the following order:
1. The maximum allowed charge will be billed to the client’s insurer, if applicable.
2. The client will be charged their portion of the maximum allowed charge based on the
BDAS published sliding fee scale.
3. The balance of the maximum allowed charge, after deducting the client’s portion and
insurance payment, if applicable, shall be charged to DHHS.

The remainder of this page is left intentionally blank.
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Service Reimbursement Table

An “X" below denotes the services, and their corresponding Rates and Service Limits; the Contractor
will be reimbursed for in accordance with the Payment Methodology above.

Contractor’s DHHS
Services Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Established
Recovery Services Rate Service Limit
X Evaluation — ASAM Level 1 providers only $225 1 every 90 days
X Qutpatient — Individual $18.75/unit*** $190 of
combined
X individual &
Qutpatient — Group $5.00/unit*** group/week
X $320 (4
Intensive Outpatient” $80.00/day days)/week
X Low-Intensity Residential — Adult, including $700 (7 days)
pregnant and parenting women $100.00/day /week
X $896 (7 days)
Low-Intensity — Adolescent $128.00/day /week
X $910 (7 days)
High-Intensity Residential ~ Adult $130.00/day /week
Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant
X & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): Room $462 (7 days)
& Board Only $66.00/day /week
Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant
X & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): $1138.20
Clinical Services $162.60/day (7 days) /week
X $1190 (7 days)
Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent $170.00/day /week
X Recovery Support Services: Individual $15.00/unit*** $160 of
combined
X individual &
Recovery Support Services: Group $5.00/unit*** group/week
X Recovery Support Services: Continuous $60 of combined
Recovery Monitoring — Attempted™** $15.00/contact attempted and
completed/month
X for the first 6
Recovery Support Services: Continuous months post
Recovery Monitoring — Completed $15.00/contact discharge
Cost Up to the Budget
Enhanced Services Reimbursement | Amount
Medication Assisted Treatment Phase 1
X Planning and Phase 2 Implementation: Staff | $30 per hour per
Time staff person Up to $6,770
According to
Exhibit B-2
Medication
X Assisted
Treatment
Medication Assisted Treatment Services: Services Fee
Physician Visits and Medication Table Up to $67,760
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* The Contractor will bill the per diem rate for Intensive Outpatient Treatment services only on
those days when the client attends individual and/or group counseling associated with the
program. It is expected that each day of attendance includes a minimum of 3 hours of group
and/or individual counseling services.

**Attempted Contact is at least 3 attempts to contact a client over the course of at least one
week.

*** A unit is equal to 15 minutes of service

It is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a
consistent level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array
will also be monitored by the Department via WITS. Failure to meet this requirement may
result in amendment to or termination of the contract. At a minimum, contractors must
provide the array of services they contracted to provide for in SFY15.

ll. Performance Incentives:
A. Access to Services:
Treatment contractors shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or
subsequent call, from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within at
least 2 business days following the day the call was received and shall conduct initial
eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally at the time of first contact (direct
communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring agency, but not
later than 5 business days following the date of first contact. For each client who
screens eligible for services and starts receiving services, whether for the identified
level of care or interim services, within 10 business days following the eligibility
screening, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive payment of $75.00.
Access incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for services in the
previous calendar month.

B. Completion:
For each client who is discharged from the program because they have completed
treatment or transferred to another treatment provider as recorded in the Discharge
Type field of the WITS Discharge Module, the treatment contractor will receive an
incentive payment of $75.00. Completion incentives will be calculated and paid on a
monthly basis for services in the previous calendar month.

C. Client Qutcomes:

It a client who was discharged from the program meets at least 3 of the Outcome
criteria below in the 3 and/or 6™ month post-discharge, as evidenced by the WITS
Follow-Up module, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive payment in the
amount of $50. The 3™ month post discharge is considered to be 60 ~ 120 days post
discharge. The 6™ month post discharge is considered to be 150 — 210 days post
discharge. Outcomes incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for
clients meeting criteria in the previous calendar month. It is expected that at least
50% of discharged clients will be contacted for 3 and/or 6 month fotiow-up over the
contract year.

i. Abstinence: The client reports reduced or no substance use in the past 30

days.
Exhibit B Amendment #3 Contractor Initials ‘ )@

Page 3of 5 Date é/{/[/(



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit B Amendment #3

ii. EmploymentEducation: The client reports increased or retained
employment or the client reports returning to or staying in school.

iii. Crime and Criminal Justice: The client reports no arrests in the past 30 days.

iv. Stability in Housing: The client reports being in stable housing.

v. Social Connectedness: The client reports engagement in Recovery Support
Services, Care Coordination, and/or Community Based Support Groups in
the past 30 days.

D. Performance Incentive Payout Limits:
Performance incentives are limited to no more than 6% of the total contract amount
annually. The total amount paid out during the contract year will never exceed the
total contract amount. DHHS is not obligated to make payment for any incentives
that occur outside of the current contract year; however, incentives may be carried
over to future contract years at the discretion of DHHS.

E. Fallure to Meet Deliverables:

The Contractor shall comply with all contract requirements as detailed in Exhibit A
section B, Required Services. Upon determination that Contractor may not be
meeting the required deliverables, within two (2) weeks BDAS will provide a written
correction action plan. Within two (2) weeks of notification of the corrective action
plan, Contractor will provide a written remedial plan. BDAS will monitor the
corrective actions for 60 days. Failure to meet requirements of the corrective action
plan within 60 days may result in withholding of any or all payments or termination of
the contract.

F. Invoicing & Billing:
The Contractor shall complete all billing for all services (except for Medication
Assisted Treatment Staff Time for Phase | and Phase 1), defined in this Agreement
through the WITS system according to protocols established by BDAS.

The Contractor will use the Department supplied billing sheet to complete billing for
Medication Assisted Treatment Staff Time for Phase | and Phase |l.

The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract
funds to purchase or lease any equipment with a cost in excess of two thousand five
hundred dollars ($2500) and with a useful life beyond one year.

IV. Allocation of Funding:

it is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a
consistent level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array
will also be monitored by the Department via WITS. The contractor is prohibited from spending
down more than the sum of the total contract amount that includes the cost of the client services
and related incentives.

V. Availability of Alternative Funding:

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services may terminate or amend the
contract should alternate third party payors, including Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program and/or insurance available on the New Hampshire Insurance Exchange
cover any of the services included in this contract.
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VI. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
(SAPT) Block Grant funds:

The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.

Restrictions on SAPT Block Grant on State and Contractor expenditures include:

The State may not:

¢ Provide inpatient hospital services except under those conditions outlined in the regulations.

¢ Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

e Purchase or improve land.

* Purchase, construct, or permanently improve buildings or other facilities.

¢ Purchase major medical equipment.

e Satisfy any requirement for the expenditure of non-Federal funds as a condition for the

receipt of Federal funds. (in-kind)

Provide financial assistance to any entity other than a public or non-profit private entity.

¢ Provide individuals with hypodermic needles or syringes.

e Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in FFY91 for treatment
services provided in penal or correctional institutions of the State.

The Contractor shall not:

* Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting testing for
the etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is
accompanied by appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

e Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting any form
of needle exchange, free needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of
needles for intravenous drug abusers.

VIl. Charitable Choice:

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious organizations are able to
equally compete for Federal substance abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without
impairing the religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the religious
freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a, 45
CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory
provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are applicable to the
SAPT Block Grant program. No funds provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government to organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended for
inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. If an
organization conducts such activities, it must offer them separately, in time or location, from the
programs or services for which it receives funds directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government under any applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

Viill. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to adjusting amounts within the budgets and within the price limitation,
can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approvai of Governor and Executive Council.
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Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Fee Scheduie
Effective July 1, 2015

Service Rate
Physician Services

99201: New patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 10 minutes $ 20.16
99202: New patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 20 minutes $ 33.60
99203: New patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 30 minutes $ 42.56
99204: New patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 45 minutes $ 63.84
99205: New patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 60 minutes $ 80.64
99211: Office or other outpatient visit for the evaluation and management of an

established patient, that may not require the presence of a physician or other

qualified health care professional. usually, the presenting problem(s) are

minimal. Typically, 5 minutes are spent performing or supervising these services. $ 15.43
99212: Established patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 10 minutes $ 31.10
99213: Established patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 15 minutes $ 42.72
99214: Established patient office or other outpatient, visit typically 25 minutes $ 65.79
99215: Established patient office or other outpatient, visit typically 40 minutes $ 75.04
Medication

Suboxone 2mg-0.5mg film S 396
Suboxone 4mg-1mg film $ 7.10
Suboxone 8mg-2mg film $ 710
Suboxone 12mg-3mg film S 14.19
Bunavail 2.1-0.3mg film s 7.0
Bunavail 4.2-0.7mg film s 710
Bunavail 6.3-1mg film $ 14.19
buprenorphine 2mg SL tab $ 164
buprenorphine 8mg SL tab S 3.06
buprenorphine/naloxone {generic for Suboxone) 2-0.5mg SL tab $ 4.09
buprenorphine/naloxone {generic for Suboxone) 8-2mg SL tab S 734
Zubsolv 1.4-0.36mg tab S 3.54
Zubsolv 5.7-1.4mg tab S 7.09
Zubsolv 8.6-1mg tab $ 10.64
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as wel as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. ;

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disciosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shal!
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resuiting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to iaws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shali be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has SOV
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://iwww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shalt mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, reguiations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federa! funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or
available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever. The State shail have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction,
termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions,
Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

2.
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
3.

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method ot notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following

subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 Comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $5,000,000.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wili
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction,

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: reelas ’L‘f)‘“‘i (wadl o Huhal?sm
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Exhibit D Amendment #1 — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials ( r/
Workplace Requirements { [ <
CU/MHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date 22 i /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E Amendment #1

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Sreate~ Nﬁdxua Guanal on Blesha fig pn
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F Amendment #1 — Centification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials (
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F Amendment #1

10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

12.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pan 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

14.

13.1.
13.2.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled *Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: (reater ]\)ugl,tua\ Cncil v Meoholigm

s m Al

Date

And Other Responsibility Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G ﬂ/
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor e: Grtaler NQs ‘\K

S o

Date Namk: Dok Felloher
Title: Pregident mé (£0
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: (,Q;&r }quhu& Cnd'u' o Afcakclism

55 W/
Date Name: leder Welle

Title:  Qresda) and (G0
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

372014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit | Amendment #1

(2)

a.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

*Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act,

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
i As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
Il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PH!, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

372014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials 1ﬂ/
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving P?I/
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PH! in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individua!'s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

L Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business E /
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Associate maintains such PHI. |f Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. E ‘/
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit {.

Mﬁﬂb{% ‘Hﬁ/yﬂmsﬂlt(ig 6@1‘@/ N%‘\V‘h Goonell on A{cOLo\"m

San m@r M
Y hlea Oy g ; //
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Kithleen A Duin Yodea Yo\loWan

Nafne of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Represéntative

Ass6 . ste. Gan prssn’ o \

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
San)is SN

Date ' T Date
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, D‘Wi A pangvich , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of thelAgency; cannot be contract s:gnatory)
1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of rto.\{'v q Cdtm / ohgli's]

(Agency Name)
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 57’ '/15/

(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Prul'éur\- and (€O

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the Hd‘dayof Mag, , 2015

(Date Contract Signed)
4, Mq/ Kellehe is the duly elected President and (B0
"(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

y
4 2C—L'

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Z l - day of

By faid  Apmovich

(Name of Eldcted Officer of the Agency) /\)
iy [Lidyb, Nowry

Notary blic/Justice of the Peace

(NOTARY SEAL)
g,

é A. N 7,
Commission Expires: / /7/ / 5/- \\\\\\q,‘“\o\‘ Ic& &
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NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations W July 1, 2005

Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Serwces S
Contract

This 2™ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 27) dated this 15th day of May 2014, is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department”) and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
non-profit corporation with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2012, (item # 110) and amended by an agreement (Amendment #1 to the Contract)
approved on June 5, 2013, (Item # 102A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the current contract by one year.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained

in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6 to read:
a) 05-95-49-491510-29890000-102-500734
b) 05-95-49-491510-29900000-102-500734

2) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2015.

3) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $4,070,835

4) Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #2

5) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #2

CA/DHHS/100213 Q
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approvai.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Depa of Health and Human Services

sl .

Date = NAME

TITLE Djreetr

Greater Nashua

Slaviy /.
Date NAMER23e ¢ lclehor

TITLE »ms‘\d@.g(ﬁ’ & CeED

Acknowledgement:

State of AN\ , County of__ﬂ&m%} on 6\&\\ {4 . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idenlifled above, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

tée geag

Name and Title of Notary6r JuSti

blic
UREL A. LEFAVOR, Notary Pu
My CLg\mmission Expires September 22,2015

CA/DHHS/100213 w
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
_execution.
o "~ OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6274 ] (W
Date Name: lZqul e~
Title: Aecivtant ,«H—f,w.a., G\gnm—l
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CADHHS/100213 V
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

Scope of Services

A. Population Served
Services are available to New Hampshire residents who meet diagnostic, financial, and other eligibility
criteria for Department of Health and Human Services supported substance use disorder services as
defined in Section C, Clients Eligible for Treatment Services.

B. The Contractor shall provide treatment services as identified below:

Service Table - An “X” denotes that the Contractor shall provide that service(s) to eligible individuals
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations and terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Required
Services

Treatrierit Services

Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 1) - Substance abuse treatment services provided in
individual and group counseling sessions in a non-residential setting. Clients may be
enrolled in outpatient treatment and recovery support services simultaneously when
clinically appropriate. Continued service and transfer/discharge decisions are based on
ASAM Ciriteria (October 2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM
level of care in response to any changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on
an on-going basis and no less than every 30 days.

Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 1) — Pregnant & Parenting Women — Outpatient
Treatment as identified above provided to pregnant & parenting women. ]

Intensive Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 2.1) — A combination of individual and
group substance abuse treatment services conducted in an outpatient setting for a minimum
of 3 hours of direct client treatment services per day for a minimum of three days per week.
Clients receiving less than this level of service should be enrolled in an outpatient program.
Clients may be enrolled in intensive outpatient treatment and recovery support services
simultaneously when clinically appropriate. Continued service and transfer/discharge
decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a
redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to any changes impacting level of risk
on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no less than every 30 days.

Intensive Outpatient Treatment (ASAM Level 2.1) — Pregnant & Parenting Women -
Intensive Outpatient Treatment as identified above provided to pregnant & parenting
women. :

Low-Intensity Residential Treatment (ASAM Level 3.1, Formerly Transitional Living) —
Residential substance abuse treatment services are designed to support individuals in the
early stages of recovery that need this residential level of care and/or are homeless. The goal
of these programs is to prepare clients to become self-sufficient in the community. Clients
may be enrolled in low-intensity residential treatment and recovery support services
simultaneously when clinically appropriate. Continued service and transfer/discharge
decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October 2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a
redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to any changes impacting level of risk
on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no less than every 30 days. Residents
typically work in the community and may pay a portion of their room and board.

Low-Intensity Residential Treatment (ASAM Level 3.1, Formerly Transitional Living) —
Pregnant Women - - Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as identified above provided to
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pregiiaiit & parenting women.

High-Intensity Residential — Adult (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly: Residential — Treatment
Adult) and Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly:
Residential — Treatment Adolescent) - Short-term residential substance abuse treatment
X designed to assist individuals who require a more intensive level of service in a structured
setting and/or individuals that may be homeless. Admission is on a voluntary basis.
Continued service and transfer/discharge decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October
2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to
any changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no
less than every 30 days.

X High-Intensity Residential — Adult (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly: Residential — Treatment
Adult) and Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent (ASAM Level 3.5, Formerly:
Residential — Treatment Adolescent) - Pregnant Women - High-Intensity Residential —
Adult and Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent as identified above provided to
pregnant women.

Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5) -
Residential treatment services for pregnant and parenting women and their children.
X Continued service and transfer/discharge decisions are based on ASAM Criteria (October
2013). Clinical staff shall conduct a redetermination of ASAM level of care in response to
any changes impacting level of risk on any ASAM dimension on an on-going basis and no
less than every 30 days.

Recovery Support Services:

Group or individual services that are consistent with an individual's recovery plan that
prevent relapse and enhance or remove barriers to recovery. Examples of recovery
support services include, but are not limited to: assisting clients with enrollment in
X Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP), or private
insurance, anger management, financial management, communication skills,
spiritual support, parenting skills, health management, case management,
organization and time management, recovery coaching, recovery mentoring, stress
management, and vocational services. Programs may focus on a single recovery
support service or provide a curriculum that includes an array of recovery support
services.

Types of Recovery Support Services are listed below:

¢ Continuous recovery monitoring services are regular follow-ups with clients
to assess the status of the client’s recovery, identify any needs the client may
have and help the client to address those needs, and provide early

X intervention for client’s who have relapsed or who’s recovery is otherwise at

risk.

e Enhanced Services are specialized services that remove barriers to a client’s
participation in treatment. Examples of these services are child care while a
parent is participating in treatment or transportation to and/or from the
treatment site.

X Recovery Support Services as identified above provided to pregnant & parenting women.
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C. Required Services
Priority Admission:

1) The Contractor shall give admission preference to pregnant women and women with dependent
children, even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental rights have not been
terminated, including the provision of interim services within the required 48 hour time frame.

2) Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the provision of interim services within
14 days.

3) Individuals with a primary diagnosis of a substance use disorder, which may also include a co-

' occurring mental health disorder.

4) . Individuals on medication-assisted treatment for co-occurring substance abuse and mental health
disorders or various opiate replacement therapies, including, but not limited to, methadone,
buprenorphine and naltrexone.

Required Outreach:

New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) programs receiving federal treatment

Block Grant funds requires that Contractors must publicize services available to pregnant or parenting

women and injection drug users in need of substance abuse treatment and that these individuals receive

preference for admission to treatment. This may be done as follows, but is not limited to, street outreach

programs, ongoing public service announcements (radio/television), regular advertisements in

local/regional print media, posters placed in targeted areas, and frequent notification of availability of
such treatment distributed to the network -of-communitybased-organizations, health-care-providers-and-
social service agencies. The Contractor will submit their outreach plans to DHHS through the Bureau of
Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS) within 60 days of contract effective date.

Health Facilities Administration Licensing Requirements:

Housing programs with substance abuse treatment services at the same location will need to secure
necessary licensing as a Residential Rehabilitation Facility by the DHHS Bureau of Health Facilities
Administration, as appropriate, see He-P 807 at the following link:
(http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rules/state_agencies/he-p800.html). Any contractor with an American
Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) (October 2013) Level 3.3 or higher level program must secure
this licensing for all Level 3 programs housed within the same facility as the Level 3.3 program. In the
case of residential treatment and housing at the same site, residential programs should plan to treat no
more than 16 pregnant or parenting women at any given time to comply with federal Medicaid restrictions
on Institute for Mental Diseases (IMD) exclusion criteria. This restriction would not apply to programs in
which the client’s residence is in a separate location from the treatment program.

Capacity Reporting:
The Contractor must contact BDAS, as agent for DHHS, when their capacity has reached 90% within 5
business days. The Contractor must refer pregnant women to the State when the Contractor has
insufficient capacity to provide services to any such pregnant women who seek the services of the
program. Sending e-mail to the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator may complete this
notification process.
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Access to Services:

The Contractor shall respond to calls requesting treatment and/or transitional living program services,
whether an initial or subsequent call, from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within 2
business days following the day the call was received.

The Contractor is required to conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally at the time of
first contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring agency, but not
later than S business days following the date of first contact.

Those who have screened eligible for services will start receiving services, whether for the identified level
of care or interim services, within 10 business days follow the eligibility screening. If the client is not able
to access interim services at the contractor’s agency for geographic or other reasons, the client should be
referred to a DHHS funded provider where they are able to access interim services.

Contractors receiving grant funds from DHHS will not discriminate against clients who are using
legitimate medications to assist their recovery and will not have policies that allow them to refuse
admission to treatment or to discharge clients from treatment based on the use of appropriately prescribed
medications and various opiate replacement therapies, including, but not limited to, methadone and
buprenorphine, as well as other forms of medication-assisted treatment for co-occurring substance abuse
and mental health disorders.

Clients Eligible for Treatment Services:
In order to be eligible for DHHS supported services, a client must meet all eligibility criteria described
below. Eligibility determination shall be conducted as follows:

1. Substance Use Disorder, Financial Eligibility & Residency Screening: The contractor shall
complete the eligibility screening module in the Web Information Technology System (WITS) to
determine if the client meets residency, financial, and substance use disorder potential eligibility
requirements:

a. Residency: The client must be a resident of New Hampshire or homeless in New
Hampshire to be eligible for DHHS supported services; and /

b. Financial Eligibility: The client’s income must be below 400% of Federal Poverty Level
(FPL) to be eligible for DHHS supported services based on the sliding fee scale described
below. Once the screening has been completed, the contractor shall print the associated
attestation and have the client sign this document. A copy of the signed attestation shall
be maintained in the client file. The client’s financial eligibility shall be reassessed no
less than every 120 days.; and

c. Potential for a Substance Use Disorder: The client must screen positive for a potential
substance use disorder to be eligible for DHHS funded services.

2. Evaluation: The contractor shall conduct a full substance abuse evaluation, which includes
administration of either the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) in WITS or Global Appraisal of
Individual Needs (GAIN).

a. Substance Use Disorder: This evaluation shall be used to determine if the client meets
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition (DSM5) criteria for
a substance use disorder. Clients who meet DSM35 criteria for a substance use disorder
are eligible for DHHS funded services. Client who do not meet these criteria are not
eligible for DHHS funded services.
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b. Level of Care: For clients who have met all other eligibility requirements, this evaluation
shall be used to determine the appropriate level of care for the client based on ASAM
{October 2013) criteria. The client is eligible for DHHS funded services at the assessed
level of care unless such a level of care is unavailable or the client chooses to enter a
lower level of care. If the assessed level of care in unavailable, the client may choose to
enter the next higher level of care.

3. Medicaid/NHHPP Eligibility: The contractor shall determine whether or not the client is eligible
for Medicaid/NHHPP coverage for the identified level of care. If the client is not eligible for
Medicaid/NHHPP coverage for the identified level of care, the client may be eligible for DHHS
funded services. If the client is eligible for Medicaid/NHHPP coverage for the identified level of
care, the client is not eligible for DHHS funded services.

4. Insurance Coverage: The contractor shall determine whether or not the client has insurance that
will cover services at the identified level of care. If the client does not have insurance that will
reimburse for these services at a rate equal to or greater than the DHHS rate, the client is eligible
for DHHS funded services. If the client has insurance that will reimburse for these services at an
amount equal or greater to the DHHS reimbursement rate, the client is not eligible for DHHS
funded services. The contractor may not charge the combination of the client, any 3rd party
payor, and DHHS more than the maximum charge allowed. These parties shall be charged in the
following order:

a. The maximum allowed charge will be billed to the client’s insurer, if applicable.

b. The client will be charged their portion of the maximum allowed charge based on the

- -BDAS published sliding fee scale.—— - -

c. The balance of the maximum allowed charge after deductmg the client’s pOl’thIl and the
insurance payment, if applicable, shall be charged to DHHS.

Sliding Fee Scale:

The contractor shall not charge the combination of the client, any 3™ party payor and BDAS an amount
greater than the maximum rate allowed for each service. All reasonable efforts shall be made to collect
payment of bills. A client’s inability to pay shall not preclude admission to the program and treatment.

¢ Client Income is 0% - 138% of FPL: 100% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by

insurance.

e Client Income is 139% - 149% of FPL: 92% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance.

e Client Income is 150% - 199% of FPL: 88% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance.

¢ Client Income is 200% - 249% of FPL: 75% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance.

¢ Client Income is 250% - 299% of FPL: 60% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance.

¢ Client Income is 300% - 349% of FPL: 43% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance. '

e Client Income is 350% - 399% of FPL: 33% of the allowed charge less any amount paid for by
insurance.
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With respect to minority age individuals, a minor child shall not bé denied services ds a result of the
parent’s unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child’s decision to receive confidential services
pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

Waiting List Management:
When a person who is pregnant or an injection substance abuser seeks treatment and there are no
appropriate treatment services available within the required time frame as outlined below, interim services
must be made available. The Contractor agrees to maintain the wait list management system in WITS
that includes a unique patient identifier and include information on dates of requests for admission to
treatment, provision of interim services and source for those services, referrals made for treatment or
interim services, and disposition of clients on the waiting list.
¢ The waiting list must contain a mechanism that identifies and counts the number of applicants
who present and are determined to be appropriate for substance abuse treatment but are unable to
be placed as there is no capacity;
¢ Maintain contact with individuals awaiting admission; and,
e Admit or transfer waiting list clients at the earliest possible time to an appropriate treatment
program within a reasonable geographic area.

. The Contractor shall remove a client awaiting treatment from the waiting list only when one of the
following conditions exists: )
e Such persons cannot be located for admission into treatment or
e  Such persons refuse treatment.

Specific Interim Services for Pregnant Women, Women with Dependent Children and Injection Drug
Users: _

The Contractor agrees to contact the BDAS Clinical Services Unit if a pregnant women and women with
dependent children or individuals with a history of injection drug use, cannot be accepted into treatment
within specific time frames, and agrees that interim services will be provided or facilitated by the
Contractor. Interim services for pregnant women must include counseling on the effects of alcohol and
drug use on the fetus, referrals for prenatal care, and counseling and education about HIV and
tuberculosis. Interim services for injection drug users must also include counseling and education in the
risks of needle sharing, about the risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants, and referral for HIV,
Hepatitis C and tuberculosis screening/testing. All interim services shall be documented in the client’s
clinical record in the WITS system.

Interim Services for other Clients:

The Contractor shall provide, or refer the client to, interim services until level of service identified in the
level of care assessment is available and/or the client is willing and assessed as being sufficiently
motivated to take advantage of the proposed level of service or interim services. If the client is not able to
access interim services at the contractor’s agency for geographic or other reasons, the client shall be
referred to a DHHS funded provider where they are able to access interim services.

Services to pregnant and parenting women:

The Contractor further agrees that childcare will be made available to women who are in treatment with
their dependent children, either through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site legal
childcare provider. Other services required are as follows:
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e The family is treated as a unit and, therefore, admits both women and their children into treatment
services, if appropriate.

o The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary medical care for women who are receiving
substance abuse services, including prenatal care.

¢ The Contractor shall provide or arrange for childcare while the women are receiving services
even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental rights have not been terminated.

o The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary pediatric care for the women’s children,
including immunizations.

e The Contractor shall provide or arrange for gender-specific substance abuse treatment and other
therapeutic interventions for women that may address issues of relationships, sexual abuse,
physical abuse, and parenting, and childcare while the women are receiving these services.

e The Contractor shall provide or arrange for therapeutic interventions for children in custody of
women in treatment, which may, among other things, address the children’s developmental needs,
their issues of sexual and physical abuse, and neglect.

e The Contractor shall provide or arrange for sufficient case management and transportation
services to ensure that the women and their children have access to the services provided for
above.

¢ If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person refuses treatment or
says (s)he is not interested in treatment, the wait list report shall be completed with the
engagement activities attempted.

o If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person no shows or cancels

" treatment, interim services must be provided, as stipulated above and the wait Iist report shall be
completed that demonstrates the activities of follow up, engagement and substance abuse
treatment services offered.

Relationship(s) with Primary Health Care:
The Contractor shall arrange and coordinate services and exchange of information with other health care
providers and agencies which:
o Identifies the client’s current Primary Care Provider (PCP) at screening and/or intake.
¢ If the client has no current PCP, the Contractor shall identify available provider(s) in the client's
local area such as a federally qualified community health center, community health center, or
other local health services.
¢ Obtains client/patient authorization to communicate with PCP office.
¢ If no authorization is completed initially, the Contractor shall educate client as to the importance
of engaging the PCP in ongoing care and address the client’s concerns as part of treatment, with
goal of obtaining authorization before discharge.
¢ Sends the discharge summary to PCP and offers to discuss recovery issues with the provider.
o Arranges (or has the client arrange) a post-discharge appointment with PCP for the client/patient
for follow-up of the substance use disorder.

Tobacco Cessation:

The Contractor- shall have policies and procedures for both client and Contractor staff, that not only
creates a tobacco-free environment as required by law, but to offer tobacco cessation tools and
programming. Tobacco use, in and of itself, shall not be grounds for administrative discharge from the
program. Initially, all clients shall be assessed for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products.
Providers may tap into resources such as the DPHS Tobacco Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and
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the certified tobacco cessation counselors available through the QuitLine. Other resources for providers
include:

Breathe New Hampshire

145 Hollis St., Unit C

Manchester, NH 03101

603-669-2411 (phone) or 1-800-835-8647

The New Hampshire Medicaid program covers:

¢ Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) Gum,

e NRT Patch,

e NRT Nasal Spray,

¢ NRT Lozenge,

¢ NRT Inhaler,

e Varenicline (Chantix),

e Bupropion (Zyban),

¢  Group Counseling and/or

¢ Individual Counseling. Up to 12 individual counseling sessions are covered per year through a
mental health provider (Note: These sessions would NOT be in addition to other mental health
counseling sessions under Medicaid). Pregnant women also have the option of group counseling.

For more information, visit the website at:
http://www.dhhs.state.nh.us/DHHS/MEDICAIDPROGR AM/default.htm

Tuberculosis:

The Contractor shall make available tuberculosis services (defined as screening, counseling, testing, and
treatment) directly, or through other providers, to each client receiving treatment. In the case of an
individual denied admission due to lack of capacity, the substance abuse treatment Contractor will refer
the individual to another provider of tuberculosis services if appropriate. All Contractor providing
residential services shall make available, either on-site or through agreements with health care providers,
tuberculosis services, including screening, testing, counseling and referral for medical treatment.

Physical location and facilities:

For the purpose of providing the services described in Section II of the Scope of Services, the Contractor
shall obtain and maintain a suitable space complying with all fire, health, and safety codes to include
handicapped accessibility and being wheelchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written prior approval of DHHS, acting through BDAS, before entering into
any agreement concerning relocation of the service site.

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care:
DHHS recognizes that culture and language have considerable impact on how consumers access services.
Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access services. To
ensure equal access to quality services, DHHS expects that Contractors shall provide culturally and
linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with

respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.
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3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of Limited English Proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to them
without language assistance.

4. The Contractor is responsible for reasonable accommodations in arranging for interpreter services
for hearing impaired clients. ’

5. The Contractor offers consumers or clients a forum through which those individuals have the

opportunity to provide feedback to the Contractor regarding cultural and linguistic issues that

may deserve response.

Compliance with State and Federal Laws:
The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1. All services provided pursuant to this Contract shall be subject to the most current proposed or
formalized rules and regulations promulgated by DHHS, pursuant to RSA 541-A.

2. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state confidentiality laws specifically: 42
CFR Part 2B, N.H. RSA 318 B:12 and N.H. RSA 172:8-A and the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA): http.//'www.hhs.gov/ocr/privacy/

3. The Contractor shall meet the standards outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-A 300,
Certification and Operation of Alcohol and other Drug Disorder Treatment Programs. This
‘administrative rule is currently expired and under revision. The Contractor should plan.to meet -
the requirements as outlined in the expired rule until the revisions are completed. He-A 300 can
be viewed on the RFP link to this document http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/business/r{p/index.htm.

4. The Contractor shall, upon the direction of the State, provide court-ordered evaluation in their
catchment area and a sliding scale fee shall apply and the inability to pay shall not interfere with
the completion and submission of the court-ordered evaluation and shall, upon the direction of the
State, offer treatment to those individuals pursuant to RSA 172:13.

5. Contractors considering research, including research conducted by student interns, using
individuals served by this contract as subjects must adhere to the legal requirements governing
human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the DHHS via contact with BDAS prior to
initiating any research involving subjects or participants related to this contract. In addition,
research conducted on subjects served by this contract may need to be approved by the New
Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services Committee for the Protection of Human
Subjects (NH DHHS CPHS) see http.//www.dhhs.nh. gov/irb/

Client Stabilization:

The Contractor will be expected to arrange for medical clearance for all clients receiving treatment
services supported by DHHS administered by BDAS to assure that they are not at risk for acute
withdrawal from alcohol and certain drugs. The Contractor shall be expected to provide a range of
integrated services that include withdrawal management services that follow detoxification guidelines
outlined in Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) #45, Detoxification and Substance Abuse Treatment
and ASAM guidelines.
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Clinical Services:
The Contractor shall provide the following:

a. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse counselor on site each day of the week during primary
treatment hours. The substance abuse counselor shall have a bachelor’s degree or equivalent in
social work/psychology, guidance or nursing and/or a certificate in the field of addiction studies
from an approved educational institution or educational/life experience.

b. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse support staff on site each day of the week during all hours
not covered by a substance abuse counselor. The substance abuse support staff must have a high
school or General Equivalency Diploma (GED). Preference is given to individuals who have
completed additional courses or taken training in substance use disorders or other health fields.

c. An intake/admission coordinator on site Monday through Friday of each week. The
intake/admission coordinator shall have one (1) years’ work experience in the field of addiction
studies.

d. A full-time Executive Director, not filling any of the positions described above.

Evaluation:

The contractor shall conduct a full substance abuse evaluation, which includes administration of either the
ASI or GAIN to determine eligibility for services. This evaluation must be updated every 120 days or
when the client transitions to a different level of care. :

Assessment of Risk for Self-Harm/Suicide: The Contractor shall have policies and practices for
assessing risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment, such as at initial contact, during screening, intake,
admission, on-going treatment services and at discharge, and a process for referral when necessary to
include referrals to mental health services.

The Contractor shall develop policies, programs and protocols in accordance with SAMHSA guidelines
as outlined in the Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs) and Technical Assistance Publications
(TAPs). These publications can be downloaded from

http://www kap.samhsa.gov/products/manuals/index.htm .

Use of Best Practices: The Contractor is required to use the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) or Global
Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN) assessment tools, the SAMHSA/NIDA MATRS treatment-
planning model and the WITS electronic case management system.

Care Coordination: _

The Contractor is required to assess each client’s need/appropriateness for residential transitional living
services and to refer all clients for care coordination services made available through the Access to
Recovery (ATR) initiative administered by the BDAS so long as this initiative remains available on
behalf of DHHS that would commence following the initial course of treatment. Contractors are required
to address motivational issues with clients for them to participate effectively in the care coordination and
recovery support services. Contractors are required to have clients sign the “ATR Client Participation
Agreement” (made available by BDAS), indicating that they either agree or opt out of participating in
these services. The contractor will facilitate all clients who agree to participate in these services to
complete the Client Participation Agreement and upon obtaining a signed release of information, refer
clients to an ATR Care Coordinator Program at least two weeks prior to anticipated date of discharge
(dis-enrollment) from services. Assessing the need for aftercare services is expected to take place while
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the client is involved within the most recent episode of care, with a referral being made and accepted by
the care coordination service prior to the client being discharged.

The Contractor must provide the following for use by the care coordination program:
e Private space for interviewing/meeting with clients.
e  Access to internet (either wired or wireless) in the meeting space
e Telephone in the meeting space and
e A contact person at the Contractor’s site for logistics.

It is the expectation of the BDAS at DHHS that, upon completion of appropriate signed releases, the
Contractor will provide the care coordination program with necessary information from the clinical record
(evaluation, treatment plan, progress notes, etc.) for the care coordination program to develop a service
plan with the client.

All alcohol and other drug treatment providers under contract with the BDAS on behalf of DHHS are
required to address with all clients, the need for continuing services. This includes clinically managed
low-intensity treatment programs under contract with the BDAS on behalf of DHHS as well as care
coordination and recovery support services made available through DHHS contracted providers; the ATR
initiative administered by BDAS, so long as this initiative remains available; and/or any other resources
that become available to pay for these services that would commence following the initial course of
treatment. The referral for these services should take place prior to discharge from the initial course of

- -freatment.--—-- e e - : e

Relevant Policies and Guidelines:

The services provided for in this agreement shall be in addition to the services provided for in any other
agreement between the State of New Hampshire, any of its agencies, or any of its officers, and the
Contractor.

Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate
fully with, and answer all questions of representatives of the State conducting any periodic or special
review of the performance of the Contractor or any inspection of the facilities of the Contractor.

Publications Funded Under Contract:

Al products produced under this contract are in the public domain. All products (written, video, audio)
produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before
printing, production, distribution, or use. The Contract shall credit DHHS on all materials produced
under this contract.

Student Internships:

The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures related to student interns that address minimum
coursework, experience and core competencies for those interns having direct contact with individuals
served by this contract. Student interns shall complete an approved ethics course prior to beginning the
internship. ‘
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Staff Licensing Requirements:

The ratio of licensed to non-licensed service providers shall be as follows:

Agencies must have at least one Licensed, or Masters Licensed, Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(LADC/MLADC) for each two unlicensed counselors providing substance abuse treatment services and a
sufficient number of MLADCs or LADCs with the Licensed Clinical Supervision (LCS) credential to
adequately provide for clinical supervision of all clinical staff. This requirement shall be met by the
Contractor no later than six (6) months after the date of the Contract effective date.

Updated resumes, which clearly indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor, including
current positions of staff supported by funds provided through this Contract, shall be forwarded to the
BDAS as agent for DHHS. The documentation shall include a copy of the New Hampshire Alcohol and
Drug Counselor License.

Staff Certification Requirements:

In addition to the requirements for LADCs, all Contractor milieu staff in residential settings and
transitional living programs and staff providing recovery support aftercare group services shall be
Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) under the Board of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional
Practice, or working toward that certification under RSA 330-C
(http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/NHTOC/NHTOC-XXX-330-C.htm). Certification must be
completed within six (6) months of the contract’s approval date.

Staff providing recovery support services are expected to be Certified Recovery Support Workers
(CRSW) under the Board of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional Practice, or working toward that
certification. Peer recovery support services made available through Recovery Community Organizations
(RCOs), under agreement with BDAS on behalf of DHHS, shall be provided by individuals certified by
those organizations (CRSW not required for peer recovery support services).

Supervision:

Ongoing clinical supervision will include weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment of progress. When enough candidates are
under supervision, group supervision may be included to help optimize the learning experience.

The content of supervision must include knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to
the practice issues faced by the supervisee, including the core functions as described in the Twelve Core
Functions of Alcohol and Drug Counseling.

The content of supervision must also include the standards of practice and ethical conduct, with particular
emphasis given to the counselor’s role and appropriate responsibilities, professional boundaries, and
power dynamics.

Staffing Changes:

BDAS as agent for DHHS shall be notified of changes in key personnel with updated resumes that clearly
indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor submitted within five (5) working days. Key
personnel are those staff for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent providing alcohol or other
drug abuse treatment services.
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1. New Hires: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing within one month
of hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee, which clearly
indicates the staff member is employed by the Contractor, shall accompany this notification.

2. Vacancies: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing within 14 calendar
days, if at any time, any site funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to
perform all required services for more than one month.

Other Requirements:
The Contractor shall attend trainings and/or meetings as requested by DHHS.

ATR and Recovery Support Services:

All DHHS funded treatment and recovery support service providers must alsc be approved Access to
Recovery (ATR) providers, so long as the ATR initiative remains available, as this will be the source of
funding for these recovery support services through the Voucher Management System (VMS).
Information on becoming an ATR provider can be found on the DHHS website:

http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas/atr/becomingprovider.htm

Regional Network Participation:

The Contractor will designate administrative level staff to regularly participate in the Regional Network
and-contribute to-overall-regional network strategic ptanning, monitoring; evaluation; and cross systems
communication efforts. The Contractor is highly encouraged to serve on one of the work groups and
contribute to data collection, regional strategic planning and evaluation. Participation will be measured by
the annual Partner Survey (http://www.partnertool.net/) administered by NH Center for Excellence under
contract with BDAS as agent for DHHS.

Performance Measures:

All treatment programs under contract with BDAS on behalf of DHHS are required to report on the
National Outcome Measures (NOMs) established by the SAMHSA, as required in the Federal Substance
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, via the WITS (electronic case management) system. The
Department of Health and Human Services reserves the right to consider Contractor performance across
all of the domains in future funding decisions.

Data and Reporting Requirements:

1. Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall provide
any periodic or special reports required by the DHHS.

2. The Contractor shall notify BDAS, as an authorized agent of DHHS, whenever the Contractor has
reached ninety percent capacity to admit new clients. In addition the Contractor shall have a waiting
list management policy in accordance with the SAPT Block Grant requirements. This 90%
notification process will become automatic when this operation is fully functional in WITS.

3. The Contractor shall notify DHHS through BDAS, within one working day, if sufficient capacity is
not available to provide treatment services to a pregnant woman, parenting woman or injection drug
user within the required time frames and a referral elsewhere is not successful and interim services
cannot be provided.
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4. The Contractor shall comply with all tesearch and/or infortation systems developient activities for
the electronic case management/Web Information Technology System (CM/WITS) conducted by, or
authorized by, DHHS.

5. The Contractor shall administer any client surveys, client evaluations including the addiction Severity
Index (ASI) or the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN), client treatment outcome
instruments, the M.A.T.R.S. Treatment Planning Tool, as required by DHHS.

6. The Contractor must have the ability to communicate and submit required reports via the Web-based
submission system and/or e-mail, for treatment s and recovery support services and interim services.
All required clinical and documentation activities shall be entered in WITS unless specifically granted
an exception by BDAS on behalf of DHHS.

Critical Incident/Sentinel Event Reporting:
The Department’s Sentinel Event policy is contained in the following link:
http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/sentinel.htm

Division of Community Based Care Services (DCBCS) Sentinel Event Notification:

The preceding events require the immediate verbal notification to the BDAS Assistant Administrator or
Clinical Services Unit Administrator upon the discovery of a sentinel event involving an individual(s)
receiving services through a DHHS substance use disorder treatment Contractor.

Since the initial and immediate verbal notification of a sentinel event is likely to include protected health
information (PHI) as identified below, the Contractor of services to individuals receiving services funded
by the DHHS shall disclose PHI in a private and secure manner. Contractors and vendors should not leave
voice-mail messages, but instead make direct telephone contact with the BDAS Assistant Administrator
or Clinical Services Unit Administrator or designee. If direct telephone contact is not possible, a voice
mail message may be left without protected health information, such as medications and relevant medical
and psychiatric diagnoses. As soon as possible after the initial verbal notification, the Contractor will mail
or fax a completed Sentinel Event Reporting Form as directed in this protocol.

Notification shall include the following:

1. Name and phone number of the individual reporting.

2. Name, date of birth (DOB), medications and all relevant medical and psychiatric diagnoses of
individual(s) involved;

3. Location, date, and time of event;

4. Description of the event including what, when, where, how, and other relevant information and
identification of any other individuals involved;

5. Legal status of the individual involved with regard to guardianship and power of attorney;

6. Community, guardian, family and/or families’ knowledge of the event; and

7. Contractor contact person and contact information.

It shall be the responsibility of the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical Services Unit Administrator
or designee to notify the DCBCS Quality Improvement Director by e-mail as soon as the BDAS Clinical
Administrator or designee becomes aware a Sentinel Event has occurred. The DCBCS Quality
Improvement Director shall make immediate notification to the Commissioner. Internal e-mails within the
Department may contain PHI and all Department employees will utilize safeguards to ensure the privacy
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of the PHI as stated in the DHHS General Manual Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA) policy #504.

Each DCBCS contractor recognizes its responsibility to report evidence of neglect, abuse or exploitation
to the appropriate regulatory agencies as required by RSA 161-F: 42-57 and RSA 169-C:29. In any case
of known or suspected neglect, abuse or exploitation, the Contractor aware of the situation shall follow all
applicable rules relative to individual rights protection procedures.

Written follow up information is to be forwarded by the reporting Contractor to the appropriate BDAS
Administrator listed below within 72 hours by completing the Sentinel Event Reporting Form. To protect
clients’ confidential information, reporting Contractors should submit the Sentinel Event Reporting Form
either by fax to the BDAS Assistant Administrator or the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator by
a mail service that provides delivery confirmation.

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

Assistant Administrator

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Or by fax to the BDAS Administrator’s Office at 271-6105;

Follow-up information is the responsibility of the Contractor and should be submitted in a way as to
protect clients’ confidential information such as by mail with delivery confirmation and should include:
...L....The Sentinel Event Reporting Form{- www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/sentinelform.pdf);—
2. Additional details as they are learned or if the status of the situation changes; and,
3. Copies of newspaper articles.

Additionally, DHHS requires critical incident reporting. The Contractor shall report all critical
incidents/sentinel events to the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator immediately via telephone.
Every effort shall be made to reach the BDAS administrator directly. If a voice message is necessary,
sufficient provider contact information shall be provided so that DHHS is able to reach the reporter, or
other responsible staff, immediately.

A critical incident includes, but is not limited to, any child or adult protective services report to the
Division of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF), or the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS),
respectively, regarding any incident involving 1) a staff/employee to youth or client, 2) youth to youth, or
3) client to client. This includes incidents that occur while a client is on leave, or on a pass, from the
Contractor and may be off site at the time the incident occurred.

A sentinel event is an unexpected occurrence involving the death or serious physical or psychological
injury, or risk thereof, signaling the need for immediate investigation and response.

Death or any serious injury or medical emergency regarding staff or clients that requires emergency
medical attention (EMT or other emergency personnel at the Contractor’s site, or a hospital emergency
room visit), or any crime reportable to law enforcement, or any other serious incident must also be .
reported to DHHS as described below.
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Reportablé sentinél events include, but are not liniited to, dany occurretice that meets any of the following

criteria:

1. An unanticipated death or permanent loss of function, not related to the natural course of an
individual’s illness or underlying condition.

2. Homicide or suicide of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or services, that
had been discharged from a Department funded program or facility within 30 days of the event,
or has been evaluated by a service Contractor within the preceding 30 days;

3. Sexual assault or rape of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or services by
another client or employee of any Department funded program or facility where there is an act
that was witnessed or there is sufficient clinical evidence obtained by the Contractor to support
allegation of nonconsensual sexual contact.

4. Unauthorized departure of an individual receiving DHHS funded services, from a facility

providing care, resulting in death or permanent loss of function.

Medication error that results in death, paralysis, coma, or other permanent loss of function.

6. Delay or failure to provide DHHS funded Contractor services that result in death or permanent
loss of function.

7. Abuse as a result of the willful infliction of injury, unreasonable confinement, intimidation, or
punishment with resulting physical harm, or mental anguish. This includes staff neglect or
indifference to infliction of injury or intimidation of one individual by another.

8. Neglect as a result of the failure to provide the goods and services necessary to avoid physical
harm, mental anguish or mental illness.

9. Assault of or by a client of the Contractor that results in the injury of the person or another person
of such severity that medical attention is required.

10. Arson resulting in property loss.

11. High profile events, which may include media coverage and/or police involvement.

w

On-Site Reviews:

1. The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by DHHS to periodically review the
Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and submission, clinical, and
financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to provide the contracted services.

2. Reviews shall include, but not be limited to, client record reviews to measure compliance with
this exhibit.

3. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services
are not found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit.

4. DHHS staff shall contact the Contractor in advance of the site visit, so that the Contractor shall
have sufficient time to prepare any guidance/reporting systems or logs that will be reviewed at the
site visit.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and in accordance with
Exhibit B.

Effective July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, funds in the amount $424,813 for Specialty Residential
Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women shall be used to cover cost of services not covered by
Medicaid. Contractors providing Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women may
bill DHHS for “Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5):
Room & Board Only” when a client’s treatment is being covered by Medicaid/New Hampshire Health
Protection Program. If the client requires treatment in the specialty program beyond Medicaid/New
Hampshire Health Protection Program coverage limits, the provider may bill DHHS for both “Specialty
Residential Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): Room & Board Only” and
“Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): Clinical
Services”.

Funding for this Agreement is funded by various sources as a percentage of the total amount of
$1,356,945 as follows:
s 61 % Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93.959);
e 16 % General Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Intervention and

Treatment Funds; and
e 23 % General funds.

. Payment Methodology

The Contractor shall be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services listed in Exhibit A,
paragraph B. The following terms and conditions detailed in this Exhibit B shall apply to all services
unless expressly stated otherwise.

The Contractor shall agree to use and apply all contract funds from the State for costs and expenses as
detailed in the Service Reimbursement Table below. Allowable costs and expenses shall be
determined by the State in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Starting
in State Fiscal Year 2015 (effective July 1, 2014) the contractor will receive a payment for each service
at the rates and within the limits described below. For clients receiving DHHS supported services, the
contractor may not charge the client, any 3 party payor, and DHHS a combined rate that is more than
the rate established by BDAS for that level of service or any other fees. These parties shall be charged
in the following order:
1. The maximum allowed charge will be billed to the client’s insurer, if applicable.
2. The client will be charged their portion of the maximum allowed charge based on the BDAS
published sliding fee scale.
3. The balance of the maximum allowed charge, after deducting the client’'s portion and insurance
payment, if applicable, shall be charged to DHHS.

IN]
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" "Service Reimbursement Table - A check mark indicates the services and corresponding rates the
Contractor will be reimbursed for.

ck mark Servi imit
|
applicable Service Established
. Rate
service
X Evaluation $225 1 every 90 days
X Outpatient — Individual $18.75/unit*** $190 of
X Outpatient — Group $5.00/unit combined
individual &
group/week
X Intensive Outpatient® $80.00/day $320 (4
days)/week
X Low-Intensity Residential — Adult $100.00/day $700 (7 days)
/week
X Low-Intensity Residential — Adolescent $128.00/day $896 (7 days)
/week
X High-Intensity Residential — Adult $130.00/day $910 (7 days)
/week
X Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant | $66.00/day $462 (7 days)
& Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): Room /week
& Board Only
X Specialty Residential Treatment for Pregnant | $162.60/day $1138.20
| & Parenting Women (ASAM Level 3.5): (7 days) /week
Clinical Services
X Medium Intensity Residential — Adolescent $170.00/day $1190 (7 days)
/week
Recovery Support Services
X Individual $15.00/unit $160 of
X Group $5.00/unit combined
individual &
group/week
X Continuous Recovery Monitoring — $15.00/contact $60 of combined
Attempted™* attempted and
X Continuous Recovery Monitoring — $15.00/contact completed/month
Completed for the first 6
months post
discharge
Enhanced Services Varied

* Providers may bill the per diem rate for Intensive Outpatient Treatment services only on those days
when the client attends individual and/or group counseling associated with the program. It is expected
that each day of attendance includes a minimum of 3 hours of group and/or individual counseling
services. '

**Attempted Contact is at least 3 attempts to contact a client over the course of at least one week.

*** A unit is equal to 15 minutes of service

JatTW.
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It is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a consistent
level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array will also be
monitored by the Department via WITS. Failure to meet this requirement may result in amendment to or
termination of the contract. At a minimum, contractors must provide the array of services they
contracted to provide forin SFY14.

1. Performance Incentives:
A. Access to Services:

Treatment contractors shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or subsequent call,
from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within at least 2 business days following the
day the call was received and shall conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally at the
time of first contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring agency, but
not later than 5 business days following the date of first contact. For each client who screens eligible for
services and starts receiving services, whether for the identified level of care or interim services, within
10 business days following the eligibility screening, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive
payment of $75.00. Access incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for services in the
previous calendar month.

B. Completion:

For each client who is discharged from the program because they have completed treatment or
transferred to another treatment provider as recorded in the Discharge Type field of the WITS
Discharge Module, the treatment contractor will receive an incentive payment of $75.00. Completion
incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for services in the previous calendar month.

C. Client Outcomes:

If a client who was discharged from the program meets at least 3 of the Outcome criteria below in the
3" and/or 6™ month post-discharge, as evidenced by the WITS Follow-Up module, the treatment
contractor will receive an incentive payment in the amount of $50. The 3™ month post discharge is
considered to be 60 — 120 days post discharge. The 6™ month post discharge is considered to be 150 —
210 days post discharge. Outcomes incentives will be calculated and paid on a monthly basis for clients
meeting criteria in the previous calendar month. It is expected that at least 50% of discharged clients
will be contacted for 3 and/or 6 month follow-up over the contract year.

1. Abstinence: The client reports reduced or no substance use in the past 30 days.

il. Employment/Education: The client reports increased or retained employment or the client
reports returning to or staying in school.

iii. Crime and Criminal Justice: The client reports no arrests in the past 30 days.

iv. Stability in Housing: The client reports being in stable housing.

V. Social Connectedness: The client reports engagement in Recovery Support Services, Care

Coordination, and/or Community Based Support Groups in the past 30 days.

D. Performance Incentive Payout Limits:
Performance incentives are limited to no more than 6% of the total contract amount annually. The total
amount paid out during the contract year will never exceed the total contract amount. DHHS is not
obligated to make payment for any incentives that occur outside of the current contract year; however,
incentives may be carried over to future contract years at the discretion of DHHS.
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2. "Failure to Meet Deliverables:

The Contractor shall comply with all contract requirements as detailed in Exhibit A section B, Required
Services. Upon determination that Contractor may not be meeting the required deliverables, within two
(2) weeks BDAS will provide a written correction action plan. Within two (2) weeks of notification of the
corrective action plan, Contractor will provide a written remedial plan. BDAS will monitor the corrective
actions for 60 days. Failure to meet requirements of the corrective action plan within 60 days may
result in withholding of any or all payments or termination of the contract.

3. Invoicing & Billing:
All billing shall be completed via the WITS system according to protocols established by BDAS.
The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase

or lease any equipment with a cost in excess of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2500) and with a
useful life beyond one year.

Il.  Allocation of Funding:

It is incumbent upon the contractor to monitor service array and utilization to ensure that a consistent
level of service will be available throughout the contract period. Utilization and array will also be
monitored by the Department via WITS. The contractor is prohibited from spending down more than the
sum of the total contract amount that includes the cost of the client services and related incentives.

. Availability of Alternative Funding:

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services may terminate or amend the contract
should alternate third party payors, including Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health Protection Program
and/or insurance available on the New Hampshire Insurance Exchange cover any of the services
included in this contract.

IV. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT)
Block Grant funds:

The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.

Restrictions on SAPT Block Grant on State and Contractor expenditures include:

The State may not:

« Provide inpatient hospital services except under those conditions outlined in the regulations.
Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

Purchase or improve land.

Purchase, construct, or permanently improve buildings or other facilities.

Purchase major medical equipment. ’

Satisfy any requirement for the expenditure of non-Federal funds as a condition for the receipt of
Federa! funds. (in-kind)

» Provide financial assistance to any entity other than a public or non-profit private entity.

+ Provide individuals with hypodermic needles or syringes.

fa "
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Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in FFY91 for treatment services
provided in penal or correctional institutions of the State.

The Contractor shall not:

Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting testing for the
etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is accompanied by
appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting any form of
needle exchange, free needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of needles for
intravenous drug abusers.

Charitable Choice:

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious organizations are able to
equally compete for Federal substance abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without
impairing the religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the religious
freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a, 45
CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory
provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are applicable to the
SAPT Block Grant program. No funds provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government to organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended for
inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. If an

- —-organization-conducts such activities, it must-offer them separately;-in-time-orJocation;-from-the-

VI

programs or services for which it receives funds directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government under any applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an amendment
limited to adjusting amounts within the budgets and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and
Executive Council.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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State of Neto Hampshirve
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 16, 1983. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 7% day of April A.D. 2014

Ty Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




‘CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, LMY( e Goauen , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the electe edDfficer of the Agency; cannot be contract s;gnatory

1.1am a duly elected Officer of Cxx2 o e ¢ Nourol Cooreil o MeohollSrnm

{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on A\ ag)\ H
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the __©¥23\dext & CEOD
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

he Q\° day of _N\oou , 20 14.

(Date Contract Sigeed)
4. Vodec rollehor is the duly elected pTQS ithJ\' g Qt\D
© 7 —{Naneof Contract Signatory) - wee e e— o Title-of Contract-Signatory)

ture of the Elected ©fficer)

of the Agency. _
‘/a\//){ /2 , :d D (W
. (Signa
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of H] !\5&20! oV %h

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this & \5* day of MOU,] ,20_{ L—I )

By Loayie (‘)n alon
(Name of Elected Offiter of the Agency)

/;Zpa,u/s/,/ %@m

(Notary Publ\ﬁfustscﬂthe Peate)

(NOTARY SEAL)

LAUREL A, LEFAVOR, Notary Public
. . My Commission Expires September 22, 2015
Commission Expires: -

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management - ~
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



New Hampshire Substance Abuse Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Substance Abuse Treatment and Recovery Support Services
I S e “gontract - s

This first Amendment to the Substance Abuse Treatment and Recovery Support Services
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #1”) dated this April 24th day of 2013, is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State” or "Department") and Greater Nashua Councii on Alcoholism, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at
615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03060. :

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the “Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 20, 2012, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C, Paragraph 17, the
State may, extend the agreement by one year by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS the State desires to have the Contractor continue to provide the services as
specified in the agreement for another one year period;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in'the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1) Amendment and modification of P-37 “Agreement”;
a) Change Completion date in Block 1.7 of the P-37 to read June 30, 2014.
b) Change Price Limitation in Block 1.8 of the P-37 to read $ 2,713,890.00

2) Amendment and modification of Exhibit A;

a) Delete “CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2012, or date of G&C approval, whichever is later,
Through June 30, 2013"

b) Change Il A from: “The contractor shall provide treatment services in the geographic
area(s)/location(s) as specified below:"

Change to: “The contractor shall provide treatment services, in each State Fiscal Year,
in the geographic area(s)/location(s) as specified below:”

c) Change [l B Group Recovery Support Services from: “Contractors, with the exception of
those agencies that only offer outpatient services, are required to develop the capacity
for group recovery support aftercare services for a minimum of 50% of the number
treatment clients (including outpatient and transitional living program clients) they are
under contract to serve. These group recovery support services are for clients
discharged from substance use disorder (SUD) treatment services provided under
contract with BDAS on behalf of DHHS, which may include clients that had received
SUD treatment from the Contractor or a different agency. Contractors are only allowed to
access these services for their clients or clients that had received SUD treatment from a
different agency through the statewide care coordination program under agreement with
BDAS on behalf of DHHS.”

CA/DHHSH00213
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Change to: “Contractors, with the exception of those agencies that only offer outpatient
services, are required to develop the capacity for group recovery support aftercare
services for a minimum of 25% of the number treatment clients (including outpatient and
transitional living program clients) they are under contract to serve. These group
recovery support services are for clients discharged from substance use disorder (SUD)
treatment services provided under contract with BDAS on behalf of DHHS, which may
include clients that had received SUD treatment from the Contractor or a different
agency. Contractors are only allowed to access these services for their clients or clients
that had received SUD treatment from a different agency through the statewide care
coordination program under agreement with BDAS on behalf of DHHS.”

d) Delete Table SAMHSA National Outcome Measures

Replace with:
Table SAMHSA National Outcome Measures
DOMAIN OUTCOME SUBSTANCE ABUSE
TREATMENT MEASURES
Access Reduce the wait |« 80% of clients will receive a telephbne eligibility
time for Intake & screening of the initial first contact with the
Admission Contractor and those who screen eligible will
receive an intake within 5 business days of the
eligibility screening and
_» 80% of clients who meet admission. criteria will be_
admitted to services or interim services within 5
business days of intake.

Retention Increase 70% of clients that have participated in the minimum
retention in participation requirement. See section in the following
substance abuse | pay for performance paragraph.
treatment

Capacity Increase service Increase by 10% the (unduplicated) number of clients
capacity receiving service from previous year — DHHS will not

be held to this standard for SFY 2013 due to significant
budget reductions.
Social Increased 25% of clients participate in care coordination and post
Connectedness | recovery treatment recovery support services (RSS).
supports/
connections
Perception of | Client perception Under development
Care of care
Cost Cost Average Contractor cost per client for services
Effectiveness | effectiveness - provided per client are within 10% of the average
(average cost) statewide cost per client of service for each modality of
: service.
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DOMAIN OUTCOME SUBSTANCE ABUSE
- TREATMENT MEASURES
Use of - ‘Useof = - e WITS Electronic Health Record
Evidenced- Evidenced-Based s ASI or GAIN Assessment _
Based Practices ¢ NIDA/SAMHSA MATRS Treatment Planning
Practices model
e Clinical model for treatment services
recognized by National Registry of Evidence
Based Programs and Practices (NREPP).

3) Amendment and modification of Exhibit B;

a) Delete “CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2012, or date of G&C approval, whichever is later,

through June 30, 2013"

b) Change from Section II: “The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for
cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the services, as detailed in Exhibit B,
during the period of the contract shall not exceed:”

Change to: “The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and
expenses incurred in the performance of the services during each State Fiscal Year of

the contract shall not exceed:”

¢) Delete in Section Il; “TOTAL: $1,356,945.00"

4) Add Exhibit B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, B-5 and B-6
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

528)13 Lﬂw o Jow VB

Date = ' Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Cominis
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

sz QN@&\\M\UJ

Date Name: P3¢ \&alolna
Title: Presidarnt € GO

Acknowledgement: )

State ofm_mg,County of_\&h\hb_m;m)_%b_ on_ 5 \’I \ \D __, before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
“bethe persormwhose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this

document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

/;/M &éz/ /)

Name and Title of No(ﬁ'y or Justice of the Peace

LAUREL A. LEFAVOR, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 22, 2015
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

AT Mon 2002 e R TR
Date Nahte: \Veanne. £. He e
Title: AHe—r

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHSN00213
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation without Seal)

I, L(..u.xr'\ [ Goa,u_;mn , do hereby certify that:
{(Name of Clerk of the Qorporation; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Clerk of Groade sy NOBS LG gg\gmg \ on_ Blednolis

(Corporation Name)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation duly held on
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services, , for the provision of

Susance Wouse Trechaual & Qe Sugp. services.

RESOLVED: Thatthe _¥YYocidoak & CEO
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State
and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modmcatlons thereto as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or
“appropriate.

.3, The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect

as of the “HP day of _ Ny i , 204%.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. /\)L\{( ke \o\na is the duly elected ?Yﬁi\d&n‘k’ a CJED

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Corporation.

;faa L ;2@ Yo

{Signature of Clerk of théCorporation)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Hi\lsborwﬁn

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Zm day of MO&{ , 20\3

By!gng‘g %sug .
{Name of Clerk ofthe Corporation)

{Notary Public/Justice the Peace)
(NOTARY SEAL) i
Commission Fxpifes:\ EFAVOR. Notary P”b 'c
n Expires Seﬁfs"'ba'
My Commissio
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management Page 1 of 1

Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-6100 1-800-804-0909

Nancy L. Rollins FAX: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Associate Commissioner

May 25,2012

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, Bureau
of Drug & Alcohol Services, to enter into an agreement with Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism D/B/A
Keystone Hall (Vendor #166574 B001), 615 Amhurst Street, Nashua, NH 03060, to provide for a continuum of
substance abuse treatment services, in an amount not to exceed $1,356,945.00 to be effective July 1, 2012 or date
of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2013. Funds are available in the

following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2013:

05-95-95-958410-5365 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, DCBCS TREATMENT & PREVENTION, ALCOHOL AND OTHER TREATMENT

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount
SFY 2013 | 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 95846501 $833,565.00
Subtotal $833,565.00

05-95-95-958410-1388 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, DCBCS TREATMENT AND PREVENTION, GOVERNOR

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount
SFY 2013 | 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Sve 95848501 $217.,425.00
Subtotal $217,425.00

05-95-95-958410-1387 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, DCBCS TREATMENT & PREVENTION, TREATMENT-PREVENTION-STATE

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

SFY 2013 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 95841387 $305,955.00
Subtotal $$305,955.00
Total $1,356,945.00




His Excelicny, Governor John H, Lynch
and the Ilcr-orable Executive Council

May 25, 212

Page 2 of 4

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this agreement is to provide a continuum of substance abuse treatment services such as
community based outpatient, intensive outpatient, residential, transitional living, and recovery support services,
including specialized treatment services for pregnant and parenting women and their children, in the Greater

Nashua area.

Client eligibility for treatment services is targeted at those either unable to pay for services or able to pay only
part of the cost of services, and who has or is suspected of having an alcohol or other drug abuse problem, and
who is a resident of the State of New Hampshire or is homeless in NH. All clients discharged from treatment
services supported by this contract will be referred to care coordination and recovery-support aftercare services as
clinically appropriate, supported separately by the Federal Access to Recovery Grant.

The State is migrating toward a Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care. Recovery-oriented systems
of care are networks of organizations, agencies and community members that coordinate a wide spectrum of
services to prevent, intervene in, and treat substance use problems and disorders. In addition, this contract will
allow the State to improve the quality and array of services available to clients. Quality improvement efforts
include the exchange of data and information that will support “data driven” prevention and treatment
programming to better address the needs to the region.

The New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning reported the 2009 Population Estimates of New Hampshire
Cities and Towns as 1,324,575. The National Survey on Drug Use and Health commissioned by the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration in 2008/2009 reported the following demographic data for
New Hampshire:

= Alcohol Abuse: 97,630 (7% of population)

= Alcohol dependence: 44,850 (3% of population)

= Illicit Drug Abuse: 43,810 (3% of population)

*  Tllicit Drug Dependence: 32,240 (2% of population)

*  Substance Abuse: 126,630 (10% of population)

* Needing but not receiving treatment for alcohol abuse: 93,990 (7% of population)

» Needing but not receiving treatment for illicit drug use: 39,390 (3% of population)

In addition, the New Hampshire Medical Examiner office reported 172 drug related overdose deaths in NH during
2010. The New Hampshire Administrative Office of the Courts reported 9,500 arrests and 5,000 convictions for
Driving While Limpaired in 2009. Approximately 90% of individuals arrested for Driving While Impaired have an
underlying substance abuse disorder according to the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this Request, agencies would not have
sufficient resources to promote, implement and provide the array of services necessary to provide individuals with
substance use disorders the necessary tools to achieve, enhance and sustain recovery. In addition, failure to
obligate the federal funds in the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant to community based
programs to provide alcohol and other drug treatment service would place that Block Grant in jeopardy.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism D/B/A Keystone Hall was selected for this agreement through a
competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department’s web site on March 6, 2012
through April 2, 2012. In addition, a bidder’s conference was held on March 12,2012,



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

May 25, 2012
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A total of 19 proposals were received. A review committee of three professionals reviewed each proposal. All
reviewers have between three to twenty years experience managing agreements with vendors for various public
health programs. Areas of specific expertise include: maternal and child health; substance abuse prevention and
treatment; chronic and communicable diseases; and public health infrastructure. Eighteen of the proposals were
selected for funding based on review criteria that included availability of funds, consistency with stated funding
priorities, technical score, and equitable geographic distribution. The agency that was not selected did not meet
the minimum scoring criteria established for funding. The Bid Summary is attached.

This request covers services for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, with an option to renew for one
additional year, pending availability of funding, the agreement of the parties and approval of Governor and
Council. These services were contracted previously with this agency in State Fiscal Year 2012 in the amount of

$1,356,945.00. This agreement represents level funding.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

« Utilization criteria will be applied exclusively on a month-by-month basis according to the criteria below.

i Contracts running at 90% to 100% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at 100% of the
contracted rate for that month.

ii. Contracts running at 80% to 89% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at rate of 95% of
the contracted rate for that month.

1il. Contracts running below 80% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at the rate of

utilization for that month (for example for a given month in which utilization was 59% the contractor
would be reimbursed at 59% of the contracted rate for that month).

e Treatment contractors shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or subsequent call,
from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within at least 2 business days following the day
the call was received. The following Access Criteria must be met for a minimum of 80% of prospective
clients (from clients or referring agencies) for the month in which billing is being submitted:

i. Treatment contractors are required to conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally

at the time of first contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring

. agency, but not later than 5 business days following the date of first contact,

ii. Those who have screened eligible for services will start receiving services, whether for the identified

level of care or interim services, within 10 business days follow the eligibility screening.

« A minimum of 70% of clients, which have completed or otherwise are no longer receiving services, will

have met the minimum retention standards for the modality of services received as noted below:

i Have completed a minimum of 6 sessions of outpatient treatment services (OP)

1. Have completed a minimum of § days of intensive outpatient treatiment services (IOP) ~ only those
days in which a client has participated in minimum of 10 units (2.5 hours) of service per day (12
units per day is the standard for IOP services) may be counted.

Hi, Have completed a minimum of 14 days of residential treatment service

v. Has completed a minimum of 28 days in a transitional living/halfway house residential program.

Area served: Greater Nashua arca.
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and the Honorable Executive Council
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Source of Funds: 61.43% Federal Funds from Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, 36.32% General Funds and 2.25%

Other (Highway) Funds.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

UL A A
Approved by: )k A r

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

NLR/ljp

The Department of Health and Human Seruvices’ Mission is to join communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence,
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Subject:

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/12)

Substance Abuse Treatment and Recovery Support Services

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION

1.1, State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. D/B/A Keystone
Hall

1.4 Contractor Address

615 Amhurst Street, Nashua, NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number
05-95-95-958410-1387-102-500734
05-95-95-958410-5365-102-500734

603-881-4343 05-95-95-958410-1388-102-500734

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2013 $1,356,945.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4093

s

(DA

1.11 ContractorSign

1

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Pedfer felteh e( Fresideat <CEC

1.13 Ackiowledgement: State of N, County of /A7) [/fsé@/;ﬂzg/,

ong / { before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person wlicse name is-signed on block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.
. LB [DEn e/ : -
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace g NOTARY PusLIC
te of New Hampshlre
Commission Expires
[Seal] /)%a/uz April 5, 2018
1.13.2 Name axnd Title of Notary or Justiceof the Peace

1.14  State Agency Signature

wﬂa/mx/t// O?ﬂ, A’/géjw“é 4

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

1.16 Approv‘al by the N¢H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

By:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: Vznne 2 Hen W,;Q’Hofa\ On: NP
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the governor and
Executive Council of the State of new Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such fiinds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds trom any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE
LIMITATION/PAYMENT

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or penmitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in the
block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY

6.1 In connections with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not fimited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with ali
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Coniractor shall comply with all the
provision of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal Employment
Opportunity”) as supplemented by the regulations of the
United States Department of Labor (41 C.F.R. Part 60), and
with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the State of New
Hampshire or the United States issue to implement these
regulations. The Contractor further agrees to permit the State
or United States access to any of the Contractor’s books,
records and accounts for the purpose of ascertaining
compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, and the
covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise autherized to do so under all appiicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

_{,‘ v o
I
Contractor lnitials: l(vfé;/
Date: ;. ...
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement,

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both. .

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limiled to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, cumputer programs, cemputer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the state, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION, In the event of an early termination of
this agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the Attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE.

In the performance of this Agreement the contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is. neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the contractor nor any of its
officers, employges, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers® cempensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employces.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from-and against any and all losses suffered by the
Siate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asscrted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting: from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed. to arise out of) the actt or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of the Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described ‘in subparagraph 14.1 herein shali
be on policy forms and endorsements appraved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coantracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish 1o the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renswals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference, Each

”
Contractor Initials: _ f;[_

Date:_
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Certificates (s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring
the insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior to written notice of cancellation or
modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™),

15.2 To the extent the contractor is subject to the
Requirements of N.H, RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 2810A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
State Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to the express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, ampiify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

4 [}
Contractor lnirials:fp
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services
Exhibit A

1. General Provisions

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2012, or date of G&C approval, whichever is later,
Through June 30, 2013

CONTRACTOR NAME: Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. D/B/A Keystone
Hall

ADDRESS: 615 Amhurst Street, Nashua, NH 03060

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Peter Kelleher
TELEPHONE: 603-881-4848

I1. Scope of Services

A. The Contractor shall provide treatment services in the geographic area(s)/location(s) as specified below:

. Minimum number
#of Geographic of clients to be
Treatment Modality y Area(s)/ . $ Awarded
FTE’s . served during the
Location(s) >
contract period
Outpatient 0.93 Nashua 29 $70,118.00
Intensive Outpatient 0.81 Nashua 16 $60,904.00
PRL 2 (DCYF) 1.48 Nashua 29 $110,816.00
[ntensive Outpatient
Residential —
Treatment Adult Nashua 86 $289,828.00
Transitional Living
Program — Adult | Nashua 49 $400,466.00
Pregnant & Parenting Nashua 32 $424,813.00
Women
Group — Recovery
Support Services * Nashua 121 0

* Group Recovery Support Services are funded by the Department of Health & Human Services, Access To
Recovery initiative.

B. Required Services

Prigrity Admission:

1) The Contractor shall give admission preference to pregnant women and women with dependent children,
even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental rights have not been terminated, including
the provision of interim services within the required 48 hour time frame.

2) Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the provision of interim services \?2&14 days.

A/
A

Standard Exhibits C -} Contractor Initialg;
TX Substance Use Disorder Date:
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3) Individuals with a primary diagnosis of a substance use disorder, which may also include a co-occurring
mental health disorder.

4) Individuals on medication-assisted treatment for co-occurring substance abuse and mental health

disorders or various opiate replacement therapies, including, but not limited to, methadone, buprenorphine

and naltrexone.

Required Outreach:
New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) programs receiving federal treatment Block

Grant funds requires that Contractors must publicize services available to pregnant or parenting women and
injection drug users in need of substance abuse treatment and that these individuals receive preference for
admission to treatment. This may be done as follows, but is not limited to, street outreach programs, ongoing
public service announcements (radio/television), regular advertisements in local/regional print media, posters
placed in targeted areas, and frequent notification of availability of such treatment distributed to the network of
community based organizations, health care providers and social service agencies. The Contractor will submit
their outreach plans to DHHS through the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS) within 60 days of

contract effective date.

Health Facilities Administration Licensing Requirements:

Housing programs with substance abuse treatment services at the same location will need to secure necessary
licensing as a Residential Rehabilitation Facility by the DHHS Bureau of Health Facilities Administration, as
appropriate, see He-P 807 at the following link: (http:/www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rules/state agencies/he-
p800.htmi). In the case of residential treatment and housing at the same site, residential programs should plan to
treat no more than 16 pregnant or parenting women at any given time to comply with federal Medicaid
restrictions on Institute for Mental Diseases (IMD) exclusion criteria. This restriction would not apply to
programs in which the client’s residence is in a separate location from the treatment program.

Capacity Reporting:

The Contractor must contact BDAS, as agent for DHHS, when their capacity has reached 90% within 5 business
days. The Contractor must refer pregnant women to the State when the Contractor has insufficient capacity to
provide services to any such pregnant women who seek the services of the program. Sending e-mail to the BDAS

Clinical Services Unit Administrator may complete this notification process.

Access to Services:
The Contractor shall respond to calls requesting treatment and/or transitional living program services, whether an

initial or subsequent call, from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within 2 business days
following the day the call was received. The Access Criteria as defined in Exhibit B must be met for a minimum
of 80% of prospective clients (from clients or referring agencies) for the month in which billing is being
submitted.

The Contractor is required to conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possible, ideally at the time of first
contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the client or referring agency, but not later than 5
business days following the date of first contact.

Those who have screened eligible for services will start receiving services, whether for the identified level of care
or interim services, within 10 business days follow the eligibility screening.

Limitations on Exclusionury Criteria:

American Society for Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Patient Placement Criteria, in and of itself, shall not be a
reason to deny a higher level of care to an individual, if the lower level of care is unavailable or inaccessible.
Level of care will be determined by the administration of the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) or the Global

Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN).

Contractors receiving grant funds from DHHS will not discriminate against clients who are ujiﬁﬁagilimate
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medications to assist their recovery and will not have policies that allow them to refuse admission to treatment or
to discharge clients from treatment based on the use of appropriately prescribed medications and various opiate
replacement therapies, including, but not limited to, methadone and buprenorphine, as well as other forms of
medication-assisted treatment for co-occurring substance abuse and mental health disorders.

Clients Eligible for Treatment Services:
A client who is either unable to pay for services or able to pay only part of the cost of services, and who has or is
suspected of having an alcohol or other drug abuse problem, and who is a resident of the State of New Hampshire

or is homeless in NH.

Sliding Fee Scale:

The Contractor shall adopt a sliding fee scale based on federal poverty guidelines as published in the most recent
Federal Register (http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty/). The Contractor must provide the client with the cost of services
and a fee scale prior to rendering services. The Contractor’s sliding fees scale and fee schedule shall be submitted
to BDAS, as agent for DHHS, within 60 days of contract effective date. Changes in the sliding fee scale or
service fee schedule shall be submitted to the BDAS on behalf of DHHS within 30 days of the change.

The Contractor shall bill clients in accordance with a sliding fee scale based on federal poverty guidelines. The
fee schedule shall include a no-cost option approved by BDAS on behalf of DHHS. All reasonable efforts shall
be made to collect payment of bills. A client’s inability to pay shall not preclude admission to the program and
treatment.

With respect to minority age individuals, a minor child shall not be denied services as a result of the parent’s
unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child’s decision to receive confidential services pursuant to RSA 318-

B:12-a.

Waiting List Management:

When a person who is pregnant or an injection substance abuser seeks treatment and there are no appropriate
treatment services available within the required time frame as outlined below, interim services must be made
available. The Contractor agrees to maintain the wait list management system in WITS that includes a unique
patient identifier and include information on dates of requests for admission to treatment, provision of interim
services and source for those services, referrals made for treatment or interim services, and disposition of clients
on the waiting list.

o The waiting list must contain a mechanism that identifies and counts the number of applicants who
present and are determined to be appropriate for substance abuse treatment but are unable to be placed as
there is no capacity;

e Maintain contact with individuals awaiting admission; and,

» Admit or transfer waiting list clients at the earliest possible time to an appropriate treatment program
within a reasonable geographic area.

The Contractor shall remove a client awaiting treatment from the waiting list only when one of the following
conditions exists:

»  Such persons cannot be located for admission into treatment or

¢ Such persons refuse treatment.

Specific Interim Services for Pregnant Women, Women with Dependent Children and Injection Drug Users:

The Contractor agrees to contact the BDAS Clinical Services Unit if a pregnant women and women with
dependent children or individuals with a history of injection drug use, cannot be accepted into treatment within
specific time frames, and agrees that interim services will be provided or facilitated by the Contractor. Interim
services for pregnant women must include counseling on the effects of alcohol and drug use on the fetus, referrals
for prenatal care, and counseling and education about HIV and tuberculosis. Interim services for inj(ection drug
users must also include counseling and education in the risks of needle sharing, about the risks of tfismission to
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sexual partners and infants, and referral for HiV, Hepatitis C and tuberculosis screening/testing. All interim
services shall be documented in the client’s clinical record in the WITS system,

Interim Services for other Clients:
The Contractor shall provide, or refer the client to, interim services until level of service identified in the level of

care assessment is available and/or the client is willing and assessed as being sufficiently motivated to take
advantage of the proposed level of service or interim services.

Services to pregnant and parenting women:
The Contractor further agrees that childcare will be made available to women who are in treatment with their

dependent children, either through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site legal childcare provider.
Other services required are as follows:

The family is treated as a unit and, therefore, admits both women and their children into treatment

services, if appropriate.
The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary medical care for women who are receiving substance

abuse services, including prenatal care. \
The Contractor shall provide or arrange for childcare while the women are receiving services even if the

children are not in their custody. as long as parental rights have not been terminated.

. The Contractor shall provide or arrange for primary pediatric care for the women’s children, including

immunizations.
The Contractor shall provide or arrange for gender-specific substance abuse treatment and other

therapeutic interventions for women that rmay address issues of relationships, sexual abuse, physical
abuse, and parenting, and childcare while the women are receiving these services.

The Contractor shall provide or arrange for therapeutic interventions for children in custody of women in
treatment, which may, among other things, address the children’s developmental needs, their issues of
sexual and physical abuse, and neglect.

The Contractor shall provide or arrange for sufficient case management and transportation services to
ensure that the women and their children have access to the services provided for above.

If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person refuses treatment or says (s)he
is not interested in treatment, the wait list report shall be completed with the engagement activities
attempted.

If a pregnant, pregnant injection drug using or Injection Drug Using person no shows or cancels
treatment, interim services must be provided, as stipulated above and the wait list report shall be
completed that demonstrates the activities of follow up, engagement and substance abuse treatment

services offered.

Relationship(s) with Primary Health Care:
The Contractor shall arrange and coordinate services and exchange of information with other health care

providers and agencies which:

Standard Exhibits C - J
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Identifies the client’s current Primary Care Provider (PCP) at screening and/or intake.

If the client has no current PCP, the Contractor shall identify available provider(s) in the client's local area
such as a federally qualified community health center, community health center, or other local health
services,

Obtains client/patient authorization to communicate with PCP office.

If no authorization is completed initially, the Contractor shall educate client as to the importance of
engaging the PCP in ongoing care and address the client’s concerns as part of treatment, with goal of
obtaining authorization before discharge.

Sends the discharge summary to PCP and offers to discuss recovery issues with the provider.

Arranges (or has the client arrange) a post-discharge appointment with PCP for the client/patient for
follow-up of the substance use disorder.

&
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Tobacco Cessation:
The Contractor shall have policies and procedures for both client and Contractor staff, that not only creates a

tobacco-free environment as required by law, but to offer tobacco cessation tools and programming. Tobacco use,
in and of itself, shall not be grounds for administrative discharge from the program. Initially, all clients shall be
assessed for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products. Providers may tap into resources such as the
DPHS Tobacco Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation counselors available
through the QuitLine. Other resources for providers include:

Breathe New Hampshire

145 Hollis St., Unit C

Manchester, NH 03101

603-669-2411 (phone) or 1-800-835-8647

The New Hampshire Medicaid program covers:

» Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) Gum,

o NRT Paich,

* NRT Nasal Spray,

o NRT Lozenge,

o NRT Inhaler,

¢ Varenicline (Chantix),

¢ Bupropion (Zyban),

s  Group Counseling and/or ' .

* Individual Counseling. Up to 12 individual counseling sessions are covered per year through a mental
health provider (Note: These sessions would NOT be in addition to other mental health counseling
sessions under Medicaid). Pregnant women also have the option of group counseling. For more

information, visit the website at: http://www.dhhs.state.nh.us/DHHS/MEDICAIDPROGRAM/default. htm

Tuberculosis:
The Contractor shall make available tuberculosis services (defined as screening, counseling, testing, and

treatment) directly, or through other providers, to each client receiving treatment. In the case of an individual
denied admission due to lack of capacity, the substance abuse treatment Contractor will refer the individual to
another provider of tuberculosis services if appropriate. All Contractor providing residential services shall make
available, either on-site or through agreements with health care providers, tuberculosis services, including
screening, testing, counseling and referral for medical treatment.

Physical location and fucilities:
For the purpose of providing the services described in Section Il of the Scope of Services, the Contractor shall

obtain and maintain a suitable space complying with all fire, health, and safety codes to include handicapped
accessibility and being wheelchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written prior approval of DHHS, acting through BDAS, before entering into any
agreement concerning relocation of the service site.

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care:
DHHS recognizes that culture and language have considerable impact on how consumers access services.
Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access services. To ensure equal
access to quality services, DHHS expects that Contractors shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate
services according to the following guidelines:
1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.
2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with respect to
their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.
.3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of Limited English Proficiency (LEP) with interpretation
services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their primarg} nguage and
Standard Exhibits C - J Contractor [nitials: _

TX Substance Use Disorder Date: ’ gl ;
Page 5 of 39 Zﬂ‘é;_ /,3\




whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they are unable to adequately
understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to them without language assistance.
The Contractor is responsible for reasonable accommodations in arranging for interpreter services for
hearing impaired clients.

The Contractor offers consumers or clients a forum through which those individuals have the opportunity
to provide feedback to the Contractor regarding cultural and linguistic issues that may deserve response.

Compliance with State and Federal Laws:
The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is called to

the following statutory responsibilities:

1.

2.

U

All services provided pursuant to this Contract shall be subject to the most current proposed or formalized
rules and regulations promulgated by DHHS, pursuant to RSA 541-A.

The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state confidentiality laws specifically: 42 CFR
Part 2B, N.H. RSA 318 B:12 and N.H. RSA 172:8-A and the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA): hup./Awww.hhs. gov/ocr/privacy/

The Contractor shail meet the standards outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-A 300, Certification and
Operation of Alcohol and other Drug Disorder Treatment Programs. This administrative rule is currently
expired and under revision. The Contractor should plan to meet the requirements as outlined in the
expired rule until the revisions are completed. He-A 300 can be viewed on the RFP [ink to this document
hutp:wwew. dhhs.th. govbusinessirfp/index. int,

The Contractor shall, upon the direction of the State, provide court-ordered evaluation in their catchment
area and a sliding scale fee shall apply and the inability to pay shall not interfere with the completion and
submission of the court-ordered evaluation and shail, upon the direction of the State, offer treatment to
those individuals pursuant to RSA 172:13.

Contractors considering research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects must adhere to the legal requirements governing human subjects’
research.  Contractors must inform the DHHS via contact with BDAS prior to initiating any research
involving subjects or participants related to this contract. In addition, research conducted on subjects
served by this contract may need to be approved by the New Hampshire Department of Health & Human
Services Committee for the Protection of Human = Subjects (NH DHHS CPHS) see

hep howw. dhhs.nh. gov/irb/

Client Stabilization:
The Contractor will be expected to arrange for medical clearance for all clients receiving treatment services

supported by DHHS administered by BDAS to assure that they are not at risk for acute withdrawal from alcohol
and certain drugs. The Contractor shall be expected to provide a range of integrated services that include social

detoxification/stabilization services that follow detoxification guidelines outlined in Treatment Improvement
Protocol (TIP) #45, Detoxification and Substance Abuse Treatment.

Clinical Services:
The Contractor shall provide the following:

a.

d.

Standard Exhibits C -
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A minimum of one (1) substance abuse counselor on site each day of the week during primary treatment
hours.  The substance abuse counselor shall have a bachelor’s degree or equivalent in social
work/psychology, guidance or nursing and/or a certificate in the field of addiction studies from an approved
educational institution or educational/life experience.

A minimum of one (1) substance abuse support staff on site each day of the week during all hours not
covered by a substance abuse counselor. The substance abuse support staff must have a high school or
General Equivalency Diploma (GED). Preference is given to individuals who have completed additional
courses or taken training in substance use disorders or other health fields.

An intake/admission coordinator on site Monday through Friday of each week. The intake/admission
coordinator shall have one (1) years” work experience in the field of addiction studies.

A full-time Executive Director, not filling any of the positions described above. W
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The Contractor will provide one or more of the following services as outlined in Section [1.A above.

Outpatient Treatment - Substance abuse treatment services provided in individual and group counseling sessions
in a non-residential setting. Although duration of services is determined by clinical indicators, average duration of
for outpatient services is expected to be approximately 90 days or less, after which clients are referred for care
coordination under a continuous recovery monitoring model that in turn will refer clients for group aftercare
recovery support services as indicated.

Intensive Outpatient Treatment - Substance abuse treatment services conducted in an outpatient setting for a
minimum of 3 hours of direct client treatment services per day, utilizing both group and individual formats, for a
minimum of three days per week, for a total of a minimum of nine hours of treatment services per week. This
intensive phase of treatment typically occurs for 4-6 weeks, with less intense services following, such as a once
per week treatment aftercare group continuing for an additional 1-2 months as clinically indicated for both.
Although duration of services is determined by clinical indicators, average duration of intensive outpatient
services is expected to be approximately 90 days or less, after which clients are referred for care coordination
under a continuous recovery monitoring model that in turn will refer clients for group aftercare recovery support

services as indicated.

Residential Treatment - Short-term residentiai substance abuse treatment designed to assist individuals who
require a more intensive level of service in a structured setting and/or individuals that may be homeless.
Admission is on a voluntary basis. This level of care includes the provision of an initial period of stabilization
services once an individual has been medically cleared to participate in the program. Although the length of stay
may be determined by clinical indicators, average length of stay is expected to be approximately 28 days or less.
Long-term, extended care residential treatment services, also referred to as Clinically Managed High Intensity
Residential Treatment (CMHIRT), is limited to pregnant and parenting women and their children.

Transitional Living —~ Residential substance abuse treatment services are designed to support individuals in the
early stages of recovery that need this residential level of care and/or are homeless. The goal of these programs is
to prepare clients to become self-sufficient in the community. Although length of stay may be determined by
clinical indicators, the average length of stay is expected to be approximately 90 days or less. Residents typically
work in the community and may pay a portion of their room and board.

Assessment of Risk for Self-Harm/Suicide: The Contractor shall have policies and practices for assessing risk of
self-harm at all phases of treatment, such as at initial contact, during screening, intake, admission, on-going
treatment services and at discharge, and a process for referral when necessary to include referrals to mental health

services.

The Contractor shall develop policies, programs and protocols in accordance with SAMHSA guidelines as
outlined in the Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs) and Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs). These
publications can be downloaded from http://www.kap.samhsa.gov/products/manuals/index.htm .

The Contractor is required to use the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) or Global Appraisal of Individual Needs
(GAIN) assessment tools, the SAMHSA/NIDA MATRS treatment-planning model and the Web Infrastructure for
Treatment Services (WITS) electronic health record.

Care Coordination:
The Contractor is required to assess each client’s need/appropriateness for residential transitional living services

and to refer all clients for care coordination services made available through the ATR initiative administered
by the BDAS on behalf of DHHS that would commence following the initial course of treatment. Contractors are
required to address motivational issues with clients for them to participate effectively in the care coordination and
recovery support services. Contractors are required to have clients sign the “ATR Client P"mepah(jf) Agreement”
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(made available by BDAS), indicating that they either agree or opt out of participating in these services. The
contractor will facilitate all clients who agree to participate in these services to complete the Client Participation
Agreement and upon obtaining a signed release of information, refer clients to an ATR Care Coordinator Program
at least two weeks prior to anticipated date of discharge (dis-enroliment) from services. Assessing the need for
aftercare services is expected to take place while the client is invalved within the most recent episode of care, with
areferral being made and accepted by the care coordination service prior to the client being discharged.

The Contractor must provide the followiﬁg for use by the care coordination program:
 Private space for interviewing/meeting with clients.
»  Access to internet (either wired or wireless) in the meeting space
» Telephone in the meeting space and
e A contact person at the Contractor’s site for logistics.

It is the expectation of the BDAS at DHHS that, upon completion of appropriate signed releases, the Contractor
will provide the care coordination program with necessary information from the clinical record (assessment,
treatment plan, progress notes, etc.) for the care coordination program to develop a service plan with the client.

Group Recovery Support Services:
Are services that are consistent with an individual's recovery plan that prevent relapse and enhance or remove

barriers to recovery. Recovery Support Services include, but are not limited to, guidance in financial
management, parenting, vocational training, life management and spiritual counseling as well as transportation

and child-care.

Contractors, with the exception. of those agencies that only offer outpatient services, are required to develop the
capacity for group recovery support aftercare services for a minimum of 50% of the number treatment clients
(including outpatient and transitional living program clients) they are under contract to serve. These group
recovery support services are for clients discharged from substance use disorder (SUD) treatment services
provided under contract with BDAS on behalf of DHHS, which may include clients that had received SUD
treatment from the Contractor or a different agency. Contractors are only allowed to access these services for their
clients or clients that had received SUD treatment from a different agency through the statewide care coordination

program under agreement with BDAS on behalf of DHHS.

All group recovery support services will be funded through the New Hampshire Access to Recovery (ATR)
initiative, which will require all providers {except those offering outpatient services only) under contract with
BDAS on behalf of DHHS to become an approved Access to Recovery (ATR) providers for these particular
services (reference Administrative Rules He-A 405.03 and He-A 405.04). Agencies under contract with BDAS on
behalf of DHHS to provide only outpatient substance abuse treatment are not required, to provide these services.

All alcohol and other drug treatment providers under contract with the BDAS on behalf of DHHS are required to
address with all clients, the need for continuing services. This includes transitional living programs under
contract with the BDAS on behalf of DHHS as well as care coordination and group recovery support services
made available through the ATR initiative administered by BDAS that would commence following the initial
course of treatment. The referral for these services should take place prior to discharge from the initial course of

treatment.

Residential Treatmen! Services, including services to Residential Services to Pregnant and Parenting Women:
The Contractor shall provide the following:

a. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse counselor on site each day of the week during primary treatment
hours.  The substance abuse counsclor shall have a bachelor’s degree or equivalent in social
work/psychology, guidance or nursing and/or a certificate in the field of addiction studies from an approved
educational institution or educational/life experience.

e. A minimum of one (1) substance abuse support staff on site each day of the week duringjall hours not

. W
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covered by a substance abuse counselor. The substance abuse support staff must have a high school or
General Equivalency Diploma (GED). Preference is given to individuals who have completed additional
courses or taken training in substance use disorders or other health fields.

f.  An intake/admission coordinator on site Monday through Friday of each week. The intake/admission
coordinator shall have one (1) years’ work experience in the field of addiction studies.

g. A full-time Executive Director, not filling any of the positions described above.

Relevant Policies and Guidelines: :
The services provided for in this agreement shall be in addition to the services provided for in any other
agreement between the State of New Hampshire, any of its agencies, or any of its officers, and the Contractor.

Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate fully
with, and answer all questions of representatives of the State conducting any periodic or special review of the
performance of the Contractor or any inspection of the facilities of the Contractor.

Publications Funded Under Contract:

All products produced under this contract are in the public domain. All products (written, video, audio) produced,
reproduced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution, or use. The Contract shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract.

Subcontracting/Consultants:

If the Contractor subcontracts any portion of the services with an agency or individual, the Contractor must
submit a copy of the subcontract, or proposed subcontract. That subcontract must address the qualifications and
credentials of the individual or agency to perform the service, the specific service deliverables, the timeline for
implementation of the services to be delivered, and the cost, including total cost of the subcontract and total cost
per hour of individuals or agencies performing these services. The Contractor is ultimately responsible for the
* services delivered under the contract. Use of consultants shall be similarly described in terms of qualifications
and credentials, service deliverables and hourly consultant rate.

Student Internships:
The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures related to student interns that address minimum

coursework, experience and core competencies for those interns having direct contact with individuals served by
this contract. Student interns shall complete an approved ethics course prior to beginning the internship.

Staff Licensing Requirements:

The ratio of licensed to non-licensed service providers shall be as follows:

Agencies must have at least one Licensed, or Masters Licensed, Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC/MLADC)
for each two unlicensed counselors providing substance abuse treatment services and a sufficient number of
MLADCs or LADCs with the Licensed Clinical Supervision (LCS) credential to adequately provide for clinical
supervision of all clinical staff. This requirement shall be met by the Contractor no later than six (6) months after

the date of the Contract effective date.

Updated resumes, which clearly indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor, including current
positions of staff supported by funds provided through this Contract, shall be forwarded to the BDAS as agent for
DHHS. The documentation shall include a copy of the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Counselor License.

Staff Certification Requirements:

In addition to the requirements for LADCs, all Contractor milieu staff in residential settings and transitional living
programs and staff providing recovery support aftercare group services shall be Certified Recovery Support
Workers (CRSW) under the Board of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional Practice, or working toward that

-
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certification under RSA 330-C (hitp:/www.eencourt.state.nhus/rsalhtmi/NHTOC/NHTOC-XXX-330-C htm).
Certification must be completed within six (6) months of the contract’s approval date.

Staff providing recovery support services are expected to be Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) under
the Board of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Professional Practice, or working toward that certification. Peer recovery
support services made available through Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs), ttider agreement with
BDAS on behalf of DHHS, shall be provided by individuals certified by those organizations (CRSW not required

for peer recovery support services).

Supervision: )
Ongoing clinical supervision will include weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources or therapeutic

approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment of progress. When enough candidates are under supervision,
group: supervision may be included to help optimize the learning experience.

The content of supervision must include knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to the
practice issues faced by the supervisee, including the core functions as described in the Twelve Core Functions of

Alcohol and Drug Counseling.

The content of supervision must also include the standards of practice and ethical conduct, with particular
emphasis given to the counselor’s role and appropriate responsibilities, professional boundaries, and power

dynamics.

In addition, al] contracted treatment providers must participate in the Clinical Supervisor Learning Collaborative
(LC) by June 30, 2013. This LC is provided by the Center for Excellence, under contract with DHHS. This LC
will include a team from each contracted treatment provider that includes at least one agency clinical supervisor
and at least one senior clinical staff. A Clinical Supervision Leaming collaborative will be offered in SFY 2013.

Staffing Changes:
BDAS as agent for DHHS shall be notified of changes in key personne] with updated resumes that clearly indicate

the staff member is emploved by the Contractor submitted within five () working days. Key personnel are those
staff for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent providing alcohol or other drug abuse treatment services.

1. New Hires: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing within one month of hire
when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of services
is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee, which clearly indicates the staff member is

employed by the Contractor, shall accompany this notification.

2. Vacancies: The Contractor shall notify BDAS on behalf of DHHS in writing within 14 calendar days, if
at any time, any site funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all required

services for more than one month.

Other Requirerﬁents:
The Contractor shall attend trainings and/or meetings as requested by DHHS.

ATR and Recovery Support Services:
All DHHS funded treatment and recovery support service providers must also be approved Access to Recovery

(ATR) providers, as this will be the source of funding for these recovery support services through the Voucher
Management System (VMS). Information on becoming an ATR provider can be found on the DHHS website:

hupy/www.dhhs.nh.sov/dehes/bdas/atr/becomingpravider.htm

o
8
.
Standard Exhibits C -1 Contractor Initials: i

TX Substance Use Disorder Date: £ 3 3
"S-

Page 10 0f 30



Regional Network Parficipation:
The Contractor will designate administrative level staff to regularly participate in the Regional Network and

contribute to overall regional network strategic planning, monitoring, evaluation, and cross systems
communication efforts. The Contractor is highly encouraged to serve on one of the work groups and contribute to
data collection, regional strategic planning and evaluation. Participation will be measured by the annual Partner
Survey (httpi/iwww partnertool.netf) administered by NH Center for Excellence under contract with BDAS as

agent for DHHS.

Performance Measures:

All treatment programs under contract with BDAS on béhalf of DHHS are required to report on the National
Outcome Measures (NOMs) established by the SAMHSA, as required in the Federal Substance Abuse Prevention
and Treatment Block Grant, via the WITS (electronic health récord) system. The Department of Health and
Human Services reserves the right to consider Contractor performance across all of the domains in future funding
decisions. The Contractor is expected to meet or exceed these percentages as measured by the Electronic Health

Record/Web Infrastructure Treatment System (EHR/WITS).

SAMHSA National Outcome Measures:

DOMAIN OUTCOME SUBSTANCE ABUSE
TREATMENT MEASURES
Abstinence Abstinence from 65% of clients that have met the minimum participation

Alcohol and Drug Use | requirement are abstinent within the past 30 days at 6 months
following admission to care coordination services compared to
at time of admission to treatment program.

Employment Increased/retained Employment rates or enrollment in school rates for clients are
. employment. Return 25% greater at 6 months after admission to care coordination
Education . . P
to/stay in school compared to at time of admission to treatment program.
Crime and Criminal | Decrease criminal 50% Reduction in the number of client arrests in past 30 days at
Justice justice involvement 6 months following admission to care coordination services
compared to at time of admission to treatment program.
Stability in Housing | Increased stability in 10% Increase in the number of clients in stable housing at 6
housing months following admission to care coordination services
compared to at time of admission to treatment program.
Access Reduce the wait time ¢ 80% of clients will receive a telephone eligibility screening
for Intake & within 2 business days of first contact with the Contractor
Admission and those who screen eligible will receive an intake within

5 business days of the eligibility screening and

o 80% of clients who meet admission criteria will be admitted
to services or interim services within 5 business days of

intake.

Retention Increase retention in 70% of clients that have participated in the minimum
substance abuse participation requirement. See section in the following pay for
treatment performance paragraph.

Capacity Increase service Increase by 10% the (unduplicated) number of clients receiving
capacity service from previous year — DHHS will not be held to this

standard for SFY 2013 due to significant budget reductions.

Social Increased recovery | 50% of clients participaie in care coordination and post
7
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Connectedness supports/connections treatment recovery support services (RSS).

Perception of Care Client perception of Under development
care
Cost Effectiveness Cost effectiveness Average Contractor cost per client for services provided per
(average cost) client are within 10% of the average statewide cost per client of
service for each modality of service.
Use of Evidenced- | Use of Evidenced- s  WITS Electronic Health Record
Based Practices Based Practices e ASI or GAIN Assessment

s« NIDA/SAMHSA MATRS Treatment Planning model

s Clinical model for treatment services recognized by
National Registry of Evidence Based Programs and
Practices (NREPP).

Data and Reporting Requirements:
1. Without limiting the generality of any other provisions of this agreement, the Contractor shall provide any

periodic or special reports required by the DHHS.

2. The Contractor shall notify BDAS, as an authorized agent of DHHS, whenever the Contractor has reached

ninety percent capacity to admit new clients. In addition the Contractor shall have a waiting list management

policy in accordance with the SAPT Block Grant requirements. This 90% notification process will become
automatic when this operation is fully functional in WITS.

The Contractor shall notify DHHS through BDAS, within one working day, if sufficient capacity is not

available to provide treatment services to a pregnant woman, parenting woman or injection drug user within

the required time frames and a referral elsewhere is not successful and interim services cannot be provided.

4. The Contractor shall comply with all research and/or information systems development activities for the
electronic health record/Web Infrastructure for Treatment Services (EHR/WITS) conducted by, or authorized
by, DHHS.

5. The Contractor shall administer any client surveys, client assessments including the addiction Severity Index
(ASI) or the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN), client treatment outcome instruments, the
M.A.T.R.S. Treatment Planning Tool, as required by DHHS.

6. The Contractor must have the ability to communicate and submit required reports via the Web-based
submission system and/or e-mail, for treatment s and recovery support services and interim services. All
required clinical and documentation activities shall be entered in WITS unless specifically granted an

exception by BDAS on behalf of DHHS.

[3)

Critical Incident/Sentinel Event Reporting:
The Department’s Sentinel Event  policy is  contained in  the  following

http://www,.dhhs.nh.gov/dches/sentinel htm

link:

Division of Community Based Care Services (DCBCS) Sentinel Event Notification:
The preceding events require the immediate verbal notification to the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical
Services Unit Administrator upon the discovery of a sentinel event involving an individual(s) receiving services

through a DHHS substance use disorder treatment Contractor.,

Since the initial and immediate verbal notification of a sentinel event is likely to include protected health
information {PHI) as identified below, the Contractor of services to individuals receiving services funded by the
DHHS shall disclose PHI in a private and secure manner. Contractors and vendors should not leave voice-mail
messages, but instead make direct telephone contact with the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical Services
Unit Administrator or designee. If direct telephone contact is not possible, a voice mail message may be left
without protected health information, such as medications and relevant medical and psychiatric diagnoses. As

%’”
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soon as possible after the initial verbal notification, the Contractor will mail or fax a completed Sentinel Event
Reporting Form as directed in this protocol.

Notification shall include the following:

1. Name and phone number of the individual reporting.

2. Name, date of birth (DOB), medications and all relevant medical and psychiatric diagnoses of
individual(s) involved;

3. Location, date, and time of event;

4. Description of the event including what, when, where, how, and other relevant information and
identification of any other individuals involved,

5. Legal status of the individual involved with regard to guardianship and power of attorney;

6. Community, guardian, family and/or families’ knowledge of the event; and

7. Contractor contact person and contact information.

It shall be the responsibility of the BDAS Assistant Administrator or Clinical Services Unit Administrator or
designee to notify the DCBCS Quality Improvement Director by e-mail as soon as the BDAS Clinical
Administrator or designee becomes aware a Sentinel Event has occurred. The DCBCS Quality Improvement
Director shall make immediate notification to the Commissioner. Internal e-mails within the Department may
contain PHI and all Department employees will utiiize safeguards to ensure the privacy of the PHI as stated in the
DHHS General Manual Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) policy #504.

Each DCBCS bureau recognizes its respounsibility to report evidence of neglect, abuse or exploitation to the
appropriate regulatory agencies as tequired by RSA 161-F: 42-57 and RSA 169-C:29. In any case of known or
suspected neglect, abuse. or exploitation, the Contractor aware of the situation shall follow all applicable rules
relative to individual rights protection procedures,

Written follow up information is to be forwarded by the reporting Contractor to the appropriate BDAS
Administrator listed below within 72 hours by completing the Sentinel Event Reporting Form. To protect clients’
confidential information, reporting Contractors should submit the Sentinel Event Reporting Form either by fax to
the BDAS Assistant Administrator or the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator by a mail service that
provides delivery confirmation.

Bureau of Drug and Alcolol Services

Assistant Administrator

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Or by fax to the BDAS Administrator’s Office at 271-6105;

Follow-up information is the responsibility of the Contractor and should be submitted in a way as to protect
clients’ confidential information such as by mail with delivery contirmation and should include:
1. The Sentinel Event Reporting Form( www.dhhs.nh.gov/debes/documentsésentinelform.pdf);
Additional details as they are learned or if the status of the situation changes; and,
Copies of newspaper articles.

LN

The BDAS Assistant Administrator or BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator is responsible for forwarding a
copy of the Sentinel Event Reporting Form received from a Contractor to the DCBCS Quality Improvement
Director at:

Division of Community Based Care Services

Quality Improvement Director

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Or by fax: 271- 4912

i
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Additionally, DHHS requires critica! incident reporting. The Contractor shall report all critical incidents/sentinel
events to the BDAS Clinical Services Unit Administrator immediately via telephone. Every effort shall be made
to reach the BDAS administrator directly. If a voice message is necessary, sufficient provider contact information
shall be provided so that DHHS is able to reach the reporter, or other responsible staff, immediately.

A critical incident includes, but is not limited to, any child or adult protective services report to the Division of
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF), or the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS), respectively,
regarding any incident involving 1) a stafffemployee to youth or client, 2) youth tc youth, or 3) client to client.
This includes incidents that occur while-a client is on leave, or on a pass, from the Contractor and may be off site

at the time the incident occurred.

A sentinel event is an unexpected occurrence involving the death or serious physical or psychological injury, or
risk thereof, signaling the need for immediate investigation and response.

Death or any serious injury or medical emergency regarding staff or clients that requires emergency medical
attention (EMT or other emergency personnel at the Contractor’s site, or a hospital emergency room visit), or any
crime reportable to law enforcement, or any other serious incident must also be reported to DHHS as described

below.

Reportable sentinel events include, but are not limited to, any occurrence that meets any of the following criteria:
1. An unanticipated death or permanent loss of function, not related to the natural course of an individual’s

illness or underlying condition.

2. Homicide or suicide of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or services, that had been
discharged from a Department funded program or facility within 30 days of the event, or has been
evaluated by a service Contractor within the preceding 30 days;

Sexual assault or rape of any individual receiving DHHS funded care, treatment or services by another

client or employee of any Department funded program or facility where there is an act that was witnessed

or there is sufficient clinical evidence obtained by the Contractor to support allegation of nonconsensual
sexual contact.

4. Unauthorized departure of an individual receiving DHHS funded services, from a facility providing care,

resulting in death or permanent loss of function.

Medication error that results in death, paralysis, coma, or other permanent loss of function.

6. Delay or failure to provide DHHS funded Contractor services that result in death or permanent loss of
function.

7. Abuse as a result of the willful infliction of injury, unreasonable confinement, intimidation, or punishment
with resulting physical harm, or mental anguish. This includes staff neglect or indifference to infliction of
injury or intimidation of one individual by another.

8. Neglect as a result of the failure to provide the goods and services necessary to avoid physical harm,
mental anguish or mental illness.

9. Assault of or by a client of the Contractor that results in the injury of the person or another person of such
severity that medical attention is required.

10. Arson resulting in property loss.
11. High profile events, which may include media coverage and/or police involvement,

(93]

i

On-Site Reviews:
I.  The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by DHHS to periodically review the Contractor’s

systems of governance, administration, data collectivn and submission, clinical, and financial
management in order to assure systems are adequate to provide the contracted services.
2. Reviews shall include;, but not be limited to, client record reviews to measure compliance with this

exhibit.
3. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services are not
found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit. 7 /)ﬁ
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4, DHHS staff shall contact the Contractor in advance of the site visit, so that the Contractor shall have
sufficient time to prepare any guidance/reporting systems or logs that will be reviewed at the site visit.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Heafth and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

Exhibit B
Purchase of Services
Contract Price

I. General Provisions

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2012 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2013

CONTRACTOR NAME: Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. D/B/A Keystone
Hall

ADDRESS: 615 Amhurst Street, Nashua, NH 03060

AGENCY CONTACT TITLE: Executive Director
AGENCY CONTACT NAME: Peter Kelleher
TELEPHONE: 603-881-4848

Vendor #166574-B001 Job #9584 1387 Appropriation #03-095-095-958410-1387-102-500734
Job #95848501 Appropriation #035-095-095-958410-1388-102-500734
Job #95846501 Appropriation #05-095-095-958410-3365-102-500734
Job #95846503 Appropriation #05-095-095-958410-5365-102-500734

11 Funding Sources

The total amount of ali payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services, as detailed in Exhibit B, during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$ 305,955.00 for Substance Abuse Treatment Services, funded from 90% General funds and 10%
Highway funds.

$ 217,425.00 for Substance Abuse Treatment Services, funded from 100% general funds from the
Governor’s Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Prevention, Intervention and Treatment.

$ 833,565.00 for Substance Abuse Treatment Services, funded from 100% federal funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and

Treatment (SAPT) Block Grant, CFDA 93.959.

TOTAL: $1,356,945.00

ny
-
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1. Payment Methodology

The Contraclor shall agree to use and apply all contract funds from the State for costs and cxpenses as detailed in the
approved contract budget(s). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Starting in State Fiscal Year 2013 (effective July 1, 2012) the
contractor will receive a payment for each modality of services at a rate of one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual amount
approved in the contragt for that modality, less any pay for ‘performance factors (utilization, access and retention) that
apply. The annual contract approved amount prorated o the monthly portion is considered the BASE monthly

reimbursement amount.

1. Performance Utilization:

A. Utilization Performance Criteria for all residential, outpatient and intensive outpatient
treatment services:
Utilization criteria will be applied exclusively on a month-by-month basis, Contractors will not be retroactively
reimbursed at the higher rate for past months even if the Contractor later meets the higher utilization rates year to
date. Utilization criteria is first applied to manthly billing submirted by the Contractor to determine the total
amount of expenses eligible for reimbursable, after which access and retention criteria are applied to determine if
that amount will be reimbursed at 95% or 100% according to the criteria below.

i. Contracts running at 90% to 100% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at 100% of the
contracted rate for that month.

il. Contracts running at 80% to 89% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at rate of 95% of
the contracted rate for that month.

iii. Contracts running below 80% of utilization in a given month will be reimbursed at the rate of

utilization for that month (for example for a given month in which utilization was 59% the contractor
would be reimbursed at 59% of the contracted rate for that month).

B. Utilization Methodology by Modality:
i Outpatient: Utilization for Qutpatient is factored at a rate of 100 direct clinical hours per month per

FTE. One hundred (100) clinical hours equates to 100% utilization. Qutpatient utilization does not
require separate consideration for individual or group -outpalient counseling, the total of both is based
on direct clinical hours of service. The FTEs for the contract are determined based upon the level of
funding provided for outpatient divided by $75,000 (e.g. Agency ABC funding for outpatient services
is $168,750 divided by $73,000 per FTE results in 2.25 FTE.)

ii. Intensive Outpatient: Utilization for Intensive Outpatient is determined in the same manner as
Qutpatient based on Full Time Equivalent. Individual or group intensive outpatient counseling are
combined in determining the utilization rate with the total of both based on direct clinical hours of
service,

iii. Residential Treatment/transitional living/halfway house: Utilization for all residential services is
factored by taking the amount of funding for the modality of residential services and dividing it by the
bed day rate to determine the total number of bed days per year, and then diving this amount by 365
days to determine the “beds per day factor” (which is equal to the number of beds being funded) for
this modality of residential services, Utilization for residential treatment is factored by multiplying
the “beds per day factor” by the actual number of days in a given month. As an example, say agency
ABC is funded in the amount of $438,000 to provide 28-day residential treatment services for adults.
Given that the per day bed rate for adult residential treatment services is $120 per day, the agency
would be expected to provide 3,650 ($438,000/$120) bed days per year / 365 days per year = 10 beds
per day. Utilization for residential treatment is factored by multiplying the “beds per ;a_’y factor” by

7
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the actual number of days in a given month; in this example the number of bed days for April would
be 30 (days in April) X 10 beds per day or 300 beds at 100% utilization.

2. Utilization Access and Retention Payment Criteria Requirement

Contractors will receive the billing amount net of utilization rates, for each billing month in which the agency has
met both the Access and Retention criteria outlined below for the given month. Any Agency not meeting both the
Access and Retention criteria will receive reimbursement at 95% of the amount after first factoring utilization.
Access and retention criteria do not include recovery support services. Performance criteria will be applied
exclusively on a month-by-month basis, contractors will not be retroactively reimbursed at the 100% rate for past
months even if the contractor later meets the Access and Retention rates year to date.

A. Access to Services:

Treatment contractors shall respond to calls requesting services, whether an initial or subsequent call,
from clients or referring agencies as soon as possible and within at least 2 business days following the
day the call was received. The following Access Criteria must be met for a minimum of 80% of
prospective clients (from clients or referring agencies) for the month in which blllmg is being submitted:
i, Treatment contractors are required to conduct initial eligibility screening as soon as possible,

ideally at the time of first contact (direct communication by phone or in person) with the
client or referring agency, but not later than 5 business days following the date of first
contact.

Those who have screened eligible for services will start receiving services, whether for the
identified level of care or interim services, within 10 business days follow the eligibility

screening.

B. Retention:

A minimum of 70% of clients, which have completed or otherwise are no longer receiving services, will have met
the minimum retention standards for the modality of services received:

i Have completed a minimum of 6 sessions of outpatient treatment services (OP)
Have completed a minimum of 8 days of intensive outpatient treatment services (10P) — only those
days in which a client has participated in minimum of 10 units (2.5 hours) of service per day (12
units per day is the standard for [OP services) may be counted.
iil. Have completed a minimum of 14 days of residential treatment service
iv. Has completed a minimurn of 28 days in a transitional living/halfway house residential program.

ii.
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3.  Failure to Meet Deliverables:

The Contractor shall comply with all contract requirements as detailed in Exhibit A section B, Required Services.
Upoir determination: that Contractor may not be meeting the required deliverables, within two-(2) weeks BDAS
will provide a written correction action plan, Within two (2) weeks of notification of the corréctive action plan,
Contractor will provide a written remedial plan. BDAS will monitor the corrective actions for 60 days. Failure to
meet requirements of the corrective action plan within 60 days may result in withholding of any or all payments
or termination of the contract. )

4. Invoicing & Billing:
Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each modality of
service. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the end of the month during

which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract Completion Date. ‘

The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase or
lease any equipment with a cost in excess of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2500) and with a useful life
beyond one year.

Iv. Allocation of Funding:

Any reallocation of funds between modalities of service requires prior written justification and approval from
BDAS on behalf of DHHS. Reallocation of funds cannot exceed the tota! approved contracted amount.

V. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT)
Block Grant funds.

The Coniragctor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the pavment of last resort,

Restrictions on SAPT Block Grant on State and Contractor expenditures include:
The State may not:

. Provide inpatient hospital services except under those conditions outlined in the regulations.

. Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

. Purchase or improve land.

. Purchase, construct, or permanently improve buildings or other facilities.

. Purchase major medical equipment.

. Satisfy any requirement for the expenditure of non-Federal funds as a condition for the receipt of Federal
funds. (in-kind)

. Provide financial assistance to any entity other than a public or non-profit private entity.

. Provide individuals with hypodermic needles or syringes.

. Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in FFY91 for treatment services provided

in penal or correctional institutions of the State.
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The Contractor shall not:
Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting testing for the

etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is accompanied by appropriate
pre and post-test counseling.

Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of conducting any form of
needle exchange, free needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of needles for

intravenous drug abusers.

VI Charitable Choice:
Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious organizations are able to equally compete for

Federal substance abuse funding administered by: SAMHSA, without impairing the religious character of such
organizations and witheut diminishing the religious freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and
42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a, 45 CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice
statutory provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are applicable to the SAPT
Block Grant program. No funds provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government to
organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended for inherently religious activities, such as
worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. If an vrganization conducts such activities, it must offer them
separately, in time or location, from the programs or services for which it receives funds directly from SAMHSA
or the relevant State or local government under any applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for

the program beneficiaries.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank,
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3, Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department,

4, Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all-applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of hisfher right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-conitact or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor
or Sub-Contractor,

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such

services,

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed tosobligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service, If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party funders,

the Department may elect to:
8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hercunder in which event new rates shall be eqtabhsW}Z
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8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of

costs;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Coniracior is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Conuactor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Départment 10 be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established hergin.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Reeords: Books, records, document$ and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and ¢xpenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchaseé requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materigls, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the

Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for edch recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the agency

Standard Exhibits C - J

fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nen Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of

audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shalf return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in

connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made o public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purpeses directly connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any infcrmation concerning a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or thE:Contractor’s
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12.

13.

i5.

16.

responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the
recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in this
Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department:

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the

Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the

Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties heréunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be: performed
after the end of the term of this Contract andfor survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as-are disallowed ot to recover such sums from the Contractor.

. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting

from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, Bureau:of
Drug and Alcohol Services with funds provided in part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such
other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human

Services.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations:. In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon: the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

Insurance:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable to this contract:
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(a) Insarance Requirenent for {1} - 501{c) (3) contractors whose annual
gross amount of contract work with the Slate does not-exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, X1V,
(Supp. 2006): The general liabifity insurance requirements of standard State contracts for
contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the State does not exceed $500,000, is
comprehensive general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified.

17. Rencwal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,

agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council,

18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreem:nt to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
inchiding without limitation, the continuance of paymients, in whole ot in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in-part. In.no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of apprepriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall riot be required to transfer funds from any
other source ar account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and

establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreemerit and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity includir‘)g contracted

~
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providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in-its Transition Plan submitted to

the State as described above.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS ~ DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and

federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.
DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean the section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled “Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial activities
of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. Refer to RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal regulations
promulgated there under.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of this contract agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

b) US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION —- CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE — CONTRACTORS

This certifieation is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V,.Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulations were amended
and published as Part {I.of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require certification by
grantees (and by inférence, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free
workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors) that is a State may eléct to-make one-certification to the Department in each fedeéral fiscal year in Heu of
certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certification set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or
viofation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services,

)] 129 Pleasant Street

(ii}) Concord, NH 03301

1) The grantee certities that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(@) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the

actions that will be taken against empluyees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employee’s about.

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling. rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the

workplace;

() Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement. required by paragraph (a);
Y
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(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a
condition of employment under the grant, the employee will:

€)) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal
drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;
(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice

under sabparagraph (d) (2} from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such. conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, o every grant officer
on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated
a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each
affected grant;

(f)  Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted by:

(1) Taking appropriate personne! action against such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and ().

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection
with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

SE Harch St Nashee, A 03063 K llslyra (tem Le.
Check d . if there are workplaces on file that are not identificd here. i

Greater Nashua Council on Alcohc)hsm _From: July 1, 2012, or date of G&C/;mmval whichever is later To: June 30,2013

Contractor Name /r\ 7 (,ov red/fm Certification
/ ( &u\
/

Name and/jfxﬂ"f Authorized Cofitrhctor, Reprcsé'fnt tive

pra O | ,,
(, LS 7/\ \ QJ \pA EWEEV/E,

Contractor Represent'lﬁve Slgnature Date

Standard Exhibits C —
TX Substance Use Disorder

Page 27 of 39



NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of this contract agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C.
1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Applicable program covered:

*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families onder Title [V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block-Grant Program -under Title: XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Chiid Care Development Block Grant under Title TV

C. Contract Period: July 1. 2012 or date of G&C Approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2013

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

{n No Federa) appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undcr51gned to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officet or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employse of any agency, 2 Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying” (available at www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/omb/grants/sflll.pdf),
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-L.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made

or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed

by Seetion. 1352, I tle 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil
crml[) of not }em I mn 510, ()0 iuﬁat more glian §100,000 for each such failure.

A U A 4 rresident +CEL

C‘ontmcmr Signature Contractor’s Repregentative Title
Greater Nashua Council on Aleoholism /73 /72
Contractor Name Date 77 ;}/
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of this contract agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
[.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

1. Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Health and Human Services® (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation
shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when DHHS
determined to enter into this transition, If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transition,”
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntary excluded,” as
used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rule
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion ~ Lower Tier
Covered Transaction”, provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,

check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).
Standard Exhibits C -] Contractor Initials: _{ 1
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9.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of

business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for ¢ause or-default,

(1) PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b. Have not within a three-yéar period-preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract
under d public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes-or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

c. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this certification,
and

Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal (contract) had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an eleanation to this proposal (contract).

Lower Tier Covered Transactions

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in 45
CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

1.

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction by any federa! department or agency.

Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Covered-F ranmcnons w1thoul 1117d1ﬁcation in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of this contract agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
co/pgf with all app]ncable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

A r//fj uéw/ President +CE0

Contractor Signature { Contractor’s Representative Title
Greater Nashua Council on Alecholism 5 / A3 ///:2
Contractor Name ‘Date

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an
entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments; by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services
provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used
for inpatient drug ot alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of
a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the

responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of this contract agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable
provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

TTesAes F>CFL

Contractor’s Representative Title

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism fj/ffi‘»//:)?
Contractor Name “ Date

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the contract agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy
and Security of Individually ldentifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of the
HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business ‘Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access fo protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of

Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

)] ‘Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D.
) Sec. 13400.
b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45,

Code of Federal Regulations,
c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code

of Federal Regulations.
d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record

set” in 45 CFR Section 164.501,
e. “Data_Aggregation™ shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.
f. “Health Care Qperations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care

operations” in 45 CFR Section 164.501,
g “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical

Health Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,
h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public
Law 104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
[nformation, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section

164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).
J- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of [ndividually ldentifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department

of Health and Human Services.

Contractor Initials: plZ/
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected

health information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
“Reguired by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term *“required by law” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.
“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.
“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing

organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.
Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH
Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of

the Privacy and Security Rule.

. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
111 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,

Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part |, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an oppoertunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief, If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ]l remedies.

&
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional

security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Assgciate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part I, Sec.13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and

- records relaiing to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business

Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, 10 agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the
use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered & direct third ‘party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this
Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for
purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of

the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed
by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business
Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such

4
4]

Page 35 of 39



4

&)

©)

information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity, Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such

response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity; all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or
back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. [f Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such

change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHL

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PH!I may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such

restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreernent set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, az amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the

Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended. p!(/
Contractor Initials:

Standard Exhibits C - J
TX Substance Use Disorder Date: NI
A ;:’}\—"y
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b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Asséciate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the anacy and Secunty Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data anershlg The Busmess Assoc1ate ack.nowledges that it has no ownershxp rights.with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entxty

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Secursity Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid termr or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are

declared severable.

£ Survival-Provisions-in-this-Exhibit-I-regarding-the-use-and-disclostire-of PHireturn-or-destructionrof———
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard. contract provision #13, shall survive the’ termmauon of the

Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have-duly ex'ecute-:d this Exhibit L.

NH Department of Health & Human Services Greatér Nashua Council qn Alcoholism
The State Agency Name Name of Contractor ~ /

g—?{;w‘"’ff’ TSl Q%FM% / v

‘Signature of Afthorized Representative Sigrature of Authorized Representative

Nancy L. Rollins . Oﬁ‘ff/? /6'7 /;/ g LHEL

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Associate Commissioner ) ) : OZ‘S%Z Lr NS ( )

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authonzcd Represen‘canve
xﬁ“/-?///@ » 5/676///

Date ’ Dat. -

Standard Exhibits C - J : ‘  Contractor Initials: (/

TX Substance Use Disorder Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

IL TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related
to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below
$25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject
to the FFATA reporting requirernents, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the contract agrees to comply with the
provisions of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law
110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department of
Health and I:th(m Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability

and T} q 2 Act. o
’ //‘1//5’ } ﬂ/] o
IXIH DG o feder Retlder PresiontsCe

(Comractor Represent'xtwc Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Greater Nashua Council on Alceholism ‘ 5’]23//.7'2. ,
(Contractor Name) (Date) /ﬁ
Standard Exhibits C - Contractor Initials
TX Substance Use Disorder Date: el

— A;[._‘__':L, 4...,.'!7 e
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate,

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: L E00ISTDY

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contraéts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

_5/NO CUUYES

Sz

A. Ifthe answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

S5 YES

B. Ifihe answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five -most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: % Amount: s
Name: __~ Amount: 25
Name: Amount: J

Name: .= Amonnt: S50
Name: 4 Amount:
NH DHHS, DCBCS, BDAS Contractor Initials:_I [~

TX Substance Use Disorder Treatment Date: '
Exhibit A ‘ /7‘1_, '
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State of Nes Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 16, 1983. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 30" day of May A.D. 2012

Z, Sed. -

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



WITHOUT SEAL

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE . 1 5!”/\
LD 7?3779/)&1!/5//  of (o reater Ahashua Counerl on AE do hereby
certify that:
1. Tam the duly elected 72467/55//'(’/’ of

Gl reater achue (o, fon Apslolism

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of the corporation, duly held on Mﬁk/ &\3/ L2002
RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New

Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human Services, Division of

Community Based Care Services.

RESOLVED: That the J/resident + CEC s hereby authorized on

behalf of this corporation to enter into said contract with the State and to execute any and

all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or

modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate.

W eter /{J [ //£A€ . is  the duly elected
/0 rESident + CEL of the corporation.
3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and
effect as of /?) 1/ ,Z? ,20 /A4
IN WITNES% WHERéOP [ have hereunto set my hand as the /[C/_{L//’C/’ of the
corporation thls£3 day of /77a v ,20 /.
é,uu«wrf ,Z Q 4%444{/
T readidrer e

STATE OF /Z/f:a) Hamoshire.
COUNTY OF /7 /< hor ou; A

rd

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this é day of
,/?/)6{(;/ .20/ by ./ )q vad /LZJ.’J&/?OV/C/J/ willa X3 a ¥

e
Notary Public/) dstice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:

MARY BENDEL
NOTARY PusLic
State of New Hampshire
Commission Expires

Aprll 5, 2016



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
Contract

This fourth Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support
Services contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 4”) dated July 16, 2015, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Headrest (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at 14 Church Street, Lebanon, NH 03766.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
20, 2012, (Item #97) (hereinafter referred to as “Contract”), and amended by an agreement (Amendment
#1 to the Contract) approved on June 5, 2013 (item #102A), (Amendment #2 to the Contract) approved
on June 18, 2014 (Item #99), and (Amendment #3 to the Contract) approved on June 24, 2015 (ltem #29)
by Governor and Executive Council, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37),
the Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties thereto
and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor agree to add scope of work and to increase the price
limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this Amendment #4,
the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $900,075.00.

3. Add Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services

4. Delete in its entirety, Exhibit B Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #4, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Headrest
Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 3 Date:

g



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

) /a;/ |y
Date ° ’ Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH
Associate Commissioner

/o015

Date 7 NAME Zoe 7 4ot
- TITLE gxa,wm/«izr@_dsfwa o dres?™

Acknowledgement: —

State of M Hampsehee . County of GMFTW on [ { e I (\ , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

r(#é}nd Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

NATHANIGL & HILL, Motewy Publis
My Commission Expis Qotnber §5, 0016

for &)W”Ne ’-(\.t\sr(,( 04/‘—7

Headrest 5
Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: 7/ e
Page 2 of 3 Date: / 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

af3 15 Ne~”
pate L1 il /m“ g

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Sovernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Headrest 7/
Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
Page 3 of 3 Date:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Improving Current Services and Expanding Capacity for New Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A-1

Scope of Services

1.

1.1.

1.2

2.

2.2

Provisions Applicable to All Services
The Contractor shall complete the Scope of Work described in Exhibit A-1 from the
effective date of Amendment #4 through September 30, 2015.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance

therewith.

Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall provide for Department approval, within 5 business days from the

effective date of the Amendment #4, a plan that describes the scope of work that will be
provided to improve current services and/or to expand capacity for substance use
disorder treatment and recovery support services, as defined in Section 2.2. below.

2.1.1. The Contractor may amend the Department approved plan, defined in Section
2.1 above, by submitting an amended plan to the Department for approval,
before the end date in Section 1.1. above.

The Contractor shall complete at least one of the Improving Current Services and
Expanding Capacity projects from the four Categories listed below (Sections 2.2.1

through 2.2 4):

2.2.1. Improving Existing Facilities such as, but not limited to:

2.2.11.

Installing camera systems to increase safety for clients and staff.

2.2.2. Purchasing Equipment, Software, and Program Supplies such as, but not limited

to:

2221,

2222

2.2.2.3.

2224,

2.2.2.5.

Replacing equipment that is not in good working order to improve
staff efficiency and client safety;

Purchasing equipment to support new staff being hired to expand
service capacity;

Purchasing equipment to improve the treatment experience for
clients;

Purchasing computers to allow clients to look for work and otherwise
prepare to transition back into and contribute to the community;

Purchasing Electronic Medical Record, Billing, and other software
systems to increase efficiency and meet Federal requirements;

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Improving Current Services and Expanding Capacity for New Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A-1

2.23.

224

2.25.

2.2.2.6. Purchasing toiletries and other necessities for clients who are not yet
able to purchase these on their own.

Purchasing Program Materials (curricula, journals, books, etc.) such as:

2.2.3.1. Replacing program materials that are outdated, worn out and/or
depleted;

2.2.3.2. Purchasing new program materials to implement and/or expand
evidence based practices for new and current programs.

Paying for Staff/Consultant Costs such as, but not limited to:

2.241. Temporarily increasing the hours of existing staff to complete short-
term projects, such as developing policies, procedures, protocols,
forms and case management formats for new programs to expand
capacity;

2.24.2. Training new and existing staff to implement and/or expand evidence
based practices for new and current programs;

2.2.4.3. Hiring consultants to assist with obtaining necessary licensures and
designing new programming to expand capacity;

2.2.44.  Staff or consultant time to survey the service gaps in the community
and develop strategies and programming for filling those gaps;

2.2.45. Covering the initial costs of hiring new staff to increase efficiency by
filling current gaps in program staffing or to expand capacity.

The Contractor may propose an alternate Improving Current Services and
Expanding Capacity project(s) that is not list above in Sections 2.2.1 through
2.2.4. and that is compliance with the Catalog of Domestic Assistance ##93.959.

2.3. The Contractor will submit a progress report to the Department by September 10, 2015
against the defined plan approved by the Department.

aT

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials é/
Page 2 of 2 Date 77%//



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit B Amendment #4

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

L. Funding

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, for
the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of
Services and Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

A. Funding for Exhibit A, Amendment #3

For the period of July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, funding for Exhibit A
Amendment #3 is funded by various sources as a percentage of the total amount of
$125,725.00 as follows:

e 46% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA
#93.959),

o 22% General Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention,
Intervention and Treatment Funds; and

o 32% General funds.

The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of
Services in compliance with the funding requirements above.

The Contractor shall comply with Sections Il through VIII for payment and invoicing
instructions for services provided in Exhibit A Amendment #3.

B. Funding for Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services

From the effective date of Amendment #4 through September 30, 2015, the State shall
pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed $20,000, for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

Funding is 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93.959),

The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services in
compliance with the funding requirements above

The Contractor shall comply with Section IX for payment and invoicing instructions for
services provided in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

il. Payment Methodology

The Contractor will be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services identified in Exhibit A
Amendment #3, section B. The following terms and conditions detailed in this Exhibit B
Amendment #3 will apply to all services unless expressly stated otherwise.

The Contractor will use and apply all contract funds from the State for costs and expenses as
detailed in the Service Reimbursement Table below. Allowable costs and expenses shall be
determined by the State in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations.
Effective July 1, 2014, the contractor will receive a payment for each service at the rates and
within the limits des